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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (“ELL
Environmental” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | present the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

According to the data from China’s National Bureau of Statistics,
China’s gross domestic product for the first three quarters of
2020 was RMB72.3 trillion', representing a 0.7% growth in 2020
over that of last year. The novel coronavirus disease 2019 (the
“COVID-19”) pandemic in the beginning of the year has brought
unprecedented challenges to the Chinese economy, and all the
main economic indicators have shown weak trends. However,
as the pandemic came under control domestically, the domestic
economy has resumed its past growth trend in the second
half of the year. Meanwhile, China’s environmental protection
industry managed to stay stable throughout the Year and was
not significantly affected. During the “13th Five-Year Plan”
period, China had increased its efforts in pollution prevention
and control and obtained good solid results, the ecological
environment, including the water ecological environment, was
generally improved. According to the data published by the
China’s Ministry of Ecology and Environment, from January to
October 2020, among approximately 2,000 national surface
water assessment sections, the proportion of sections with
excellent water quality reached 81.8%?2, representing an
increase of 6.4% over the same period last year. Meanwhile,
the proportion of sections with poor water quality standard was
0.8%, representing a drop of 2.4% over the same period last
year. Such figures show that the work on water environmental
treatment has still been accelerating according to schedule
despite the pandemic and the “improvement in quality and
efficiency” work of wastewater treatment facilities has achieved
excellent results. At the beginning of 2021, the National
Development and Reform Committee, the Ministry of Ecology

Notes:
1. http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/zxfb/202010/t20201020_1794939.html

2. https://www.mee.gov.cn/xxgk2018/xxgk/xxgk15/202011/
t20201119_808653.html
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Chairman’s Statement

ERW|E

and Environment and other ministries jointly published the
Guidance on Promoting Wastewater Resource Utilisation ([
RIEESKERICFAMIEEE R)), focusing on actively and
steadily promoting the resource utilisation of urban domestic
sewage, industrial wastewater as well as agricultural and rural
sewage. At the same time, the central treasury funds invested
in wastewater resource utilisation will also be increased. Thus,
it can be seen that there is still a strong demand for wastewater
treatment business in China. The Company will continue to
keep a keen pulse on the changes in the national policies and
market in the future in order to timely optimise the business
development strategy. The Company will also contribute to
environmental protection by coordinating with the national water
pollution treatment work in the future.

Although national policies have led to the excellent development
opportunity of the environmental protection industry in China,
there is still fierce competition within the overall environmental
protection industry in China and abroad. Currently, the Group
is proactively launching the biofuel pellets production business
in Indonesia and is preparing for the construction of a new
power plant in Bangka, Indonesia, so to enhance the Group’s
revenue. The Group expects that the biofuel pellets production
business and the new environmental friendly power plant project
will provide opportunities for the diversified development and
expansion of its environmental protection business.

In terms of the Group’s domestic businesses, the costs of
the wastewater treatment facility and capital expenditures
in 2020 have remained roughly the same as the previous
year. Fortunately, COVID-19 has no material direct impact
on the operation of the wastewater treatment business. The
management believes that the business direction can conform
to the national policies and lead to positive development. The
management is also committed to enhancing cost-efficiency and
controlling capital expenditure. The Group owns two wastewater
treatment facilities whose operations are in Jiangsu Province,
China, namely Haian Hengfa Wastewater Treatment Company
Limited (“Haian Hengfa”) and Rugao Hengfa Water Treatment
Company Limited (“Rugao Hengfa”). For Haian Hengfa, the
water tariff has risen to a more desirable level after successfully
entering into agreements with the local authorities in 2019, which
has resulted in a positive contribution to the Group’s revenue
and gross profit in 2020. For Rugao Hengfa, the management
is currently at the stage of active discussion of water tariffs
adjustment and has reached a preliminary consensus with the
local authorities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, ELL Environmental
has recorded a revenue of HK$59.0 million with a year-on-year
decrease of 23.8%. The gross profit was HK$29.6 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 12.7%. The net loss
was HK$1.5 million.

2020 was a year full of challenges, and was confronted with
uncertainties brought by the global economic environment
and markets. We will continue to safeguard our past operation
concepts, consider all the risks when formulating development
strategy and maximise cost-effectiveness. Looking forward, it is
expected that ELL Environmental will continue to be benefited
from the national policies and measures, and can satisfy the
continuous market demand. At the same time, the Group will
continuously enhance its review on the development progress
of various environmental protection projects within the Group
as well as risk management strategies, so as to effectively and
timely respond to any potential challenges in the future.

Here, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow Directors,
shareholders, staff and stakeholders for their constant support.
Thanks to the diligent contributions of the management and
all staff, as well as the support from our customers and
partners, ELL Environmental has been able to surmount various
challenges in such an ever-changing business environment.
The Group will continuously maintain its high-quality service
level and close relationship with customers, with the aim to
contribute to the society and environment, as well as create
value and generate long-term stable returns for our investors
and shareholders.

CHAU On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 severely
disrupted the global economy. The Chinese economy and
production activity inevitably suffered unprecedented negative
impacts in the first half of the year. Through implementing
stringent travel restrictions and community quarantine
measures, China successfully controlled the pandemic by
mid-2020 and economic activity resumed its positive growth
in the second half of the year. China’s gross domestic product
for the first three quarters of 2020 was RMB72.3 trillion',
representing an increase of 0.7% when compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

The overall environmental protection industry in China has not
been significantly affected during this period. In the “Report
on Achievements in Economic and Social Development in the
70 years since the Founding of the PRC” published by China’s
National Bureau of Statistics in 2019, it was mentioned that
China had put much focus on environmental protection, hoping
that the long-standing issue of deteriorating water quality can
be effectively improved. During the “14th Five-Year” period, the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment will focus on promoting
the development of environmental protection industry, including
increasing capital investment, strengthening capital guidance as
well as driving and leading the development of environmental
protection industry through innovation and technology. The
development of environmental protection industry will conform
to the trend of domestic macro-circulation and facilitate the
transformation of Chinese economy to become the major driver
in promoting green development. In terms of prevention and
control of water pollution, China has also set goals of promoting
the full coverage of sewage network in municipals and
eliminating black and odorous water bodies in cities. The “Action
Plan for Prevention and Control of Water Pollution” put forward
various goals for 2020, which includes the overall target for the

Notes:

1. http://www.stats.gov.cn/tjsj/zxfb/202010/t20201020_1794939.html
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ratio of quality water in seven key basins (such as Yangtze River,
Yellow River, Pearl River and Songhua River) reaching over 70%;
the overall ratio for water quality of centralized drinking water
sources in the cities at prefecture level or above reaching or
exceeding Class lll (i.e. applicable to secondary protected area
of centralized drinking water sources, general marine protected
area and swimming area) reaching over 93%; and the black and
odorous water bodies in built-up areas to be contained at 10%
or below. From January to October 2020, according to the data
provided by the China’s Ministry of Ecology and Environment,
among approximately 2,000 national surface water assessment
sections, the proportion of sections with excellent water quality
reached 81.8%2, representing an increase of 6.4% over the
same period last year. Meanwhile, the proportion of sections
with poor water quality standard was 0.8%, representing a drop
of 2.4% over the same period last year. All of the above showed
that China possesses great determination and implementation
capability to achieve the goal of significantly improving water
quality.

In general, the Group has consistently adopted a prudent and
risk-oriented approach to business development in the past.
The Group owns two wastewater treatment facilities in Jiangsu
Province, China, respectively operated by Haian Hengfa and
Rugao Hengfa. For Haian Hengfa, our management has reached
an agreement with the relevant authorities to raise water
tariffs from RMBO0.91 per tonne to RMB1.14 per tonne in 2020,
resulting in considerable growth in both revenue and profits for
the year. For Rugao Hengfa, the Group has reached preliminary
consensus with the Rugao Economic and Technological
Development Zone Administrative Committee and the water
tariffs are expected to raise from RMB2.67 per tonne to over
RMBS3 per tonne in the near future, bringing a better and sound
performance for the Group. Looking forward, the Group expects
that upon gradual adjustment of tariffs, its revenue and gross
profit will be further increased.

Notes:

2. https://www.mee.gov.cn/xxgk2018/xxgk/xxgk15/202011/t20201119_808653.html
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EEENWED

Furthermore, the Group owns two generating units in
biomass power generation business in Jambi, Indonesia. The
operation of which had been fully suspended since 2020 as
a result of a significant drop of electricity unit price in the
local proximity. However, we have been developing a biofuel
pellets manufacturing plant on the site, which is expected
to commence operation in late 2021. The management is
confident that the business of biofuel pellets production
will provide new growth momentum to the Group and will
enable the Group to achieve diversified development of its
environmental protection business in the long run. Besides, we
are also actively preparing for the development of a new power
plant in Bangka, Indonesia with a capacity of 10 megawatts.
To this end, we entered into a purchase agreement and its
supplemental agreement with the supplier on 31 December
2020 and 8 January 2021, respectively, for the purchase of
steam turbine generator facility at a consideration of US$1.1
million. On 21 January 2021, we entered into an agreement with
another supplier for the manufacturing of a boiler for the same
project for a consideration of approximately RMB10.4 million.
We will continue the study on the feasibility of developing other
new energy investment projects in other regions of Indonesia,
while actively promoting the “Build-Operate-Transfer” or “BOT”
investment projects in order to create more value and generate
more optimal cash flows and investment return to the Group.

OUTLOOK

Despite the ever-changing external economic environment and
competition in the industry, the Company will deal with various
challenges calmly and will evaluate the risks and opportunities
of different development projects. ELL Environmental will
also actively align its operations with national policies, while
remaining flexible in coping with market changes. Sustainable
development is one of the global trends, and the Group will
strive to make a contribution to environmental protection.
We shall continue to solidify our strong foundation in China’s
wastewater treatment market and provide high-quality services
to customers, creating a pristine water quality domestically.
Meanwhile, through leveraging on our extensive experience
and expertise accumulated throughout the years, we will strive
to develop and actively implement potential environmental
protection-related industrial chain projects, and will keep
trying and look for breakthroughs in order to obtain better
achievements for the Group in the future and enhance the
long-term returns for our shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

Our total revenue decreased by HK$18.5 million or 23.8%
to HK$59.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
(“FY2020”) as compared to HK$77.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 (“FY2019”), mainly attributable to the
retrospective adjustment in water tariff in FY2019 by Haian
Hengfa, a subsidiary of the Company, which was absent in
FY2020.

COST OF SALES

Our total cost of sales decreased by HK$14.2 million or
32.5% from HK$43.6 million for FY2019 to HK$29.4 million for
FY2020, primarily due to (i) the decrease in cost of sales from
the operation of the biomass power plants by HK$6.4 million
or 100.0% from HK$6.4 million for FY2019 to nil for FY2020
as a result of the suspension of production activities; (ii) the
recognition of construction costs in our Rugao Hengfa facility
amounted to HK$3.7 million which was absent in FY2020 and (iii)
the decrease in replacement of machinery in our Rugao Hengfa
facility by HK$3.2 million from HK$3.5 million for FY2019 to
HK$0.3 million for FY2020.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit decreased by HK$4.3 million or 12.7% from
HK$33.9 million for FY2019 to HK$29.6 million for FY2020,
primarily due to reasons of the fluctuation in revenue and cost
of sales as aforementioned. Our gross profit margin increased
from 43.8% for FY2019 to 50.2% for FY2020.
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EEENWED

OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS

Our other income and net gains decreased by HK$8.1 million
or 60.2% from HK$13.4 million for FY2019 to HK$5.3 million for
FY2020, primarily due to (i) foreign exchange losses of HK$0.7
million recognised in relation to the Company’s Indonesia
subsidiaries during FY2020 as compared to foreign exchange
gains of HK$3.4 million recorded in FY2019, and (ii) the recovery
of sludge processing fees of HK$2.8 million by Rugao Hengfa,
a subsidiary of the Company, in FY2019, which was absent in
FY2020.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses decreased slightly by HK$0.3
million or 1.2% from HK$28.2 million for FY2019 to HK$27.9
million for FY2020. As a percentage of our revenue, our
administrative expenses represented 36.4% and 47.2% for
FY2019 and FY2020, respectively. Administrative expenses
mainly include staff costs and other operating expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs remained stable at HK$2.0 million for FY2020
as compared to HK$2.1 million for FY2019, which represented
the interest expense from bank borrowings and loan from
related parties.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Our profit before tax decreased by HK$11.9 million or 70.1%
from HK$17.0 million for FY2019 to HK$5.1 million for FY2020,
primarily due to the factors mentioned above.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Our income tax expense decreased by HK$0.9 million or 11.5%
from HK$7.4 million for FY2019 to HK$6.6 million for FY2020,
primarily due to decrease in profit before tax in the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company as mentioned above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LOSS/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

We recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$5.0 million for FY2020 as compared to a profit attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$1.0 million for FY2019,
primarily due to the factors mentioned above.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had (i) an unsecured one-
year bank loan with a carrying amount of HK$18.0 million, which
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) (31 December
2019: HK$18.0 million) with variable interest rates at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) plus 1.4% per annum, repayable
on demand, and (i) an unsecured five-year bank loan with a
carrying amount of HK$4.5 million, which was denominated
in United States dollars (“US$”) (31 December 2019: HK$6.7
million) with variable interest rates at London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.4% per annum.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Our principal liquidity and capital requirements for FY2020
primarily relate to investments in our projects, which mainly
include the construction works of (i) our biofuel pellet production
facilities in Jambi, Indonesia and (ii) upgrades to our wastewater
treatment facilities in the PRC, as well as other general
operating costs and expenses. As at 31 December 2020, the
book value of the net assets of the Group was HK$375.2 million,
representing a decrease by HK$2.5 million or 0.7% as compared
to HK$377.7 million as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, bank balances and cash held by
the Group was HK$51.1 million, representing a decrease by
HK$13.0 million or 20.3% as compared to HK$64.1 million as
at 31 December 2019. They were denominated in HK$, USS,
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by
total equity and total debt is the bank borrowings. The gearing
ratio remained at approximately the same level, being 0.07
and 0.06 as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020,
respectively.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no charge on assets
(81 December 2019: nil).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position throughout FY2020. The Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to
time. Surplus cash will be invested appropriately so that the
Group’s cash requirements for the Group’s strategy or direction
from time to time can be met.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our major capital expenditures consist primarily of expenditures
to upgrade and improve the Group’s wastewater treatment
facilities and the acquisition of plant and equipment for the
biofuel pellet production business in Indonesia. During FY2020,
we incurred HK$1.1 million (FY2019: HK$4.9 million) on capital
expenditures for the upgrade works of our wastewater treatment
facilities, and HK$7.0 million on capital expenditures for the
construction of biofuel pellet production facilities in Jambi,
Indonesia (FY2019: HK$17.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

Individual member companies in mainland China and Indonesia
within the Group have limited foreign currency risk as most of
the transactions are denominated and settled in RMB and IDR,
respectively. The Group did not have significant foreign currency
exposures from its operations. However, our consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$. Any appreciation
or depreciation of HK$ against RMB and IDR will affect our
financial position and will be reflected in the exchange reserve.
The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy and
does not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.
The management monitors the Group’s foreign exchange
fluctuation exposure closely. In light of the unpredictable
fluctuations of RMB against HK$, the Group has managed to
minimise the exposures in RMB by converting a majority of
the cash and bank balances into US$ or HK$. Management
considers the volatility of the exchange rate of HK$ against IDR
and the Group’s currency exposures to IDR to be acceptable.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any significant investments, material
acquisitions or disposals of assets, subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures during FY2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the announcements
made by the Company on 21 January 2021, 8 January 2021 and
31 December 2020 in relation to its new power plant project
in Bangka, Indonesia, the Group has no plan authorised by
the Board for other material investments or additions of capital
assets as at the date of this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 114 (31 December
2019: 116) employees (including the Directors). Employee costs
(including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$13.2 million
for FY2020 (FY2019: HK$18.6 million). Our remuneration policy
for the Directors as well as our senior management members
and general staff (the “Staff”) is based on their experience,
level of responsibility, length of service and general market
conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments
are linked to the financial results of the Group and the individual
performance of the Directors and our Staff. The Group provides
on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 5
September 2014 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible directors and employees of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no material event subsequent to 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

No final dividend has been recommended by the Board for
FY2020 (FY2019: HKO.5 cent per share).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

ELL Environmental Holdings (“ELL Environmental” or the
“Company”’, together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred
to as the “Group”, “we”, “us, or “our”) is here to disclose its
fifth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (this
“Report”) to its stakeholders, aiming to showcase its strategy,
approach and achievements in sustainable development during

the year.
REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

Unless otherwise stated, the reporting scope of this Report
covers the Group’s major operations from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”) of:

° Operation services of two wastewater treatment facilities,
the Rugao Hengfa Facility and the Haian Hengfa Facility, in
Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”);
and

o Biomass power generation business of PT Rimba Palma
Sejahtera Lestari (“RPSL’) in Jambi, Indonesia.

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group prepares this Report in accordance with applicable
disclosure requirements of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The Group prepared this Report based on the following four
reporting principles:

Principles Definitions

= 8 E &

Materiality The issues covered in this Report should
reflect the significant impacts of the Group
on the economy, environment and society,
or the scope of assessments and decisions
of stakeholders being influenced.

BEMH AREMRENZERRUAERERH
FERFROHETHNAENRENLE ST E
MEATE -

Quantitative This Report should disclose key
performance indicators in a measurable
way.

EE ABEERBEAENBREBIER -

Balance This Report should present the positive
and negative information of the Group
in an objective manner, to reflect a
comprehensive picture of the sustainability
performance of the Group.

SE ey ABERTHB2INAEERAELR - UE
BRI MAEEERERR -

Consistency Preparation of this Report should be based
on methods consistent with the one(s) used
in previous year(s), or the Report should
state the revised reporting methods, or
illustrate other relevant factors that might
affect meaningful comparison.

—H% AEERERRERNREMERABN 7 EH
EFE—B HAMBALERTREHE - T
THMERETEAERERNEE -

DATA COLLECTION METHOD
The information cited in this Report originates from the Group’s
official documents and statistical data. This Report has been
approved by the Board of Directors (“the Board”) in March
2021.
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EMWEE

Through engaging with stakeholders as well
as considering the Group’s business nature
and development, material sustainability
issues are identified.

BRERNERR UEBAKENEH
MEMER BRABAUFEZRE -

The Group discloses its key environmental
and social performance indicators
quantitatively where appropriate.
ERTBEAT AEEBRATCEREHRE
HEARREMEGEBIER -

The Group has identified and disclosed
the environmental, social and governance
issues with significant impact on the
Group’s business, including the results
and challenges faced by the Group, in this
Report.
REBRABRECINEBEEHRNEEE
BEEAZENRE HekERZEzE "
BIEEKRNFESBEE -

The reporting scope and reporting method
are substantially consistent with those of
the prior year(s), and this Report has also
disclosed relevant comparative information.
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FEEDBACK

Every opinion or suggestion of our stakeholders is seen as a
catalyst for the Group’s sustainable development. Should you
have any opinions or suggestions with regards to the Group’s
sustainable development or this Report, please contact us at
ell@anli.com.hk.

ABOUT ELL ENVIRONMENTAL

Founded in 2002, ELL Environmental is a one-stop
environmental solutions service provider, operating its
wastewater treatment plant in Jiangsu Province, China as well as
biomass power plants and investing in biofuel pellet production
business in Jambi, Indonesia.

Currently, we offer a one-stop approach to the provision of
wastewater treatment services using the “Build — Operate —
Transfer” (or BOT) model. We have two wastewater treatment
facilities in operation which are all located within Jiangsu
Province, China, treating municipal and industrial wastewater.
The Group also operates biomass power plants and invests in
biofuel pellet production business in Jambi, Indonesia.

OUR APPROACH IN SUSTAINABILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen with a leading position in
the environmental solutions industry in the PRC and Indonesia,
ELL Environmental sees pursuing sustainable operations as its
core responsibility. As such, we have formulated Environmental,
Social and Governance Policy together with a number of related
policies and measures, guiding each department and employee
to incorporate sustainable principles, including protecting
employees’ rights, occupational health and safety, product
and service responsibility, anticorruption and environmental
protection at all levels of operations at all times, hoping to
create a better, greener and more equal society for our next
generations. The following 4 sections in this Report outline
our key strategies, policies and achievements in sustainable
development:
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Corporate Governance

Assess, prevent and manage
environmental, social and
governance risks and
maintain high-level business
ethics and integrity

ERER
Al ~ B IEAEIRIRIT - (R

REVERR - Wik REEE
BIEMBIE

Caring Our People

Build a harmonious and safe
working environment while
achieving people-orientation
and care for employees

HERT

B AGEREZEWN TIERIE -
Hﬁigf/ﬁ%/\ﬁ'rﬁ

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group strives to communicate with stakeholders and
listen to and incorporate appropriate opinions and suggestions
into our continuous improvement process. We have identified
contractors, shareholders and investors, government authorities,
non-governmental organizations (“NGO”), environmental
protection department (“EPD”), suppliers, business partners
and the neighboring community as our key stakeholder groups.
We would collect their feedback towards the Group’s operations
and sustainable development performance through a number
of formal and informal two-way communication channels, which
can be referred to in the following:
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> A Environmental
Holdings Limited

Creating Green Fortune

Deliver high-quality
environmental protection
solutions to mitigate pollution
and reduce environmental
impact
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Contributing to the
Community

Encourage employees to
participate in voluntary
activities and actively

contribute to community
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EMPLOYEES CONTRACTORS SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
1= EEB RERMREE
° Staff Mailbox ° Interview o General Meeting
=] ATk BRERAE
° Meeting ° Meetmg o Telephone Interview
o5 e EECRIEN
° Training o Company Website
=gl NGIEED
° Interview o Press Conference
Ak mEEhE
o Intranet ] Announcement
)R N
° Financial Report
B mE

I}

o Site Visit ° Site Visit
BEHER B ER
o Interview ° Interview

GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES NGO/EPD SUPPLIERS
BRER NGO, BRE HER

BUSINESS PARTNERS COMMUNITY
[GES: 452 HE

° Site Visit o Social Media (e.g., public account
EihER on WeChat/WhatsApp)
e Cooperation Meeting (RS (IS B A BRFE, WhatsApp)
aFgE e Company Website
UNSIF A
° Interview
Ak
o Seminar
Hare

° Site Visit
BEHER

o Interview
o

X

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Apart from regular communications with stakeholders outlined
in the above, we have also engaged independent sustainability
consultant to assist the Group in carrying out a materiality
assessment on a yearly basis by collecting stakeholders’
views through an online survey to identify the materiality of
various sustainability issues. We believe that the results of the
materiality assessment could help us identify environmental,
social and governance issues material to the Group, thus we
can improve our sustainability approach and strategies in a
more effective way. The following shows the process of the
materiality assessment:
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8, Carry out materiality analysis based on the col
combine with the assessment of the management.

RIEFTR S EURETTEE DT - WEHERENFHEH -

The materiality matrix below outlines the results of analysis
during the Reporting Period:

lected data and
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Issues located at the top right-hand corner of the matrix indicate
the most significant topics identified and will be focused in this
Report. The following table indicates the relevant sections and
pages for the material issues identified.
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Service Responsibility

R EE

Quality of services
R E &

Services safety and health
AR % & B R

Complaint handling

® R IE

Customer data protection and
privacy

REZPHEMLE

Advertising and labelling
management

BERERER

Corporate Governance

ExER

6.

10.

Anti-fraud and corruption
REEBES
Anti-corruption training
R&EFE
Supplier environmental and
social performance
HEBRERTERR
Supplier selection process
and tendering management
HEFTEREMABZE R
Disaster/emergency response
and management
BAKE BB EME R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Caring for Employees

BERE

11. Diversification and equal
opportunities

ZHAEMTEHKS

Recruiting and maintaining
talents

HBEMBEAT

Training and development

175 31 70 3% R

Labor practices

BITEHR

Occupation health and safety

BERRERD

12.

13.
14.

15.

Giving Back to Community
|t i &
25. Participation in Volunteer

Activities

S EEREE

26. Charitable donations
RERE
Fundraising work
BT

27.

R HERERKRE

Safeguarding the Environment
RS H

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

BREREREBRLQF

Air emissions management

REBHME IR

Energy consumption

BE IR OH 7%

Climate change

RixZ 1t

Discharge quality management

FHERER

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

mEREBEN

Hazardous and non-hazardous
waste management

FENEZTEEYER

Noise management

BEER

Resource utilization and
mitigation measures

B R A R4 R 15 e

Green procurement

RERE
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R HEBRERKRE

ESG Topics Section in this Report Page
Number

ESG* & ABEEEH BR

1. Quality of services Creating Green Fortune 27-37
R E & BEREME

2. Services safety and health Creating Green Fortune 27-37
R% %L 2 EEE Bl el

3. Complaint handling Creating Green Fortune 27-37
w18 Bl elE

12.  Recruiting and maintaining talents Respecting Employees 39
BEMBEEAS EE8T

13.  Training and development Investing in Employee Development 41-42
FlA R HBEIRRE

15.  Occupation health and safety Safeguarding Employees’ Wellbeing 40
BEERERZR REEILR

16.  Air emissions management Creating Green Fortune 27-37
REBH R E IR BlEmels

17.  Energy consumption Creating Green Fortune 27-37
BE R OH 7% BEREME

19. Discharge quality management Creating Green Fortune 27-37
M ERE R Bl elE

21. Hazardous and non-hazardous waste Creating Green Fortune 27-37

RENEEERDER
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ESG GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”)

environmental, social and governance risk management, while &

BlEHEY =
eEREQ
ESGERA

of the Group oversees

rEBEES((EEEDEERR
ERERERE IYZEKNHENET

e

taking into account stakeholders’ concerns to determine issues
that are material to the Group. The Group has established
risk management and internal control mechanisms to identify,
manage and monitor risks, in which ESG-related risks are
covered. We review and refine relevant mechanisms regularly.
For more details about the Group’s measures in corporate
governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
in this Annual Report.
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UPHOLDING BUSINESS ETHICS AND INTEGRITY

The Group strictly abides by the “Law of the PRC on Anti-Unfair
Competition” ((FEA R KEFE X FIEE # L)), the “Criminal
Law of the PRC” ((FFZEARKEMBEIFA)), “Interim Provisions
on Banning Commercial Bribery” ((BRZE LRI ITAT
E1THE)), Hong Kong’s “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”
and other relevant laws and regulations and prohibits the
occurrence of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering within the Group. We have introduced the Anti-
corruption Policy and Code of Conduct, requiring our employees
to maintain business ethics and integrity at all times. We have
also established the Whistleblowing Policy in which employees
and other third parties can report suspicious cases or other
misconducts to us with their identities kept confidential. We will
conduct prompt investigation and take corresponding follow-
up actions seriously to protect the rights of the Group and our
stakeholders. The Group would also arrange training to raise
employees’ awareness in relevant issues from time to time.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance relating to corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

R HERERKRE

WiISHRERREE

AEBEBET(PEARAMBER AL
EBTR) (PEARKMBEAZR)) (#
REIAEBERTANETRE) &
BB L B RE R O R LA AR BRR R AR B
BrAMBELEEMES BH =R
BRFERABRENER RACERKRE
SBRMITATA BERETKARE
BEERMBE - AT H E S8 R G
B -BINEME=FARAKXMERE
REEMEREBEN - RPEHEFOHR
o BMgREY LM ELFEE R
ERETY UREAEELFHEN
Mek - AEBE TS ZHEHEBEI - =
BETHHBEZENEH -

RBESHE AEEBYTANEEARE
B BR - RFFRARETE D
RBEREHRNER -

BRERERERAF —E-EEER
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RIE  HERERRE
MANAGING SUPPLIERS EHMES
As of 31 December 2020, the Group has worked with a total #HE-_Z-_ZTHF+_-_F=+—H K£EH
of 569 suppliers who are mainly local suppliers such that we —itE2E569MMHER > T E AR E
could help minimize the greenhouse gas emissions generated 7 - & 3 9 55 K A RUK B & 8 1 3% A &9
due to transportation to reduce carbon footprint. The following B ZEREHEHR > MBI BT o AT
chart shows the distribution of the suppliers by geographical 7 i F& 5 &9 30 [@ 5 1
locations:
I?/Ijaland éte?n 7 Eﬁf 3 alols
]I B y
%ﬂiﬁ;ﬁ China, 68 g | /~ Guangdong, 1
Malaysia, |
2 = .
LIZ 4 Shandong, 1_\ TE
LA Anhui, 1 Jiangsu,
X3 Tianjin, 1_/ 44
/& Shanghai,
6 ’
HIA
Zhejiang,
ENfe 4
Indonesia,
372
Being a responsible corporate citizen, we understand that we ERBEENGEXAR  HFMLEEA
ought to take up the responsibility to manage the environmental EBEHFE5E EEHEFNRRE AL E
and social impacts of suppliers in order to bring positive impact & @ BRXAERHERERTREBNZE -
to the entire supply chain. The Group has established the ASECHIETHRTR - HEHEREE
Code of Conduct, expecting our suppliers to always uphold HRHEEMMRBEERIARFERER -
environmental, social and governance principles, including H&KERRA - BERERE ER
environmental protection, labor rights, labor standards, anti- ##zm  REFF - HFISETELHFMH
corruption etc. when providing products and services. We MHEREFNETRTH - WERBEM
would conduct regular assessments to ensure that they have HEEERTATA  RMAEEER L
complied with this Code of Conduct. If any suppliers are found & {E BRI E kK 5 FRERE W -
not to comply with the Code of Conduct, we may terminate the
partnership and require them to take corrective measures.
26 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Apart from managing the environmental and social risks of
suppliers, we also carry out stringent management on their
product and service quality, which is believed to have an
important impact on the quality of our businesses. While
selecting new suppliers, we would conduct assessments on
the qualifications, product and service quality, price, reputation
etc. of candidate suppliers in order to select those who can
meet our requirements. Besides, we also conduct assessments
on existing suppliers to ensure they have been meeting our
expectations at all times.

CREATING GREEN FORTUNE

Being an environmental solutions provider with a leading
position in the PRC and Indonesia, ELL Environmental sees
bringing positive impact on the environment as its core and
fundamental responsibility, thereupon we are in stringent
compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the
jurisdictions where we operate to regulate our environmental
performance as well as the health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to our environmental
solutions business, including but not limited to the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC ({FFZEA R X MEIIRBREL)),
the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
PRC ({(FZEARLMBE KR )5LIHAE)), the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC ({fFZE A B £ ME K5
Zh585%5)), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ({7 A K H F1E
BEYSRARENAZE)), Law No. 32/2009 on Environmental
Protection and Management, Government Regulation No.
41/1999 on Air Pollution Control, Government Regulation No.
101/2014 on Management of Hazardous Waste and Toxic, Law
No. 7/2004 on Water Resources, the Regulation of the Minister
of Energy and Mineral Resources No. 12/2017 on Utilization of
Renewable Energy Sources for Power Supply of the Republic
of Indonesia, as well as the Advertising Law of the PRC ({# %
ARAEMEE4E)). We have implemented comprehensive
policies and measures to regulate our daily operations to ensure
the quality of our services and handling of our own emissions
and use of resources. During the Reporting Period, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance concerning
relevant laws and regulations.

R HERERKRE

BAEEHEANERERBERLE R

POEBERREE Bt KRTER
HEBNRRERE AR  RMATE KR
MEBERONER  EEMMANERRRS

BEx-EkEFmHEERE RMFET
At FAIREHERNES Emk

RBER BE BESF UREFAE
BPERKNERER - s RATEY
RARERETHE BRAMATER
(BENE-3

fBliEREME

1’&7% FREKHEHEBLBUHERR

RIEHE BRRRBABRETKIE
E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%ﬁﬁMéE At F M
BN ESTEEE AR AR ARG A
EERMORERIRMEZEARNR
EhkEZzE BEEREENLESETE &
FEETRACPEARKEMBIREREE) -
(REAREAMB KRG SR AZE) (P
FEARKEFMBAFSREBERE) (PEA
E ﬂl.. }?%/H ni&iiﬁﬁ/u/j&>> %
32/20095ﬁ<<iaim% MEBE) B H
7o 5 A PR H /) E41,,19995% BT A
R EHEEERESMEREEY  BE
M 2101, 20145 R TS5 R - B KE R
M 887200455 52 - BEF A B A RE
TR LAE 7 B & Je 78 o5 4 B 1 5512,2017

HEERMIBEERMBBRES » AR(PE
ARKNMBESE) - HMIEEREZEAN

BRREBARBRMANEE ZE  #
RRBER FAFEERMOFERME
BRER - NBEHHE AEBYL A HME
EREARNEBEZRRPNERBER

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HEBRERKRE

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

80,000
tonnes
N

daily wastewater

treatment capacity

FHIFK
AREsE

WASTEWATER TREATMENT

The Group’s wastewater treatment business mainly operates 2
treatment facilities which treat municipal sewage and industrial & 20 & M /8 % & & & M E &

FEEER
13,047,864 7,709.08
tonnes tonnes
YN YN
wastewater treated COD removed
in 2020 in 2020
—ETFRIE —EFTF
yEKE {tEEE=E
R =
FKER

sewage in Rugao County and Haian County, Jiangsu Province A& M T2 557K o M B &

in the PRC. Our facilities can treat as much as 80,000 tonnes
of wastewater each day using Moving Bed Biofilm Reactor
("“MBBR”) treatment approach or Cyclic Activated Sludge
Technology (“CAST”) respectively. The following diagrams 80,0002 W8 o T~ & 7l 7~ AN FE 5%

outline the major wastewater treatment processes adopted by 5/KEEIEFRIE :

our facilities:
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RIE  HERERHRS

RUGAO HENGFA FACILITY
aneR B 35 i

Chemical Tank

E3i)

Casing Water
Adjustment Reaction Hydrolysis-
gg7k _ls_::;rréematlon acidification Tank B
) RAETHLB AREALB
] T
' y
Cosarse
Screen/Intake Adjustment . Reaction .
> Pump Room > Fine Screen ~ Preliminary - ¢§#¢Stmem Sedimentation ;i/\?j\rﬁclzyastluzn Tank A
stz 1A Sedimention Tank HE Tank A KEEE LA
EKRE HETE ! [ TR A <
Plate-frame
Dehudration -
Machine Sludage
— Room <& Thickening Tank |
RAER KIS FBIERAE -
A
Final
sedimentation ) Secondary ) T
Flocculation ) h Sludge Pumping Oxidation Ditch )
< 'Ear};;;h;sgl < | Tank Phase | < gﬁglsrzelnt\on Tank <& Station Phase | | <¢— Phase | . - Ajg?g@nk Phasel | o |
RO —HZR o —HERRE —HaiE TR
— e
Final
sedimentation ) Secondary ) - ’ ) )
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- —HRL e s —HSERE —HEfb FERREE
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HAIAN HENGFA FACILITY
B E R

Carbon Source Dephosphorization
Dosing Room £ T Dosing Room
S EVEA ne S BRBS INZERS
hiu o <
- HQ i 3=1 @ xE AE|| 1239 P -4y £2Cc
Municipal ¥’ 8‘ KE %3 Fs E’ﬁ‘g he s g % N S . .
Wastewater | #ff $ =0 it & na St g & sth CBD B #2 % | To Pincha River
I IDERIN o B2 3 %3 3 = = we 2| BT
ol 7S] el mPl . =2 -~ Bl P2l -{E8
3 2 3 = = ULE 59
3 By Q 3 S o RS
8 g = 450 g 5 S
3 2 mE S = | 3
8 B BE g
(Y (Y (Y (. - J o o - J (Y (Y
o8 5
Mud Cake 5 78
Disposal for T *‘gv ~ Disinfecting and
[;‘g‘;@%on & Dosing Room
Uz SHE PR
s Dehydration Sludge Storage ’
<—Machine Room Tank ~— N Blower Room
Bz et 7 SEMKE
Clean Water Tank
Bt

Both of our wastewater treatment facilities are in line with local MR T/KEIB R FEHT TS & 55 K E B
wastewater treatment standards to ensure the quality of treated 12 BERSKEREZMNEE - AT
wastewater after going through a series of procedures as Bl i5/KER IR IR FF

outlined below:

Filtration Sedimentation Adjustment Acidification Ar';:‘irt?;"c Sterilization

Bl B B Bt S R
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The core responsibility and mission of our wastewater
treatment business are to reduce the pollution of wastewater
imposed on the surrounding water bodies. As a result, we are
committed to ensuring that the quality of treated wastewater
meet the requirements of the Integrated Wastewater Discharge
Standard ((5/KAREHERIZZE)) and Class 1-A or Class 1-B
of Discharge Standard of Pollutants for Municipal Wastewater
Treatment Plants ({3 $2 )5 7K & 312 & )5 2 ¥ BE W12 X))
(GB18918-2002) by obtaining the Pollutant Emission Permits
(CHE S5 #F 7] %)) as required by the Measures for Pollutant
Discharge Permitting Administration (for Trial Implementation)
(CHESs ] BB #% (377) D). We would check the water
quality on a daily basis and record the details ranging from
chemical oxygen demand (“COD”), biological oxygen demand
(“BOD”), pH value, suspended solids (“SS8”), ammonia (NH3)
before and after treatment to water content, organic materials
and pH value of sludge etc. into a monthly report, as well as
conduct regular inspections, so as to guarantee the quality of
treated wastewater before it is discharged.

BIOMASS POWER GENERATION AND BIOFUEL PELLET
PRODUCTION

ELL Environmental mainly engages in biomass power generation
and biofuel pellet production businesses in Jambi, Indonesia
through its subsidiary, RPSL. In terms of biomass power
generation, we make use of leftover palm kernel expeller to
generate electricity and sell to Perusahaan Listrik Negara
(“PLN”), a state-owned power supplier as a replacement of non-
renewable energy generated by coal. The main procedures of
the biomass power generation can be illustrated in the below
diagram:

Steam line Turbine
e Gk Generator

iyt e

Biomass fuel supply
YRRt R

Condenser

AR

Water Supply -
oK T

Transformer
s

B - HEREBRRS

EKEBEKNEEEXINEIHEEER
ESKEFEBKERBEKMNFR - I
g P BECKHE S A & B oA (R
IV ERMOCHEFHF IR B HER
FKE R IBE LM BCOSKEE TEREZE
) R (3B 55 7K B 38 TR S S W BE BUR #E)
(GB18918-2002) Hy1-A # sk 1-B & B 3K o
ZMEEERKEETRA - wA€EE
BESKPREEINRERBENELESS
s ([coD)) - i%%%%(mom% % i
B ®FEEE(SS)) L\A&iﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ
KE - ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ@%f:@# I 4ER
BRIE AEME 739|\9T/E\.1ETTEHETER/H|J -
REEF KA BERR AT KE o

SHEREREMHEHBHUEE

BEBERPRHNEGEBETEBZBHTA
A-RPSLIUE EAEMEEBE R EWEME
PWAEEXER HHEEVMEBREER K
MeMARGNRECEEE TiEE
HEFHEEHE D ¥ Perusahaan L|str|k
Negara ([PLN)) LAER R E R B E -
REEMERENETEEFRE:

Transmission line

N

Electricity
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RIE  HERERRE
During the Reporting Period, we have undergone a major RIHEHBME  BMETTERNERH
adjustment in our business model by ceasing the operation of # - {E |+ & EFWIC HEEERK - L&
palm kernel oil production, and introducing a new business of EBHWEME MR EAEES - LXK
biofuel pellet production. The core raw material used is wood FIFEHMTEBREMEBARERELEBRE
pellets, usually generated from the production of wood products.  F Fff & 4 &) A F8¥L T 148 15 & A 1b F
We believe that through maximizing the use of wood pellets BARBER AR AZ BHOEZY - #®
could help minimize the waste of wood being disposed of, thus MR IEYRBENAET ARBESKER
reducing the burden on and at the same time bringing positve F 2 - IR - EEKRKBERN A nxﬁﬂz 13 1E 1
impact to the environment. The production facility to process T F&E& » F I TE 5T % ﬁﬂl—ﬂi’\ T -—F
the major raw material, wood pellet is under construction. We & 5¢ Bk & 5% I & A & Hvﬂk%ﬁ*ﬂguu
expect that we could start the operation and sales of processed & FHFINEBEEZEE - ’F] FEAL AR Mo
wood pellets to power plants in South-east Asia as our targeted HJEEF K o
major customers in mid-2021.
To regulate the quality of our biomass power generation and AR B H PN EYWERE L A9 E KK
biofuel pellet production, we have compiled a “Standard K AEX®  RFACH TIZELERT
Operation Procedure” (“SOP”) for our businesses, guiding &8 T HEKBHEBIZEETATE S
employees to run the daily operations in a standardized and 3& °
stringent manner.
AIR, GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND USE OF EBR - mARBER B gE iR fE B
ENERGY
The air, greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions and energy A& ERESR - BER/EENRKLERE
consumption of the Group are mainly attributed to purchased HF X ZREIINESE NE B 2R
electricity, fuel consumption of company vehicles, machinery K A RENRBEEE  UREZLEM
and other equipment, as well as air pollutants and odor E£XHMZERSEMIRER - EE—RIR
generated during operations. Being an environmental solutions R REHE R HEE ML ER
service provider, we ought to take up our responsibility to KIBZEREHROET TR HEEE
reduce our air and GHG emissions, as well as optimize the R EFE - DA JE 88 = %0 E F1 | % & b [
use of energy in order to combat global warming and climate & - BB HERMHABEREEEEETRE
change problem. Relevant measures we have deployed include A :
but not limited to:
Managing air ° Build an atmospheric environmental protection zone
emissions surrounding our wastewater treatment facilities to minimize
B REE R B the negative impact of air pollutants imposed on residents
in the neighborhood
e HERKEEXREEAEEXARRERER JZERI=E
RESAMEEAEERNEEATE
° Conduct regular inspection on air pollutants to ensure
emissions meet the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations
o GETEHIWA - MERERHEFMEEBEERANNE
32 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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RIE - HERERERE

Minimizing odor Build deodorization facilities in the wastewater treatment

AR R facilities
o MEAKEEMERZMETHRR
° Adopt biological deodorization technology in Rugao Hengfa
Facilities
e HEWNFRBEERBENEYRR KM

° Plant trees surrounding the wastewater treatment facilities
to absorb odor

s HEAKEEMMOTBEMARKIR

° Store and transport waste properly to minimize the
generation of odor

s RRWEMEHEY BRIRREL

Optimizing use of e
energy o

B 1L BERH 7%

Turn off the engines of vehicles when being idled
AERERAMSIE

Require employees to turn off electrical appliances while
leaving

BRETHMAKAIEERS

° Turning down the air flowrate of blowers according to
the quality and level of dissolved oxygen of incoming
wastewater in our wastewater treatment facilities to reduce
use of energy

e BEABIKKEMAZBSAFAEZAHKRE -
ROH 7

K BE

WASTE EMISSIONS BEEYBE

In view of our business nature, we generate certain non- #EREFNEEHEE RMACELE—F
hazardous as well as hazardous waste, including sludge, waste HEZERBEEZFEZEY © BIEI5E © E A
oil, used battery, general refuse, chemicals, jerry cans and oil f§ - BEEE M - —REEY - (LEWE
filter etc. We acknowledge that such waste emissions would SHE - HBERZE - RPIIEMELEEY

impose certain burden on the environment, and hence we are
devoted to managing our emissions in a stringent manner by
promoting the concept of reducing waste at source and handling
waste emissions properly. We have set up a waste management
system to guide our employees to separate different types of

Qﬁﬁafwﬁﬁ EEE HAERMES
WREARE U XERBEEMIR-
HMERYEEYMEEFE HE8T
ALK ARl REEERY DA
WE - BPEZEHRSRE B R E—RE

non-recyclable waste, recyclable waste and hazardous waste. ZEYME L WETAERHNE=ZH K
We have engaged sanitation service providers to collect general £ [ Bz I8 (55 7K Bz ¥ 3% 6 & 4 &9 B /K55

refuse and screener residue, and also engaged third parties with
required qualifications to collect and handle dewatered sewage
sludge generated from wastewater facilities.

JE ©

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER
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RIE - HERERHRE

Besides, we also advocate the concept of “green office” and
minimize the use of office paper to reduce waste at source by
encouraging employees to adopt electronic communication,
double-sided printing and reusing single-sided paper.

WASTEWATER EMISSIONS AND USE OF WATER

We consume a certain amount of municipal water and
underground water to support our daily operations. We did
not encounter any problem during water sourcing. To treasure
scarce water resource, we highly advocate the idea of reusing
wastewater by using treated wastewater to clean equipment.

Furthermore, our daily operations would generate wastewater.
Apart from treating wastewater generated from our Rugao
Hengfa and Haian Hengfa wastewater treatment facilities before
discharge, we have also built a wastewater treatment facility
in RPSL to treat industrial wastewater, as well as septic tanks
to treat municipal wastewater before discharge. It would also
conduct regular inspection on water quality to ensure it meets
the requirement of Government Regulation No. 82/2001 on the
Management of Water Quality. Inspection criteria include TSS,
pH, metals and phosphate etc.

NOISE EMISSIONS

During daily operations, our plants would generate noise that
may cause negative impact to the surroundings. In order to
minimize such impact to the surroundings, we have deployed
the following measures:

° Prioritize the purchase of low-noise equipment

o Install vibration absorber and damping base to lower noise
generated from equipment

o Install rubber damper on windows and doors to absorb
noise

° Plant trees or bamboos exterior to the plants to absorb
noise

° Conduct regular inspection to ensure equipment are in
good conditions without noise from friction or loose parts

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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RIE - HERERERE

MANAGING IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL EHREXEREXREE
RESOURCES

ELL Environmental strives to identify and properly manage the BHREBRER AN ZEER EBFYHIR
impact imposed on the environment and natural resources in EMAXARERNFE  HLEEE2HE
relations to our daily operations, hoping to minimize the Group’s AEBHHCE @ AREBEEREIMTE -
carbon footprint and bring a positive impact to the environment.

During the Reporting Period, our Haian Hengfa Facilities have RIREHM  BLXEXRMREEEZRE
built a hazardous waste warehouse to store hazardous waste ZEWAEE G UWEZEGHREZEEEY I
temporarily in a more proper way, and improved the condition HNETFWEBIHEE @ UNEEA B -
of the warehouse which stores chemicals used for dosing to

prevent leakage.

For RPSL in Indonesia, since we are building the production #£ENfERPSL 5 M @ 1 1E 8 2 4 ¥ & MR
plant for our biofuel pellet production business, we have KR EEXRME - RPDETREFZEF
conducted an environmental impact assessment to identify fi > BB MGG TARYRBENTE
and assess the environmental impact in view of construction to ~ FE{R I 42 Tﬂi&f&iﬁd_ﬁ%j{ﬁ@%@ °
ensure that we do not impose material negative impact on the % IRIE R 5T (R & 5 A48 88 BE Ak
surrounding environment. The environmental assessment report 3EREZE Y « BER K5 /K BE R - A K 4R Eﬁ
has listed out the emissions including waste, air emissions, J[E¥Ei @ UWEEZERE LR Z SN -
wastewater etc. and corresponding measures to properly handle  #3kE D HIRIBH B E o

and reduce such emissions in order to lower the burden on the

environment.

KEY ENVIRONMENTAL FIGURES FREEEEE
Environmental Performance 2020 2019  Unit
BRRA “ECEF  —T-NE Ef
Emissions 2 3
Air Emissions BRER
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) R MNOY 173.43 214 kg
TR
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) &1k ¥1(SOy) 1.34 2 kg
T
Particulate Matters (PM) I ERL(PM) 2.61 4 kg
T
GHG Emissions BERBHER
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & Scope 2) BEREHNEE (EE—R 9,337.65 9,289.83"  tonnes of COQe
#ED) ABZELRE
Direct Emissions (Scope 1) ERm(EE-) 55.49 61 tonnes of COZe
AMZ—E(iRE
Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) AEER(EED) 9,286.25 8,125' tonnes of COze
AMZE{iREE
GHG Removal (Scope 1) BRERBRREHE—) 4.09 4092 tonnes of COe
AM-EliREE
GHG Emissions (Scope 1 & Scope 2) BERBHN(HE-RERZ) 56.36 56.07" kg of CO,e/m?
Intensity (per floor area) BE(FEEEE) Tr-_@lthmgs/
Total GHG Emissions (Biogenic) BERBHNEE (ED) N/A3 879  tonnes of COe
TERe AM-EIrIREE

BREREREBRLQF —ERCRERR 35
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Environmental Performance 2020 2019  Unit
BRXA “E-EF —T-NE Ef
Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes HEEREEZEEY
Total Hazardous Waste Produced EXRNBEEERYES 3.13 10 tonnes
N
Hazardous Waste Intensity (per floor area) FEEZRYEE(BREER) 0.02 0.06  kg/m?
Fr/FEHK
Total Non-hazardous Waste Produced EEMBEEEYLEE 24,198.87 32,359  tonnes
N
General Refuse —REY 12.60 1,464  tonnes
N
Sludge Ak 24,186.27 32.262  tonnes
NI
Non-hazardous Waste Intensity RERENEE 146.06 195  kg/m?
(per floor area) (BEE@ER) Fr/FAK
Use of Resources® ERERS
Energy BR
Total Energy Consumption RREREGE 11,688.81 12,083  MWh
FEFRE
Purchased Electricity INBE N 11,488.36 11,415  MWh
TERTRE
Biomass (for internal use) EME (REBER) N/As 448  MWh
TERe TRTEE
Diesel Oil i 142.60 178  MWh
TETFRE
Liquefied Natural Gas BILRRR 4.30 4 MWh
TETRE
Unleaded Petrol BALBAR 53.55 38  MWh
TRTEE
Energy Consumption Intensity (per floor area) #E /R ERERE (BREERE) 70.55 87  kWh/m?
TRE/FHK
Water X
Total Water Consumption BEkE 15,347.797 58,411 m?
M AR
Water Consumption Intensity (per floor area)  B/KZE (BIEHEEE) 0.09 04 m¥m?
YRR/ FERK

HI2ETE BT 380 ] 2 45

U With reference to the emission factors for Mainland China based U

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

operations newly supplemented in “How to prepare an ESG report”
published by HKEx, the scope 2 indirect emission in 2019 has been
restated.

Due to optimization of data collection method in 2020, the amount of
GHG removal (Scope 1) in 2019 has been restated.

Due to suspension of biomass power generation business in Jambi,
data for GHG emissions (biogenic) is not available during the
Reporting Period.

Due to optimization of data collection method in 2020, the amount of
general refuse in 2019 has been restated.

Due to business nature, the Group is not involved in the use of
packaging material for finished products.

Due to suspension of biomass power generation business in Jambi,
data for biomass is not available during the Reporting Period.

A significant drop in water consumption was due to suspension of
business due to COVID-19.

2020 Annual Report

ESG 3R &) i & ¥ A 48 7t &9 7 B 0 4 5 BB
ENBREE  XHEMN-_F-NLFEN
E— (AR BIBEERFE -
ER_ZT_ZFERHBRET EZEL =
E-NEFNREERERBRE@EE AR
R o

ERNBERREYMEREXRHEFE ®E
HIfE 3008 B R ﬂﬁmﬁﬁﬁkﬁ@i(ﬁz%ﬁ)m
B B -

ER_FT_ZFERIBRET EZEL =
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EREBULD AREA TS REXRE
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PRIVACY PROTECTION

The daily operations of our business would involve a number
of customers’ information and confidential information such as
business information and financial information of the Group.
In order to protect the privacy of such information to ease
the concerns of our customers, the Group pledges to handle
such information in a careful manner. The measures we have
implemented in relations to privacy protection include but not
limited to:

° Require employees to comply with the terms outlined in
our personnel management policy and employee handbook
and not to disclose privacy information to the third parties
without prior consent

° Use passwords for computers which store confidential
information

° Hard copies of sensitive materials are stored in a
designated place with electronic lock and 24-hour
surveillance cameras

ADVERTISING

The Group is in strict compliance with the Advertising Law of
the PRC (A R £ F1B & &)%)) and other applicable laws
and regulations while preparing promotional materials. We will
review the promotion materials before publishing to ensure there
is no misleading information to protect consumer rights.

Due to our business nature, product labelling is not a material
issue to the Group.

CARING OUR PEOPLE

ELL Environmental sees every employee as the cornerstone in
contributing to the Group’s sustainable development. We are
dedicated to rewarding our employees with a healthy and safe
workplace together with a harmonious and supportive work
atmosphere through stringent compliance with relevant labor
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the “Labor
Law of the PRC” ({(F #E A R £ M B % &) }£)), the “Labor
Contract Law of the PRC” ((HEAREMBE LS A FE)),
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor” ({Z£ | 1{&#
FE T F)) and the Government Regulation No. 50/2012
on the Implementation of Occupational Safety and Health
Management Systems of the Republic of Indonesia to formulate
policies in terms of compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
so as to protect the interests of our employees. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
breaches of relevant laws and regulations.
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EMPLOYEE OVERVIEW AL

As of 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 90 #HE-_Z-_ZTHF+_F=+—H K£EH
employees?. The following shows the distributions of employees — HIEHI0EZE T8 LANFRE T4
by gender, employment type, age as well as geographical Bl - EEER - Fi M EH D M
location

By Gender
%5

|
l [ | I . By Employment Type

2020 2019 %
EfRLER
m Male 64 80
B
mFemale
2 26 36
By Age
FHR
ol Ll I
2020 2019 I
m 20 or below 2020 2019
20 AT 0 0 m  Senior
management 13 18
w20 16 27 EREEE
21-30B% :
®  Middle
m31-40 management 8 17
31-40%% 43 45 RREIRE
41-50¢ 15 o4 lTeotjmcal staff s .
41-505% HKiTET
51-60 General staff
51-60%% I ? —fMET o 62
61 or above
6B 5 1

8 Data included employees from Rugao Hengfa Facilities, Haian Hengfa 8 HERENREERELEESKEER
Facilities and RPSL. B LA & RPSL ©
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RESPECTING EMPLOYEES BERT
Being a responsible employer, ELL Environmental strives to {FABEITWET G BERERBHER
maintain a harmonious workplace and respecting labor rights HMEHES BERBEF T ESTER
in line with applicable labor laws, regulations and standards. HISERZ KRR o TewEHREE « FHEHIE -
Throughout the processes of recruitment, determination of &  IREFIANEE M A HERIERH
remuneration and promotion, provision of training and other R F - HMHFHZ b FEMRIEK
human resources related processes, we have been upholding HRHERE] —E@ECHHFETE—NLET:
the principles of diversity, equality and anti-discrimination by T H Rl - F& - Bk - =& - 517
treating every employee equally regardless of their gender, age, #RJ « Bk E LA o
race, religion, marital status, nationality, or sexual orientation.
The Group pays competitive remuneration and benefits to our ANEBME THRIAEBRF I EH BN L&
employees as a compensation for their hard work contributed — F » DA ¥R 25 th {F] ¥ AN 62 [ 235 B 19 & & -
to the Group’s development. They are paid with basic salary, BIEERNFH - #HELEL - RAEE
allowances and bonuses. We would review the remuneration 18 % B &l & - # 4% 2 Bl 2 88 35 K F o
system to ensure it is in line with the market level. The Group AEB R ESZBEAGE T AFENE
also contributes to pension, medical, unemployment, maternity, TLIEHEZRE - BEERE - KERE -
work-related insurance and housing provident fund for S F®RE ITERBEMNEEAES I
employees in the PRC, as well as pension, health insurance, &AHEMWE TIRHEEEZRE - BERR -
work-related insurance and termination compensation for TIT{ERBAMKILEAEES - I F
employees in Indonesia according to legal requirements. In FIERESERA ARSI L EET:
addition, we also offer employees with a multitude of benefits to
attract and retain them:
Holidays and Leaves U Public holidays ° Maternity leave
R HA s DRRBH e ER
o Statutory holidays o Compassionate leave
e EEMRH o  RBimE
o Sick leave o Annual leave
e AR e F
o Marriage leave
o IBR
Monetary benefits ° Medical allowance ° Religious holiday allowance
1 B e EEEM o RIETHZERL
° Overtime allowance o Meal allowance
o NIEEBL e BREM
o Discretionary bonus ° High temperature subsidies
e WIBTEA e  ERERL
° Mourning allowance
L) lGikn
Other benefits o Health insurance o Festive gift cards
H b 12 o EBEBERR e fHEBSH
° Company trip ° Health check
s RAINKT . BEBRT
BRBRIZERERAA “ECEFFR 39
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SAFEGUARDING EMPLOYEES’ WELLBEING

Regarding the spread of COVID-19 throughout the world,
the Group understands that it is our core responsibility to
safeguard the wellbeing of every of our employees. We abide
by relevant laws and regulations to protect the health and
safety of employees, including but not limited to the “Work
Safety Law of the PRC” ({(FREARKEMHL 2 E E L)) and
the “Government Regulation No. 50/2012 on Implementation of
Occupational Safety and Health Management Systems” of the
Republic of Indonesia by formulating and implementing stringent
occupational health and safety measures, including:

o Providing suitable Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”)
to employees such as gloves, work clothes, masks, ear
plug, ear muff, safety helmet and welding glasses

° Conducting regular inspection to ensure fire-fighting
equipment, facilities and electrical appliances are in good
conditions

o Conducting fire and emergency drills and training on a
regular basis to ensure employees are equipped with
relevant knowledge and skills

° Arranging designated personnel to be responsible for
overseeing the safety of the work area

° Organizing sport and other activities from time to time,
allowing employees to get relaxed in leisure time

In addition to the above measures, the Group has been doing
its very best to comply with pandemic prevention measures
imposed by the local government and implement control
measures to fight against COVID-19. We would check the
body temperature of employees, provide medical masks to
employees, and requiring third parties to register when entering
our offices and plants, aiming at minimizing the risk of spread of
virus in the workplace.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material work-related injuries or fatalities.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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INVESTING IN EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

We believe that it is important to provide adequate trainings and
promotion opportunities in order to allow our employees to grow
together with the Group.

In terms of promotion, we strive to build and maintain a
comprehensive career development ladder in which employees
can get promoted equally. Promotion will take the results of
performance appraisal into consideration. The appraisal is
conducted on a regular basis to evaluate the work performance,
abilities and skills of employees.

In terms of training, we offer abundant training opportunities
to employees by formulating a series of training programs for
employees to pursue professional knowledge and skills to strive
for excellence. During the Reporting Period, training topics we
have offered include:

° Water quality analysis

° Wastewater treatment operation

° Technical management

o Occupational health and safety

° Firefighting and disaster response

° First-aid

R HERERKRE

EBRSIRR

BMPEERETRHERANFIME T
BHEeAPETRAEERRAKE

HHEEATEH BABRIELEENR
XERES REIRHTFENSTITH
- RMELETERER EHFZE
THIEXRR  EAAROMEE T
EREERBEANEEGMEZ— -

HeEdl T m RAREIRHEEEN
Foll e - WA HIE—RI AT IR
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B RETIBBEXNBE M BB
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BRI HERERRS

Throughout the year, the total number of training hours REREHIRE - T 94 48 55 3| B B8 38700
exceeded 700 hours. The charts below show the percentage of

employees trained by gender and employee category, as well as  ffIl F1F 19 55 5| B &L a0 N R F R ¢
average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee category:

Training ratio by gender
I RIS D XL

38.78%

= Male 5 = Female %2

Average training hours
completed per
employee by gender
rRUREIDHELIER
TERKHY 35 5 51| B4

2020
m Male 713
sl
mFemale
9.58
g

Training ratio by
employment type

RERERISDZIIELH

4.08%

22.45%

10.20%

Senior management =& 12 E
Middle management F 4% & 12 &
Technical staff £ilr& T

» General staff —fiRE T

Average training hours
completed per employee by
employment type
RESRMESHNEUIES
TERKHY 359 5 51| B4

2020
m Management
P 10.86
EIEE
m Technical staff
P 4.7
BiE T 8
m General staff
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PROTECTING LABOR RIGHTS

We strive to become a desirable and responsible employer.
Therefore, we are in stringent compliance with applicable labor
standards in the jurisdictions where we operate, and strictly
prohibit the recruitment of child and forced labor within the
Group. During recruitment, we would verify the personal identity
documents of candidates to ensure they have met legal working
age to prevent the occurrence of child labor. Besides, we have
clearly outlined the arrangements in terms of rest periods,
leave, overtime work, working hours, dismissal etc. in relevant
policies to prevent forced labor. In the case of staff resignation
or dismissal, the Group would provide adequate compensations
to the corresponding employees in line with applicable labor-
related laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any child or forced labor within the
Group.

CONTRIBUTING TO COMMUNITY

ELL Environmental pledges to listen to and address community
needs as we are dedicated to striking a balance in business
development and community investment which is believed to
be a core principle of our sustainable strategy. As a result, the
Group has been investing in adequate resources each year
in community investment and advocating our employees to
volunteer to showcase our effort in taking up corporate social
responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, regarding the spread of COVID-19,
we are highly concerned about the health and safety of the
community in the neighborhood where our business operates.
RPSL in Jambi has donated a number of medical masks to
Jambi city government, related agencies and surrounding
communities, hoping to give a hand to society to fight the virus
together.

R HERERKRE

FEESHED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE RiR

REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”)

FEER BH - REERBEREMNER

A. Environmental

’

HERELREREESIRS]

Section/
Declaration

B BH

B S B ZALS results achieved.
HIUREBERE R MTERER -

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
B8 8 IR IE A6 wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HIREEENEEEENNS L HEELEEN
BN PTERE -

Fortune

RlEmeis

ARIT
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA: HEBY
General Disclosure Creating Green 27-37
—RBE Fortune
AlEmem=
Information on: )
FRABERIORZERBHN - KR LHAES  AERESEEVNELZN:
(a) the policies; and
(@) BR:R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer )
b)) BIHETAREAZENHEBERZRROINER -
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data. | Key Environmental 35-36
82 48 IR IR ALY B B R E R B - Figures
ARIRE R
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.
MR 4B AU IR ALL2 RERBAFREREE -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FREBIERALS MELEERENBRERTE -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FASEE IR IR ALL MEXBRERZENESRTE -
KPI' A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and Creating Green 27-37

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEER EEH —REERERERER -1 BEY
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBHA2: ERF A
General Disclosure Creating Green 27-37
—REE Fortune
flEzemns
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
mq@ﬁds
BEXFEAERBIESRR KREMEME) OB E
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.
g BRAARAEE #7F Eh BF TTRES-
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in Key Environmental 35-36
BB IR R A2 totaland|ntensny Figures
BRRAESNEER SAHEEREEERTE - Eﬁfkiaiﬂ%ﬁﬁ
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.
R EBIEEZEA2.2 BREKERTE -
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and Creating Green 27-37
B EBIERA2.3 results achieved. Fortune
e R AR AR E R PAEHR - BlER B E
KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
IR R A24 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.
T”iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiTﬁ&ﬁﬁ%'M&%ﬂ%*
X g at &l R FTIERR o
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Not applicable to the | N/A
B ERIEZRA25 and with reference to per unit produced. Group’s business T iE A
HEmAABEMHNEEREBEEEMNEE - TERARAEEER
Aspect A3: Environmental and Natural Resources
BEAS: RERXARER
General Disclosure Creating Green 27-37
—REE Fortune
AlEmems
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.
BEBTAHRERRAAERENEAZENBE -
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on
M52 4B IR 1R A3 the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them. _
TaaL%ﬂ‘%/ﬁDﬁiaf“&%%ﬁﬁEﬁék ERBER
BEBEHATENTE -

BREREREBRLQF

—ECREER
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number

IRER EEH —REEXBREARER ¥

B. Social

B.AE

Employment and Labour Standards
ERBRETHER

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1:EE

General Disclosure Caring Our People 37-43
— B E BEET

Information on:
ERFHNLEE BEREH THEHS RA - FE#e .
BAREAMRFE KB -

£~ Rix

\q\}
=1

(a) the policies; and
@ BE: &k

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

b) BITEHBTABEAZENRBEERRIINEF -

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age Employee Overview 38
BREBIEEZEB 11 group and geographical region. EEHE
BYR - ERER  FRAEJNKIESSNES L
]
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Not disclosed this N/A
R4 B WIE1EBT.2 geographical region. year NiE A
BIER - FRARNIREDNEERKL X - Zgir%%ﬂﬁé@ﬁ 2
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CHERERERE

5

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEER EEH —REERERERER B/ B BEY
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2 . REHEZZ
General Disclosure Safeguarding 40
—REE Employees’ Wellbeing
REBIRE
Information on:
FRRHEZ2IERERRBEEEREBELRAEN:
(@)  the policies; and
(@) HR:Rk
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

b)) BFTHETABEAZENHEBEEZRRAOINER -
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
MR 4B SR 1R B2 AIERAEMBETHAB KL E -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
WG E M5 1RB2.2 ATGRATIERS -
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety
BB IR 12B2.3 measures adopted, how they are implemented and

monitored.

B PTER AR B R REET 2 - A REENT

RERRE -
Aspect B3: Development and Training
EEB3: & K&
General Disclosure Investing in Employee | 41-42
—MEE Development

HHETHRE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties
at work. Description of training activities.
FRRABEEBTIERENMBELRENEE - lIZIES -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and
8 52 48 W5 12 B3.1 employee category. B

EEANREBENESNZIEERED L
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee
G A M IEEB3.2 by gender and employee category. o

BEMRIREEERNES  BEREETHXIIN T

i

BRBRIZERERQE TEROREER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHRE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”)

FEER BH - REERBEREARER

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4: % T &R

Section/
Declaration

B B

Page
Number

¥

General Disclosure Protecting Labor 43
—BEE Rights
REEE#EZ
Information on:
BREMEETISRGEIBIH:
(@)  the policies; and
@ BE: &k
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
b) BEFHBETABEAZENHBEEZRAMNNER -
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
4 47 48 UIE 12 B4 practices to avoid child and forced labour.
Ml m BRI MR AR R ET RBHIST
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices | Not disclosed this N/A
W E M IEEB4.2 when discovered. year T8 A
HACERRERABRAKNEREARRARDNLRE - | AFEETREHMA
E#
Operating Practices
ZEEY
Aspect B5 : Supply Chain Management
[EEBS: tEHEE R
General Disclosure Managing Suppliers 26-27

—REE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
BEEHERENORE M EREREE -

KPI 85.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

MG 48 IR 12 B5.1 mEwESSHHRERHE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
BB M IEEBS.2 number of suppliers where the practices are being

implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

HAEBAREREEENEDN RERTEBEND
HERHE UREBEMNNBTRERTE -

EREEERD
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HERERRE

i -

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance Section/ Page
indicators (“KPIs”) Declaration Number
TEER EEH —REERERERER -1 BEY
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
BHEB6: EmEMR
General Disclosure Creating Green 27-37
—REE Fortune
AlEzemns
Information on: )
FUfREERNRBNREREZ Y  BY  RERMEEEARBRAEN :
(@)  the policies; and
@ HE: &
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
b) BFTHETABEAZENHEBEEZRRAOINER -
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress.
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject Not applicable to the | N/A
A 42 45 IR 12 B6.1 to recalls for safety and health reasons. Group’s business T iE A
PERCEXREMEHTRT T EEFREHMEA TERARAEEER
WH B
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints Not disclosed this N/A
B M IE1EB6.2 received and how they are dealt with. year i A
BFREBAREDRBRBENRFBEUREEH FE - $¢F§’*N&E§$H%§
E#
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Not applicable to the | N/A
B 5 IE1EB6.3 protecting intellectual property rights. Group's business A iE A
g ERRENEEREHENED - TERRAEEER
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Not applicable to the | N/A
WA M IEEB64 procedures Group’s business T8 A
HAEERTHEEREMDWER TERRAEEER
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Privacy Protection 37
BB M IE1EB6.5 policies, how they are |mplemented and monitored. LR RE
W EBEERRERLBEBR - NRBERITR
ER7GE-
BRBRIZERERQE TEROREER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERHRE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosure and key performance
indicators (“KPIs”)

FEER BH - REERBEREARER

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption
BHEB7: RES

Section/
Declaration

B B

Page
Number

¥

General Disclosure Upholding Business 25
— B E Ethics and Integrity
ERAFERBRERAG
Information on:
FRANILHE 9% BFRLTEEN:
(@)  the policies; and
@ BE: &k
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
b) BEFHBTABEAZENHBEERAMNNER -
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
4 48 WUIE 12 BT practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
REFBAHRTARLBERELDRENES
AU BARFALR
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-
B4 48 W3R 12BT7.2 blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored.
M EE R RREREN  AREERITRERGE -
Community
HE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
EEB8: HEHRE
General Disclosure Contributing to 43

—RE®E

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’ interests.

EE«EtMiE%EﬁUKEﬁﬁﬁ%EF&EHE%E&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁb@%fﬁﬁﬁﬂé
VR ER

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.

M 52 48 IR 12 B8 1 EITEREE -

KPI 88.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
M5t 4B IR 1£B8.2 EETHREMBHAER -

Community

BBt R
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 73, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as
the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive
Director of the Company on 5 September 2014. He has been
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) since 5 September 2014. Mr.
Chau also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company and is mainly responsible for business development
and formulation of strategies of the Group. He joined the Group
in December 2002 as a director of Everbest Water Treatment
Development Company Limited (“Everbest”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chau is a director of and
owns 90% of the issued shares in Wealthy Sea Holdings Limited
(“Wealthy Sea”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chau obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language
and literature from Xiamen University (B F3 X 2) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in August 1968. He is currently a
member of the 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (B A RB A E € %), a
deputy officer of the Social and Legal Affairs Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (% B I 1
HEMEHIZBE) and the vice chairman and the secretary-
general of the 10th board of directors of the Hong Kong
Federation of Fujian Associations (& /& & & 4L E B &). Mr. Chau
was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star and a Silver Bauhinia Star
by the Hong Kong government in 2010 and 2016, respectively.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

EENRSREERZBABE

Mr. Chau has held directorships in various companies listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Chau was the chairman and an executive
director of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (stock code:
651) from September 2007 and had ceased to be the chairman
from June 2015 and was re-designated as the non-executive
director and appointed as the honorary chairman from June
2015 to November 2019. Mr. Chau has also been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Redco Properties
Group Limited (stock code: 1622), Come Sure Group (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 794), Good Resources Holdings Limited
(stock code: 109), Hang Pin Living Technology Company Limited
(formerly known as Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited) (stock
code: 1682) and Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1897) since January 2014, February 2009, July 2007,
September 2017 and June 2020, respectively. Mr. Chau had
also been an executive director of Rosan Resources Holdings
Limited (stock code: 578) from March 2000 to November 2006,
an independent non-executive director of Hao Wen Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8019) from June 2003 to August 2009,
GR Properties Limited (stock code: 108) from December 2008
to September 2010 and Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1089) from December 2010 to May 2016. Mr. Chau
is the father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, an executive Director of
the Company.

Mr. Chan Kwan

Mr. Chan Kwan, aged 38, was appointed as a Director of the
Company on 25 February 2014 and was re-designated as
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “CEO”) on 5 September 2014. He has been a
member of the Nomination Committee since 5 September 2014,
Mr. Chan also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company and is mainly responsible for all major affairs of the
Group, including project construction and operation, business
development, marketing and formulation of strategies. Mr. Chan
joined the Group in March 2007 as a director of Everbest. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was a database administrator at
Panda Restaurant Group, Inc. in Los Angeles, the United States
of America (“US”), from February 2005 to December 20086.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’'s degree in science from the
lowa State University of Science and Technology in the US in
December 2004. He is a member of the 12th Fujian Province
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FRARBUGAHEEZREBREEZLZEE), a standing
committee member of the 10th board of directors of the Hong
Kong Federation of Fujian Associations (& i & &1t Bt <),
the chief supervisor of the 10th Hong Kong Minxi Association
Ltd. (& & B B €), the vice-president of the 11th Supervision
Committee of Lung Yen Residents Association of Hong Kong
Limited (BB #EER#2), and the president of the 2nd Hong
Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Youth Committee (& /& &
B A #2€). Mr. Chan is the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam
Brian, the non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of and holds a 20% shareholding
interest in Everbest Environmental Investment Limited
(“Everbest Environmental”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Chan also owns 20% of the issued shares in
Kingdrive Limited (“Kingdrive”). Kingdrive owned all the issued
shares in Carlton Asia Limited which owns approximately 1.42%
of the issued shares of the Company.

Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Radius Suhendra, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 21 October 2016. Mr. Suhendra
is mainly responsible for all major affairs of an Indonesia-
incorporated subsidiary of the Company, which was acquired by
the Group in late 2016. He has been overseeing the construction
and operation of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary
biomass power plants in that subsidiary.

He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration
from Ohio State University, the US, in 1996. He has 15 years of
experience in managing businesses in heavy industries in Asia,
including 7 years in managing ferrous trading business of a
ferrous alloy trading firm between 1998 and 2005 in Singapore.
From 2006 to 2010, Mr. Suhendra was the president director of
PT. Indoferro which operates blast furnace producing nickel pig
iron in Indonesia.
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Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, aged 39, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014, was re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014
and was further re-designated as an executive Director of the
Company and appointed as the deputy general manager of
the Group both since April 2019. He also holds directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chau worked as an international
trade department manager of China Ocean Shipbuilding
Industry Group Limited from February 2011 to August 2013 and
a business adviser at Vodafone Ltd. in the United Kingdom (the
“UK”) from November 2005 to September 2008.

Mr. Chau was a consultant of Convoy Financial Services Limited
from August 2012 to June 2017. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in arts from Manchester Metropolitan University in the
UK in September 2005. He is also registered as a technical
representative of the Professional Insurance Brokers Association
in Hong Kong. Mr. Chau is (i) the son of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen,
an executive Director of the Company and the Chairman and
(i) a director of Wealthy Sea, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, aged 32, was appointed as a Director
of the Company on 18 March 2014 and was re-designated as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 5 September 2014.
He has been a member of the remuneration committee of the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) since 5 September
2014. He is also a director of three subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree in communication from
Purdue University in the US in May 2011. Since March 2013,
Mr. Chan has been working as marketing and sales director
at PT. Indoferro. He has been involved in the business of the
Group since September 2012 when he was appointed as a
director of Exuberant Legacy Holdings Ltd. (“Exuberant”), a
company incorporated in Hong Kong, which was intended by
the then shareholders of Everbest Environmental to be used
as the holding company for the purpose of the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. While serving
as a director of Exuberant, Mr. Chan was involved in exploring
business opportunities in the environmental-related industry
within the larger Asia region and was also responsible for the
setting up and maintenance of the Company’s information
technology system. Mr. Chan continued to be involved in the
Group’s business after he had been appointed as a Director on
18 March 2014. Mr. Chan is the younger brother of Mr. Chan
Kwan, an executive Director and the CEO.
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EENRSREERZBABE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company (the
“INED”) on 5 September 2014. She has been the chairlady of
the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and
a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee since 5 September 2014.

Ms. Ng has been a director of Linda C.Y. Ng (CPA) Limited
(previously known as Tseung & Ng (CPA) Limited) since April
2012, prior to which she was the sole proprietor of Linda C.Y.
Ng & Co., an accounting firm, from January 2008 to April
2013. Ms. Ng has also been a director of Futurelink Limited
since February 2004. She has been a part-time lecturer in
the School of Continuing and Professional Education of City
University of Hong Kong since October 2015 and a part-
time lecturer at HKCA Learning Media Limited since August
2010, and was a part-time lecturer at Accountancy Training
Company (International) Limited from September 2007 to April
2010. She has been the author of “Financial Reporting in Hong
Kong: SME Edition 2015/16” published in December 2015 and
“Practical Guide to Financial Reporting Standards in Hong
Kong” published by CCH Hong Kong Limited since September
2013. She was a director of Learning Is Fun Association Limited
from June 2007 to June 2012. Ms. Ng was a staff accountant at
Ernst & Young from September 2000 to September 2001, and
was promoted to senior accountant in October 2001 until she
left that firm in October 2002.

Ms. Ng obtained a master’s degree in professional accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009
and a bachelor’s degree in business administration from Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in November 1997.
She has been a certified professional forensic accountant of
The Institute of Certified Forensic Accountants since September
2011, a certified tax adviser and an associate of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong since September 2010, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK since
October 2005 and a practising member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since January 2005.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

Mr. Ng Man Kung

Mr. Ng Man Kung, aged 69, was appointed as an INED
on 5 September 2014. He has been the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee since 5 September
2014.

Mr. Ng was a business consultant of China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holding Limited, a company
principally engaged in investment, from January 2014 to April
2015. He worked at Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd. from July
1969 to December 2012 and was a chief executive from April
1992 to July 2012. Mr. Ng was an honorary president of the 37th
Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong, a member of the Council
of Hong Kong Polytechnic University from April 1999 to March
2003 and a member of the 10th Fujian Province Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (F B A
RBAatAeEEREEZE®) Mr. Ng completed an extension
course in banking at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
September 1982.

Mr. Ng has also been an independent non-executive director
of each of Fujian Holdings Limited (stock code: 181) since
June 2014, Renco Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 2323)
since March 2016 and Green Future Food Hydrocolloid Marine
Science Company Limited (stock code: 1084) since September
2019. Mr. Ng was a non-executive director of Roma Group
Limited (stock code: 8072) from August 2017 to December 2017.
Mr. Ng was an independent non-executive director of each of
Guoan International Limited (stock code: 143) from March 2016
to February 2021 and Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (stock
code: 755) from May 2017 to January 2021. The issued shares
of all the above companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng has also been the chairman of the supervisory board of
Well Link Bank in Macau since 31 March 2018.
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Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, aged 48, was appointed as an INED
with effect from 15 October 2019. She has been a member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee since 15 October 2019.

Ms. Leung graduated from the University of Cambridge in
England with a master’s degree in law in July 1996 and from the
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in law in July
1994. After graduation, from 1996 to 2004, Ms. Leung worked
at Clyde & Co., where her last position was associate.

Ms. Leung is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong, England and
Wales and a partner of Leung and Lau, Solicitors LLP which
she co-founded in 2005. She co-founded L.I.M Tech Limited
which commenced operations in December 2018 and Xu Shan
Charitable Foundation Company Limited in July 2019, and has
been the major shareholder and chairlady of California Insurance
Company, Limited since 2018.

Ms. Leung is presently a member of the Legal Education
Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She was
previously a member of the Public Education and Publicity
Sub-committee under the Steering Committee on Mediation of
the Department of Justice and the Mediate First Pledge Sub-
Group of the Public Education and Publicity Sub-Group of the
Secretary of Justice’s Working Group on Mediation in Hong
Kong. She was previously also appointed as a Deputy District
Court Judge in Hong Kong in 2012.

Ms. Leung served as the non-executive director of New Trend
Lifestyle Group Plc (LON:NTLG) from June 2016 to January
2018.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Fan Chi Chiu

Mr. Fan Chi Chiu, aged 35, joined our Group in April 2015 and
was appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company on
1 June 2015. He is mainly responsible for financial management
and reporting, investor relations, fund raising and capital
management of our Group. He assists the chief executive
officer of the Company in our strategic planning and business
development, as well as the Group’s compliance with applicable
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC. Since 24
July 2017, he has been serving as an executive director of
Grace Wine Holdings Limited (stock code: 8146), a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He has been serving as
an independent non-executive director of each of Shinelong
Automotive Lightweight Application Limited (stock code: 1930)
since June 2019, Hevol Services Group Co. Limited (stock code:
6093) since June 2019 and Weihai City Commercial Bank Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 9677) since June 2020, all three companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan was a finance director of
Vantasia Holdings (H.K.) Limited from April 2014 to March
2015. He was an analyst in Barclays Investment Bank
from July 2011 to March 2014 and a senior associate of
PricewaterhouseCoopers from October 2007 to June 2011.

Mr. Fan obtained a bachelor’'s degree in professional
accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
July 2007. Mr. Fan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographical Details

EENRSREERZBABE

Mr. Wang Zili

Mr. Wang Zili, aged 58, was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the wastewater treatment facility operated by Haian
Hengfa, a subsidiary of the Company (the “Haian Hengfa
Facility”) on 18 March 2014. Mr. Wang joined the Group
in February 2005 and is mainly responsible for overseeing
operational matters related to the Haian Hengfa Facility.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was vice chairman and
general manager of Beijing Solar Power Nutritious Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. (It RInEEE TR ERERAAF), a
deputy general manager of National Youth Services Centre (Ff

EELEHERBEH L) and a researcher of Zhuzhou Electric
Locomotive Research Institute (& 58 ¥k M E 1 #% B 55 b7),
and had worked at Shenzhen Recruitment Services Company
ORI A A BRI 2 F]). Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree
in engineering from Dalian Railway Institute (X 3 i 8 £ Ft) (now
known as Dalian Jiaotong University (X3& %38 AZ2)) in the
PRC in July 1988.
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and protecting
and enhancing Shareholder value through good corporate
governance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise
the importance of incorporating elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures and internal control
procedures of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
so as to achieve effective accountability, and to enable our
Shareholders to evaluate how the principles of the CG Code
(defined below) have been applied.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules” and the “CG Code”,
respectively) throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Year”) , except as disclosed in this report.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code of conduct governing the securities transactions by the
Directors. Following a specific enquiry made by the Company
on each of the Directors, all of them confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
overseeing and supervising the management of the business
affairs and the overall performance of the Group. The Board
sets the Group’s values and standards and ensures that the
requisite financial and human resources support are in place for
the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions performed by
the Board include but are not limited to formulating the Group’s
business plans and strategies, reviewing the Company’s
financial results and performance and approving its interim
and annual results upon the review and recommendation of
the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”);
approving the appointment or re-appointment of the Board
members upon the recommendation of the nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”);
approving the remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Company (the “Senior Management”)
upon the recommendation of the remuneration committee of
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”), deciding all
significant financial (including major capital expenditure) and
operational issues, developing, monitoring and reviewing the
Group’s corporate governance, and all other functions reserved
to the Board under the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”). The Board may from time to time
delegate certain functions to the Senior Management if and
when considered appropriate. The Senior Management is mainly
responsible for the execution of the business plans, strategies
and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from time
to time.

COMPOSITION

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board which can effectively exercise
independent judgement.
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Currently, the Board comprises the following eight Directors:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Radius Suhendra

Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny

Non-executive Director (the “NED”)
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda

Mr. Ng Man Kung

Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographical Details” of this annual report.

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman’), is the father of Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, an ED.
He is also a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company. Mr. Chan Kwan, the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”), is
the elder brother of Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian, the NED. Mr.
Chan Kwan owns 20% of the issued shares of a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
Save as aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or
other material relationship among the Directors.

The EDs are responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses development,
formulation of strategies and are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.
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The INEDs participate in the Board meetings to bring in an
independent judgement to bear on the issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conducts and scrutinise the Company’s
performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high
standard of financial and other mandatory reporting of the
Board as well as providing a balance in the Board in order to
effectively exercise an independent judgement on the corporate
actions of the Company so as to protect Shareholders’ interest
and the overall interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs, which
complied with the requirement of the Listing Rules that (i) the
number of INEDs must represent at least one-third of the Board
members; and (i) at least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the INEDs have been
independent and met the independent guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against
the Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored-
made induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure a proper understanding of the Company’s operations
and business and full awareness of the Director’s responsibilities
under the statutes and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report

BIUFNTEFTL2REFTEERE /A
FARE KK KRR -HEH BR B
BLRERTRERNRE /B HE  X1F
MERARAINREREMELEAZENRST
E2RBE -RENTAEBRREZTSREM
SREZHBLHEMR EER X NE
FENREFEER BREXTES
AAREETHNBLHE  ARER
REmaRAEEEEERD -

RAFEE ARBIFEBE=RBIUFNITE
Eo DA LMRARE  BI()BLIE
HITEFNABAREZTENE AN
EL=p2— RNEDPAE-—RBILIIFH
TEFABEEEXERAE AR
MBERERANH

EBUFATEFTCRELTHAIFI13
FRAEEME AL FEBLEER - M
EEQEM NAFEREERFHRAS
ERBUNNTEEHABYIMITE
EHRAFEIAS R BE LIRS -

ARAERHBEFTETZIERFRL
HEZNRE -

EEMERANRIERERER

EMEENERAEIZERHEIEN
EEMBEPAEMR ZUEA - AHE
REEWTHRARBDNZEERER I
TEBREFEAOAARERL - £
mARA EREEMEERENALRER
AIEBLRERBERE THEME -



The Company from time to time provides briefings to all
Directors to develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities. All Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense and they
have been requested to provide the Company with their training
records. According to the training records maintained by the
Company, each of Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, Mr. Chan Kwan, Mr.
Radius Suhendra, Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny, Mr. Chan Pak
Lam Brian, Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man Kung and
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy has attended seminars/conference/
forums and/or read newspapers, journals and materials relating
to the economy, general business, corporate governance and
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

MEETINGS OF BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES
AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with notice given to all Directors
at least 14 days in advance. For additional Board meetings
which require discussion and resolution of significant issues
arising from the operations of the Company, notice is given in a
reasonable time in advance. Before each Board meeting, a draft
agenda is sent to all Directors at least three days or such other
period as agreed in advance in order to allow the Directors to
include any other matters in the agenda that is required for
discussion and resolution in the meeting. To enable the Directors
to be properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings
and to make informed decisions, Board papers together with all
appropriate and relevant information in relation to the matters
of the meeting are sent to all Directors three days or such other
period as agreed before each Board meeting. All Directors
should have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) with a
view to ensuring that the Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary
is responsible for keeping all Board meetings minutes. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for the Directors’ inspection. According to the Listing
Rules, any Directors and their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) with a material interest in the transactions to be
discussed at the Board meetings will abstain from deliberating
and voting on resolutions approving such transactions and are
not to be counted in the quorum of the meetings.
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During the Year, one annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) and four Board meetings were held. The table
below sets out the attendance by the Directors of these

RAFE  BEIT-RARRBRRBFAKR
S(RRAFAENEOREFEEE -
TRENEFHFEZFEH BN

meetings:
Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HEEERE
FERHEESRERY
Board
Name Meetings AGM
" £ EEeEed RRAFKE
EDs BITES
Chau On Ta Yuen A& EIR 4/4 1/1
Chan Kwan (=3 4/4 1/1
Radius Suhendra BREX A 0/4 0/1
Chau Chi Yan Benny BB A 4/4 1/1
NED FHITES
Chan Pak Lam Brian BR A8 AR 3/4 1/1
INEDs BYEHITES
Ng Chung Yan Linda HE B 4/4 1/1
Ng Man Kung ROt 4/4 1/1
Leung Bo Yee Nancy RERE 2/4 11
Apart from the Board meetings, the Chairman met with the BEZE€ €4 THENRRANEE B F

INEDs without the presence of the other Directors during the

Year.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board diversity policy on 5 September
2014 and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, race, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The Board considered that the aforementioned
measurable goals have been achieved satisfactorily during the
Year and the Board will continue to review the relevant goals
from time to time to ensure its progress for achieving such
goals.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separated and assumed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not vested in
any member of the Board. Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, the Chairman,
is responsible for business development and formulation
of strategies of the Group while Mr. Chan Kwan, the Chief
Executive Officer, is responsible for all major affairs of the
Group, including project construction and operation, business
development, marketing and formulation of strategies.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each of the Board committees
named above are in line with the Listing Rules and are posted
on the respective websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of
three INEDs, namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, serving as the
chairlady, Mr. Ng Man Kung and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and considering any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

° developing and implementing a policy on the engagement
of an external auditor to supply non-audit services and
reporting the same to the Board, and identifying and
making recommendations on any matters in respect
of which it considers that an action or improvement is
needed;

° discussing with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations, and ensuring proper co-ordination
where more than one audit firm is involved;

o discussing problems and reservations arising from the
interim and final audits, and any matters the external
auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of the Senior
Management where necessary);

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and financial statements, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;
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reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control
systems with the Senior Management to ensure that
the Senior Management has performed its duties in
establishing and maintaining effective systems, including
matters on adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

considering findings of major investigations on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and the Senior
Management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors,
ensuring that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’s management letter,
any material queries raised by such auditor to the
Senior Management about the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and the Senior
Management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor’'s management
letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing the arrangements that employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters and ensuring that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters and for appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;
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establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the
Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns,
in confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and the Directors;

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in
the Company’s annual report;

reviewing on-going connected transactions of the
Company and ensuring compliance with the terms of
approval by the Shareholders;

reviewing the findings of internal investigations and
the Senior Management’s responses in relation to any
suspected fraud or irregularities or failures of internal
controls or infringement of laws, rules and regulations; and

considering any other topics as determined by the Board.

During the Year, 2 Audit Committee meetings were held whereat

the

Audit Committee reviewed, among others, (i) the audited

consolidated financial results of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2019;

(i) the unaudited consolidated financial

results of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020;
(i) the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group; and (iv) the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit
function. The attendance of individual members was set out in
the following table.
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Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

Name HEEERE
#®E FERLEESERY
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda BB Xt 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung R HEA 2/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REEX T 1/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Ng Man Kung, serving as the chairman, Ms. Ng Chung
Yan Linda and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, and Mr. Chan Pak
Lam Brian, the NED. The principal responsibilities of the

FHERS
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CEERTANFHNEZES - HFWEZE
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XHEEREETER) AEERLETRR
BERELXINMFATEETREAMRLLE - H
WEZEeXTEZE5EEHE:

Remuneration Committee include:

making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the Senior Management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing a
remuneration policy;

reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s
remuneration proposals by reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual EDs and the Senior
Management and such packages include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;

making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the NEDs;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;
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° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the EDs
and the Senior Management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

o reviewing and approving compensation arrangements
relating to the dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration; and

° reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements
for the Directors and the Senior Management.

During the Year, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings were
held whereat the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
recommended to the Board for consideration, among others, the
remuneration packages of the Directors as well as the proposed
reduction in emoluments of certain Directors. The attendance of
individual members was set out in the following table.
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Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

Name HEEERE
" & FEREEERAK
Mr. Ng Man Kung R H LA 2/2
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda HEBRLZL 2/2
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BR 4B MRS A 2/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REBRLL 1/2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It consists of
three INEDs, namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda, Mr. Ng Man
Kung and Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy, and two EDs, namely Mr.
Chau On Ta Yuen and Mr. Chan Kwan with Mr. Chau On Ta
Yuen serving as the chairman. The principal responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs;

° reviewing the Board diversity policy of the Company and
Directors’ nomination policy, as appropriate; and reviewing
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing such Board diversity policy, and the progress
in achieving the objectives; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief
executives.
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During the Year, 2 Nomination Committee meetings were held
whereat the Nomination Committee, among others, (i) assessed
the independence of the INEDs; (i) recommended to the Board
for consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors
as Directors at the 2020 AGM,; (iii) reviewed the structure, size
and diversity of the Board; and (iv) reviewed the Board diversity
policy. The attendance of individual members was set out in the
following table.
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Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

Name HEEBERE
H"E FEREESRRH
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BZEIREE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kwan = 2/2
Mr. Ng Man Kung RBIH LA 2/2
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda mEBELZL 2/2
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy 2EEX T 1/2

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which aims to:

- set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors;

= ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company;
and

- ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership
at Board level.
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CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria
in evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

- character, reputation and integrity;

- qualifications, experience and accomplishments,
including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

- willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

- requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent by reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

- Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board;

- any other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning; and

- such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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TEEBRE
NOMINATION PROCEDURES RBERF
(A) APPOINTMENT OF NEW DIRECTOR A EEFES
() The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the () REAZESEERIZEHE

proposal on appointment of the new Director, the
biographical information (or relevant details) of such
candidate and evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out in above paragraph of “Criteria”
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates
to provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company (including but not limited to ensuring
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives) and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee shall then recommend
appointment of the appropriate candidate for
directorship and the candidate shall provide his/
her written consent (i) to be appointed as a Director,
and (i) to the public disclosure of his/her personal
data on any documents or the relevant websites for
the purpose of or in relation to his/her standing for
election as a Director.

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall evaluate
such candidate based on the above paragraph of
“Criteria” to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship and where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of Director at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at any general meeting.
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(B) RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR AT GENERAL MEETING

()  Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the
Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting of
the Company.

(i)~ The Nomination Committee shall review the retiring
Director’s overall contribution and service to the
Company, including his/her attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings,
and his/her level of participation and performance on
the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in above paragraph.

(i)

(iv) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
then make recommendation to the Shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of the Director at
the general meeting.

(v)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters

relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for re-election at any general meeting.

REGULAR REVIEW

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on (i)
the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy to ensure that it
remains relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both
current regulatory requirements and good corporate governance
practice, and (ii) the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and business needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company has adopted the code provisions stated in the
CG Code and the Board has delegated its responsibilities to the
Audit Committee to perform the corporate governance functions
of the Company as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee has, amongst other matters,
reviewed this corporate governance report in discharge of its
corporate governance functions, ensuring compliance with the
Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the NEDs (including INEDs) has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for the term of three years
in respect of their appointment as NED or INED (as the case
may be).

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have a service
contract or letter of appointment with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries other than contracts or letters of appointment
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director will
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of
the meeting at which he/she retires and shall be eligible for re-
election thereat.

According to the Articles of Association,

(@) the Board shall have power from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting; and

(b) the Company may by ordinary resolution in general
meetings elect any person to be a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors.
Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until
the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

However, the Company will comply with code provision A.4.2 of
the CG Code that any Director who fills a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the following general meeting of the Company.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are
set out in note 10 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the Senior Management
(other than the Directors) whose particulars are contained
in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographical Details” in this annual report for the Year by band
is set out below:
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Remuneration band (in HK$) of individuals
¥4 Bl (78 T) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 = £1,000,000 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,00121,500,000 1
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION BB £
The fees charged by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (‘Baker XB&E B @M EBMAR QA F(X

Tilly”) in respect of the auditing services for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$848,000 and in respect of the non-auditing
services for the Year amounted to approximately HK$150,000.
The non-auditing services rendered related to the performance
of agreed-upon procedures on interim financial report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

Both the Board and the Audit Committee have agreed to
recommend the re-appointment of Baker Tilly as the Company’s
independent auditor for the ensuing year at the 2021 AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
which give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs,
results and cash flows for the Year and are properly prepared
on a going concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements as well as accounting and financial
reporting standards. The Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties which may affect the Group’s business or
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

In addition, Baker Tilly has stated in the independent auditor’s
report its reporting responsibility on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems in order to
protect the interest of the Company and its Shareholders. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our Group has established an enterprise risk management
(the “ERM”) framework in order to implement effective risk
management efforts. Our ERM framework comprises two
key elements, namely risk management structure and risk
management process. It defines a simple and clear risk
management structure as well as the responsibilities as below.

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a duty to ensure the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
(the “ERM system”). The Board oversees the ERM system,
assesses and evaluates the Group’s business strategies and
risk tolerance. The Board reviews, with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, at least annually the effectiveness of the ERM
system and monitors the ERM system in an on-going manner.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for risk
management and internal control after the Board. It assists
the Board in overseeing the Group’s ERM system by providing
support and advice, including on-going monitoring of the
execution of risk management processes, reviewing the Group’s
risk register as well as reviewing and approving the internal
control review plan and results.

MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group (the “Management”) is
responsible for identifying and monitoring the risks relevant
to the Group during daily operations, including strategic,
operational, financial, reporting and compliance risks. The
Management reports to the Board and the Audit Committee on
the risks identified and their changes. The Management is also
responsible for developing appropriate internal control measures
to mitigate the risks, and identify and resolve material internal
control defects.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established the internal audit function and the
scope of work includes reviewing the effectiveness of the ERM
system. The scope of the risk management and internal control
review is risk-based and is reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The internal audit function is able to communicate with the Audit
Committee directly regarding the results of its review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Our ERM framework defines the procedures for identifying,
assessing, responding and monitoring risks and their changes.
Through regular discussions with each operating function, the
Group strengthens the understanding of risk management such
that all employees can understand and report various risks
they have identified in a timely manner. It enhances the Group’s
ability to identify and manage risks.

Assess risks
identified
B Al R

Define risks
universe
FERREE

Identify
risks
Gl

To identify and prioritise material risks throughout the Group,
the Management communicates with each operating function,
collects significant risk factors that affect the Group from bottom
to top, including strategic, operational, financial, reporting
and compliance risks. After identifying all relevant risks, the
Management assesses the potential impact and possibilities of
the risks and prioritises the risks. Appropriate internal control
measures are then developed to mitigate the risks identified and
the changes of risks are monitored in an on-going manner.
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MAIN FEATURES OF OUR RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

MAINTAIN AN EFFECTIVE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
(OPERATIONAL LEVEL)

° Establish clear internal control policies and procedures,
and clearly define the responsibilities, authorities and
accountabilities of each key position;

° Establish code of conduct and explain the Group’s
requirements on integrity and ethical value to all staff;

o Establish a whistle-blowing mechanism and encourage
employees to report incidents of misconduct or fraud;

° Establish appropriate level of information technology to
assess rights and avoid the leakage of price-sensitive
information; and

° Establish inside information disclosure policy, including
reporting channel and responsible person of disclosure,
unify response to external enquiries and obtain advice
from professional financial adviser or the Stock Exchange if
necessary.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control policies and procedures,
including those related to financial reporting and Listing
Rules compliance. The Board has considered the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions during the review of the
effectiveness of the ERM system.

ON-GOING RISK MONITORING (RISK MANAGEMENT LEVEL)

Based on the ERM framework and risk management policies
established by the Board, the Management communicates with
each operating function, and collects significant risk factors
that affect the Group from bottom to top. The Group has
established a risk register to record the risks identified, and the
Management assesses the potential impact and possibilities of
the risks and develops appropriate internal control measures to
mitigate the risks identified.
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During the Year, the Management conducted an evaluation of RAFE EREUAEE 2 EKREE
the Group’s risk management structure and procedures and “T%&?ifﬁ;ﬁﬂ - ITmMEZTELE
submitted a risk assessment report to the Board and the Audit #%ZE& T REBFTEHRE - BEIFNR
Committee, including a 3-year internal control review plan, #8EHEHFTE UL EETSNEXRE

u
to enable the Board and the Audit Committee to effectively B & § "’]ﬁxﬁl ERAEE 2ETERR K
monitor the major risks of the Group and understand how the THERERERULEERR ZEME -
Management responds to and mitigates the risks.
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INTERNAL CONTROL DEPARTMENT

During the Year, the Group had not established an internal WRAEE » KEE I KE QA A ELE L
control department internally. Instead, the Group engaged an R EBEIRILFT - M2 L T HM I H A D
external internal control consulting company, Avista Group, to B #A AN FEBHEEFTHLFER
conduct an assessment and evaluation on the effectiveness of EBRAIELEME ZAHKRK - &F
internal control measures and systems of the Group. Certain AN BN ERZCDERD  MEEE
internal control enhancement suggestions have been identified & &t K}Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ B 1R UEI TE AR E R TT B

‘_

NEEERTREEEFEKRS
Eg MBEXZESNHCRAEZTCER
BRANERRMERE -

and the Management has established action plans for improving §+
the internal control effectiveness accordingly. An internal control
review report has been provided to the Audit Committee which
has also been reported to the Board about the findings and
improvement measures.

No material internal control deficiency has been identified during
the Year and the Board considers that the ERM system to be
adequate and effective.
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MAJOR RISKS OF THE GROUP TREZEERE
Our risk management process has identified the following as FHfIMEBRERE RIEE & AEE 2 A

TXERABRMEZL-

major risks of the Group and their changes.

Risk Description

AR i

Key Risk Mitigations Changes
TZEABRERER - 2[4

New investments in
Bangka, Indonesia

The Group is investing in developing a new biomass ~ —
power plant in Bangka, Indonesia with a capacity

of 10 megawatts (the “Bangka Power Plant’) to
generate electricity for sale to PT PLN (Persero),

an Indonesia government-owned corporation. The —
investment is very significant to the Group. The
construction of the Bangka Power Plant may not

Carry out thorough
feasibility studies on the
Bangka Power Plant project

Newly identified

HERNS MK E HAMSHERARETS

EH AT 5E

3 385l

be completed successfully or may not meet the
expected standard. The operation of the Bangka
Power Plant may not be successful due to the

Monitor closely the
construction progress by
industry experts

potential insufficiency of biomass raw material,
incapability of the new staff in the Bangka Power -
Plant or other unknown factors. # E

FEBERNEAMSRELR—BEEEARI0K -
RNFENELER(AMSHER]) NHEE
HENEBE% ARPT PLN (Persero) ° EEHK & 4K
EEEEERN -AMELEBOBIRLEAKY

Hiring professional
consultant to monitor the
operation and conduct
training for new staff

ERIALEHNBAGE - AN EMERM BN E
ETR ANSEEFHMEIMENTERAMR - EFEXERNERLEMN
A% AMESREMNZETEIERY - MR A8 TREE

—  Negotiate with local
suppliers to enter into long-
term purchase agreements
to ensure sufficiency of the
biomass raw material

- Eft ﬁﬁbﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
B BREMERMH
xR
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
[ & U TERRERER -4

Electricity demand in ~ The Group is engaged in biomass power generation

Jambi, Indonesia business in Indonesia. Electricity is sold to
Perusahaan Listrik Negara, a state-owned electricity
corporation in Indonesia. The consumption of
electricity and hence, the sales of electricity by
our power plants are subject to the demand in the

HESBEOENER  region. If the level of consumption decreases or
cannot be sustained in the future, the Company
could suffer a significant loss from operation, and the
investment in the power plants cannot be recovered.

M%E@Wi?ﬁé?@%?ﬂé%%%c’%ﬁﬂj%%ﬂ
— %X B A & /12 8] Perusahaan Listrik Negara °
775%'%%&&1%%%@9@%73%ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁzlﬁﬁ’]ﬁ/\?/E.
fMBEEFEKT TRIBEERE AAANEES
EXEABRL ZERNREMBEZKE -

Credit Customers or counterparties of the Company are
local government authorities. Payment from them
could be longer than the credit period granted
to them due to the complexity of their internal

8 administrative procedures. The Group might suffer
from a financial loss or liquidity difficulty in the case
of delay in payment.

$®ﬂ§ﬁﬁ¥ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁm BRERE
THREFCERYE REAFTELERRTRS
ZEEH AEELER Hmhk%i‘ﬁiﬁ%ﬁéﬁai
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Invest in technology
researches and studies to
improve the efficiency of
electricity generation to
reduce cost

RERMPEARD
ZBE - REKA

Develop other businesses,
e.g. biofuel pellet
manufacturing business,

for better utilisation of the
production capacities of the
power plants

BRAMER (FlmEn T
RIKEEEEB) M E
MBEERNER

Frequently communicate
with customers to follow up
the outstanding balance

=
BE
=
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Maintain sufficient cash flow
to avoid liquidity problem

BBERETNRERENE
%m@ﬁﬁﬁh

Regularly perform
impairment review to assess
the recovery of account
receivables and provide
sufficient impairment to
avoid over-statement of
balance
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Risk Description Key Risk Mitigations Changes
& K #a TERBRERRER 21
Pricing and cost The Group operates the wastewater treatment —  Negotiate the water tariffs Unchanged

recovery

TERKAHE

facilities at a predetermined tariff rate specified
at the time the Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT)
agreement is entered into. The circumstances of tariff
adjustment are also specified that the Company has
only limited ability to change/renegotiate the tariffs.
The increase in operating costs due to an increase in
utilisation of the wastewater treatment facilities might
not be fully compensated that the Company could
suffer from loss or decrease in profitability.
FEBRUER K2 RBRBONHERELR
EHEXEL T KRERE - KERBZBERME
RARREE /EHHTKENENER - BEM
EREKEERESH 2 ELH AL MG EET
2RIAME ARARARREEXBERABIAD -

with the local government to
compensate the increased
costs of operation

- BENBRRHEKENHE
2EXAEM

—  On-going cost control
to avoid unnecessary
spending

- REETKAEHAEE
THERRY

—  Negotiate with supplier to
minimise the increase in

costs
- HUEERBEIERIK
$%M%
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that inside information should be announced promptly when it is
the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as
follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information to the public through channels such as
financial reporting, public announcements/circulars and its
website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs, so that only the EDs, the Company Secretary and
the chief financial officer of the Company (the “Chief
Financial Officer”) are authorised to communicate with
parties outside the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chui Lee Lee (“Ms. Chui”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary with effect from 18 December 2020 in place of Sir
Kwok Siu Man KR who resigned on the same date.

Ms. Chui was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services
(HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as the Company Secretary
and Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial
services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Ms. Chui has been
contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. Fan
Chi Chiu, the Chief Financial Officer.

Ms. Chui had complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing the Shareholders to make
proposals or move resolutions at the general meeting under
the memorandum of association of the Company and the
Articles of Association (the “M&A”). Shareholders who wish to
make proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene
an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) to do so in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene
an EGM” set out below.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EGM

Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association stipulates that:

General meetings shall be convened on the written requisition
of any two or more members of the Company deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company, which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.
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General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one member of the Company, which is a
recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist holds as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company, which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself/
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to him/her/
them by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO SEND
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to the Directors or management of the Company.
Such questions, requests and comments can be addressed
to the Company by mail to its principal place of business in
Hong Kong, presently at Unit 5, 7th Floor, Westlands Centre, 20
Westlands Road, Hong Kong or by email to ell@anli.com.hk.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings or change of correspondence address or dividend
instructions by mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room
2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, which
has been appointed by the Company to deal with Shareholders
for share registration and related matters.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy with the objective of enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Company’s business
performance and strategies.

Information about the Company will be communicated to
the Shareholders and the investment community mainly
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
reports), announcements and circulars, the AGMs and the
EGMs that may be convened, as well as by all the published
disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications made available by the Company on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has posted its M&A on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are the provision of
wastewater treatment services in Jiangsu Province, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the generation of electricity
by biomass power plants in Jambi, the Republic of Indonesia
(“Indonesia”). The principal activities and other particulars of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out on pages 125 to
259 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY
OBJECTIVES

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”)
aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company
intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or
distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES

1. The board of Directors (the “Board”) adopts the policy that,
in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company
shall maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for
meeting its working capital requirements and future growth
as well as its shareholder value.

2. The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.

3. The Board has the full discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”), all applicable laws and regulations and the
factors set out below.
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4.  The Board shall also take into account the following
factors of the Group when considering the declaration and
payment of dividends:

o financial results;

° cash flow situation;

° business conditions and strategies;

° expected future operations and earnings;

° capital requirements and expenditure plans;

e interests of Shareholders;

° any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

° any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant.

5.  Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and
the Group and the conditions and factors as set out above,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board
for a financial year or period as follows:

° interim dividend;

° final dividend;

° special dividend; and

° any distribution of net profits that the Board may
deem appropriate.

6. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval.

7. The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate.

8. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall
revert to the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association, and all applicable laws and regulations.

REVIEW

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from
time to time.
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DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid or declared for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 (2019: nil).

A special dividend of HKO0.5 cent per share was paid for the
Year (2019: nil).

During its meeting held on 31 March 2021, the Board has
resolved not to recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2019: HKO.5 cent per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and the
potential future development of the Group’s business is set
out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 7 and in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 8 to 16 of this
annual report.

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the
end of the Year and up to the date of this report.

The performance analysis of the Group for the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 8 to 16 of this
annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS OF THE GROUP

A discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Group, together with the Group’s internal control, is set out
on pages 80 to 87 of this annual report. The financial risks are
covered in note 33 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report. A more comprehensive
analysis of the Group’s risk factors (excluding the operation
of the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power
plants by a subsidiary of the Company in Indonesia, which the
Group acquired in late 2016) is set out on pages 29 to 46 of
the prospectus of the Company dated 12 September 2014 (the
“Prospectus”). The risk factors relating to the operation of
the palm kernel oil mill and the ancillary biomass power plants
in Indonesia are set out on pages 35 to 37 of the Company’s
circular dated 24 August 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT
IMPACT ON THE GROUP

The Group operates its business mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC
and Indonesia.

During the Year, save as disclosed in the rest of this annual
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no breach
of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations of
Hong Kong, the PRC and Indonesia by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the environmental, social and governance of the
Group are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 17 to 50 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 17 to 50 of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
past five financial years is set out on page 260 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements of the Group for the Year.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold its annual general meeting on Friday,
4 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM”), the notice of which will be
published and dispatched to the Shareholders in due course in
the manner as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the 2021 AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 1 June 2021 to Friday, 4 June
2021 (both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) will be effected. In order
to qualify for attending and voting at the 2021 AGM, the non-
registered Shareholders must lodge all duly completed transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 31 May 2021.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group’s revenue was attributable to two
customers which are local government authorities in the PRC for
the wastewater treatment business. They jointly accounted for
100% of the Group’s revenue, where the two local government
authorities in the PRC accounted for 54.2% and 45.8% of the
Group’s revenue, respectively. The purchases attributable to
the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 43.0% and 94.6%, respectively of the Group’s
total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in
note 29 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in this annual report.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$251.9
million (31 December 2019: HK$272.5 million). This amount
included the Company’s share premium account of HK$408.5
million as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: HK$408.5

FRFZAI 5 IR G

RZE-_TF+-_A=+—H XRRAR
BRESHEAREKXFAENITH®R DI
BHEAE2IBEEEL(ZE—NEFE+A
—t+t—H: 272588 L) e ERIE
KRR _ZE-_ZEF+_A=+—HA%H
/)EMHX(%/@EEE4OS.5§%/%TE(—§ j—L

million), which may be distributed provided that immediately #+Z-HA=+—H:4085B&/&T)"
following the date on which the dividend is distributed, the Z B o & Hﬁ Z HEARE - "R AIZBEABE
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when HXMER — MR EKBRTH Hﬁ e 2
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. & o

DIRECTORS EE

The following are the Directors during the Year and up to the
date of this report:

RAFERBEEAREARZESNOT:

Executive Directors HITES

CHAU On Ta Yuen (“Mr. Chau”) (Chairman) N AzER(AXED(ERE)N
CHAN Kwan (“Mr. Chan”) (Chief Executive Officer) N PRE(TBREEEDATHABH)IN
Radius SUHENDRA BREX A

CHAU Chi Yan Benny BB A

Non-executive Director (the “NED”) FBITEE(HBITEE)
CHAN Pak Lam Brian (“Mr. Brian Chan”) ? PR (BERBEMEE] R

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

VHEHBTES(BIFBTES)

NG Chung Yan Linda (“Ms. Ng”) ~/"/N HER(ELZ L] s

NG Man Kung (“Mr. Ng”) /"N RXH (R F &) ArN

LEUNG Bo Yee Nancy (“Ms. Leung”) A/~N REH(RLL]) AN

A = member of the audit committee of the Board (the “‘Audit A = EESEXRZEC((BEREES)
Committee”) b=

R = member of the remuneration committee of the Board
N = member of the nomination committee of the Board

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Chau, Mr.
Chan and Ms. Ng shall retire at the 2021 AGM and all of them,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely Ms.
Ng, Mr. Ng and Ms. Leung, an annual written confirmation of
his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
As at the date of this report, the Company considers all of them
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 51
to 60 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming 2021 AGM has a service contract or an
appointment letter with the Company that is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report, none of the Directors
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisted
during or at the end of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations
amounting to IDR69.1 million in Indonesia (2019: IDR272.6
million).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 5 September 2014, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) to enable the Company
to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.
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The Share Option Scheme took effect on 26 September
2014. During the Year, no options were granted, exercised or
cancelled or lapsed and as at 31 December 2020, options
comprising 500,000 Shares, representing approximately 0.045%
of the number of the issued Shares, were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes must not in aggregate exceed
80,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the Share Offer (as defined in
the Prospectus) and approximately 7.22% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this report). Excluding the abovementioned
options comprising 500,000 Shares granted during the year
ended 31 December 2016, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 79,500,000
Shares, which represented approximately 7.18% of the issued
Shares as at the date of this report.

Details of the options outstanding during the Year under the
Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:

BRESFEIANR-_ZT-—WFEALA-TRAH
AR -RAFE HBEBREERD
BTEIETHIRY AR_F_FF
T-A=1t—B REBEREFITEHR
17 {6 1 1 P4 RJ 2% 17 B9 B 42 &2 $5500,000
BB D - KEEBHITAD BB #90.045% °

ARARIBEBREFE TR EMER
BAEFENBEREMSPEHNZARD
H B A £ T 1518 31880,000,000 &R 5 (5
FEERBEERNMBEES(CEELBRE
B)TEKRECETRMDA10% K RARE
BHEETRMON722%) - BE ==
TE-RNE+_AZ+—HLEFEERTH
3t B $5500,000 B A% 15 B9 B8 A% #E S -
BEBRETS I TFTRITORMDEAEA
79,500,000 & & 1D (RRAFREREE
BITRMEI4718% °

A [ 7 IR BB IR TR 17 0 9B R 2
BERIIWT :

Number of underlying Shares comprised in options

BREFEENEBRGHA
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Lapsed/ as at
1 January Granted Exercised cancelled 31 December
2020 during the during the during the 2020 Exercise price
R-E-BF Year Year Year RW-E-ZF per Share
Name of option holder Position held in the Group  Date of grant -A-H KEER KEER REER +-A=t+-A SRikH
BRESHALE REASERANEL RTAA WA BRI BT BAN/HH EXE:d e
HK$
A
Mr. Fan Chi Chiu Chief financial officer 14 April 2016 500,000 - - 500,000 0.52
(‘Mr. Fan’)
BRBEE BIBaE ZZ-RERATEA
([EEL])

The options granted to Mr. Fan shall vest over a period of three
years commencing on the date of grant. The closing price of the
Shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$0.50 per
Share, as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange. Those options are exercisable from 14 April 2017 to
13 April 2026.
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The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as
follows:

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as
defined in paragraph 2 below) as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option
to subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board
may determine to any full-time or part-time employees,
potential employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, customers, agents and advisers who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
(the “Eligible Participants”).

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE

The maximum number of Shares in respect of the options
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes must not in aggregate
exceed 80,000,000 Shares (representing 10% of the
Shares in issue immediately upon completion of the Share
Offer (as defined in the Prospectus) and approximately
7.22% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this report).

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The maximum number of Shares comprising in the options
that may be granted under the Share Option Scheme to
any Eligible Participant shall not, when aggregated with

(@) any Shares issued upon exercise of options under
the Share Option Scheme or options under other
schemes which have been granted to that Eligible
Participant;
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(b) any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise
of outstanding options under the Share Option
Scheme or options under other schemes granted to
that Eligible Participant; and

(c) any cancelled Shares which were the subject of
options under the Share Option Scheme or options
under other schemes which had been granted to and
accepted by that Eligible Participant,

in any 12-month period up to the offer date, exceed 1%
of the number of Shares in issue on the offer date. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be
subject to:

() the issue of a circular by the Company to the
Shareholders, which shall comply with the Listing
Rules; and

(i)  the approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting
at which that Eligible Participant and his/her/its
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) shall
abstain from voting.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or an
INED, or any of their respective associates, would result
in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Shares in issue on the date of such grant; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in
excess of HK$5.0 million, such further grant of the options
shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders with
such person/entity and his/her/its core connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting in
favour at the general meeting.
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Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company, or any of their respective associates under
the Share Option Scheme is subject to the prior approval
of the INEDs (excluding the INED who is the grantee of an
option).

PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SECURITIES
MUST BE EXERCISED UNDER AN OPTION

Unless otherwise provided in the respective grantee’s
offer document, each of the grantees to whom an option
has been granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
be entitled to exercise his/her/its option in the following
manner:

(@ up to 33% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her/it (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the period
commencing on the first anniversary of the date on
which such option is granted (the “Commencement
Date”) and ending on the expiry of the period
to be notified by the Board to each grantee (the
“Option Period”), within which the option may be
exercisable provided that the Option Period shall not
exceed a period of ten years commencing on the
Commencement Date;

(b) up to 66% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her/it (rounded down to
the nearest whole number) at any time during the
period commencing on the second anniversary of the
Commencement Date and ending on the expiry of the
Option Period; and

(c) up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her/it (rounded down to
the nearest whole number) at any time during the
period commencing on the third anniversary of the
Commencement Date and ending on the expiry of the
Option Period.

5.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

MINIMUM PERIOD, IF ANY, FOR WHICH AN
OPTION MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BE
EXERCISED

There is no minimum period for which an option granted
must be held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
imposed by the Directors.

PERIOD FOR AND CONSIDERATION PAYABLE ON
ACCEPTANCE OF AN OPTION

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within
the time period specified in the relevant offer document.
A sum of HK$1.00 is payable as consideration upon
acceptance of the offer.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE EXERCISE PRICE

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an
Eligible Participant shall be determined by the Board (or its
committee) in its sole discretion, save that such price shall
not be less than the highest of:

(@) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in
securities (the “Business Day”);

(b) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five Business Days immediately

preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.

2020 Annual Report

MEREERTTEZASARAD
RAEHR (0A)

BRIFEZHITHMATE - BERPT
BREBREREEEATEZAIL
ARANREHR -

B EORRREMRE

REBRENBEYOVNBEECEEBEEY
NHETENEBEARNER - ZHE L
% - FEM1.008 TEABRE -

EETEROESE

REHETEER2EENZTNHBRE
MERITEEREREFS(HER
Ee)2®ETE ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁx%
BERATNRER

@ BEBH(EAHMIFHAM™IE
TRBAFRGEBNBAF(EE
BB T B XIRER AT
BB IERWTE:

(b) EHEF L HE B AT A E XA B
R BRBER I IE
A FHEHE: &

© MOHmEE -



9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 26 September 2014,

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option granted with details set out under
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing Shares; or (ii)
require the Company to enter into any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing Shares during the Year and
no such agreement subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES

Save as disclosed above in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the Year or at the end of the Year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable a Director to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of the Shares or any shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts (except for the executive Directors’ service
contracts) concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or
its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the Year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out
in notes 10 and 11, respectively to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in this annual report.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO”)), which were required: (i) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each

Name of Directors/Chief Executive

ES/BETHAGHRSR

Capacity/Nature of Interest

St/ BEtE

Number of Shares Held

FLAFESRERBITHRARARELF
RE#HBEENEG - HRRBRER
fHEPHESIRKR

R-ZZE_ZTF+_A=+—H ARAE
ERRSTHRABRALRAF S HE {48
BZEZE(EERBRBEVENERF N
HEE((RERPEERG ) EXVE) D

Bm - HERDREEERES: ()VBE
EHEENEEERMEXVEFETRED B A H

EARRFRRBR AN EGD SRR (BRER
ERBEESRHEGRINZFHRKE
f?&%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ’]% SRR R (i) R IR
& 7 N HIE R ] 5535216k 7R & i N+ 1R
Frise e mEmgoR A K (iRE £
MARAMMEE TS EMETAESHE
TREFR %ZT—/&#E'J(fﬁﬁ—rEUJ)/A
HMEARRA LI ANERIORRMT

AR A7 A E {E0.000178 7T 7 % 8 A 17
Z RS

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding Interest
in the Company

RO BE RARAREHFNEIL

Mr. Chau Interest in a controlled corporation
A% XEEEER

Mr. Chan Interest in controlled corporations
BREE REEE#ER
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Notes:

(1) Wealthy Sea Holdings Limited (“Wealthy Sea”) which held
225,000,000 Shares is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau, an
executive Director and the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”),
and Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr. Chau, respectively.

2 Everbest Environmental Investment Limited (“Everbest
Environmental”) which held 375,000,000 Shares was owned as to
50%, 30% and 20% by Ms. Wong Shu Ying (“Ms. Wong”), Ms. Judy
Chan and Mr. Chan, an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”), respectively.
Mr. Chan is the sole director of Everbest Environmental. Ms. Wong
is the mother of all of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan and Mr. Brian Chan,
the NED. Mr. Chan also owns 20% of the issued shares in Kingdrive
Limited which in turn owns 100% of the issued shares in Carlton Asia
Limited (“Carlton Asia”). Carlton Asia held 15,700,000 Shares and is
accustomed to act in accordance with the directions of Mr. Chan.

(8)  All the above Shares were held in long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares,
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or
entered in the register referred to in the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, the following entities or persons (other than the
Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or were
deemed or taken to have an interest and/or a short position
in the Shares or the underlying Shares, which would fall to be
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(2) Everbest Environmental Investment
Limited ([Everbest Environmentall) #*
375,000,000 & f& 5 I B £ i &E L+
(Exx]) BFELZEIRARANITES
FTHAHTTHRAERD R L+ 5 A #
B50% * 30% K%20% ° BR 5t & A Everbest
Environmental K —&E = - T2 AR
Zt BREERFHUTEESHRBBMREAE
& 2R o BR 5t & 75 #F A Kingdrive Limited
20% B E (TR {7 - M 5% 2 7] %k B Carlton
Asia Limited ([Carlton Asial) 100% & % 17
& {3 o Carlton Asia # 515,700,000 % % 1%
RIERIZBREENERITE ©
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15 B 5 XV BB B2 M 539 3B 89 6 1B H 3

disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV T sk 8 N IR 1B & %5 & H & 15 9] 336
of the SFO or which was recorded in the register required to be AR B BEENZLMABEZ &

kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Interest in the Company’s ordinary Shares of HK$0.0001 each RARRQE F M EEO0.000178 T i E @A 15

ZHE
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
Number of Interest in the
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Held Total Company
EARDR R E
REEZ /28 B/ REEE FrEROEE Ehy #aEskt
Everbest Environmental Beneficial interest 375,000,000( 375,000,000 33.87%
Enftn
Ms. Wong Beneficial interest 18,915,000 7
Iat Enftn - 402,580,000 36.36%
Interest in controlled corporations 383,665,000 _|
XBEEER
Mr. Chan Chun Keung Interest in a controlled corporation 8,665,0009 7
RERLE XEEEER - 402,580,000 36.36%
Interest held by spouse 393,915,000 _]
REMFER
Wealthy Sea Beneficial interest 225,000,0000! 225,000,000 20.32%
B Enftn
Ms. Wong Mei Ling Interest held by spouse 225,000,0000! 225,000,000 20.32%
IERTT RERFER
Morgan Top Trading Co., Ltd. Beneficial interest 143,300,000 143,300,000 12.94%
Enftn
Notes: Wi at
@) Each of Everbest Environmental and Hightop Investment Limited (1) Everbest Environmental & &I EHBR A
(“Hightop”) is owned as to 50% by Ms. Wong and therefore, Ms. A(Bk)SHhET LT HEAE50% Bt -
Wong is deemed to be interested in the 375,000,000 Shares and BREZFFRBEGRL  TLETHERBD
8,665,000 Shares held by Everbest Environmental and Hightop 7 Everbest Environmental ¥ &= & Fr 45 8 1
respectively pursuant to the SFO. Also, Ms. Wong is beneficially 375,000,000 % 28,665,000 & i 5 # # &
interested in 18,915,000 Shares. T2 o T Z 5 18,915,0000% A% {5

(2)  Hightop is also owned as to 50% by Mr. Chan Chun Keung, (2) @®BIIHAMEEBRTEEB 0% (ELLTH

the husband of Ms. Wong. Therefore, Mr. Chan Chun Keung is R At BEBHFRBERN - K
deemed to be interested in the 8,665,000 Shares held by Hightop, EREEWER BN =K AT A /8,665,000
375,000,000 Shares deemed to be held by Ms. Wong through f& B& - 18 A £ L& & & B Everbest
Everbest Environmental and 18,915,000 Shares beneficially owned by Environmental fT % /& #)375,000,000 A% fi%
Ms. Wong pursuant to the SFO. Mk T+ &= %A #R18,9150008% i 17

THEERER -
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Wealthy Sea is owned as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau, an executive
Director and the Chairman, and Ms. Wong Mei Ling, the wife of Mr.
Chau, respectively. Ms. Wong Mei Ling is, therefore, deemed to be
interested in the 225,000,000 Shares held by Wealthy Sea controlled
by Mr. Chau pursuant to the SFO.

(4)  All the above Shares were held in long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Directors were not aware of any entities which or persons (other
than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) who had,
or were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in
the Shares or the underlying Shares, which had been disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or were entered in the register kept by the
Company under the SFO.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES/PENSION
SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC are
required to participate in the central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions are
made by the Group based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes. The employer contributions vest fully with the
employees once made.
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Under the Indonesia Labour Law, companies are required to
pay separation, appreciation and compensation benefits to
their employees if the conditions specified in the Indonesia
Labour Law are met. The Company’s subsidiaries in Indonesia
estimate their liability for employee service entitlement benefits
in order to meet and cover the minimum benefits requirement
to be paid to employees under the Indonesia Labour Law. For
further information, please refer to note 35 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

No forfeited contributions were incurred during the Year. For
further information, please refer to note 35 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
adequate public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares
being held by the public) during the Year and up to the date of
this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the
ordinary course of business by the Group during the Year are
set out in note 36 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not conducted any “one-off
connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) which is
subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the
Listing Rules. Save for disclosed in note 36(a) and (b) to the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual
report, the transactions disclosed in note 36 to the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report as
related party transactions did not fall under the definition of
“‘connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) or are fully
exempt continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.73 of
the Listing Rules.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Ms. Judy Chan, Mr. Chan (an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer), Ms. Wong, Everbest Environmental (a
company owned by Ms. Wong, Ms. Judy Chan and Mr. Chan
as to 50%, 30% and 20%, respectively), Mr. Chau (an executive
Director and the Chairman) and Wealthy Sea (a company owned
as to 90% and 10% by Mr. Chau and his wife, respectively)
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) executed a
deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in
favour of the Company on 5 September 2014. Pursuant to the
Deed of Non-Competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders
has unconditionally and irrevocably agreed, undertaken to and
covenanted with the Company (for itself and for the benefits
of other members of the Group) that it/he/she would not, and
would procure its/his/her associates (other than members of
the Group) not to, directly or indirectly, either on its/his/her
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person,
firm or company, among other things, carry on, participate or
be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case
whether as a shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee
or otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any
activity or business which competes or is likely to compete,
directly or indirectly, with the business of operating wastewater
treatment facilities in the PRC by the Group as described
in the Prospectus and any other business from time to time
conducted, carried on or contemplated to be carried on by any
member of the Group or in which any member of the Group is
engaged or has invested or which any member of the Group has
otherwise publicly announced its intention to enter into, engage
in or invest in (whether as principal or agent and whether
undertaken directly or through any body corporate, partnership,
joint venture, or other contractual or other arrangement).

The Company has received from each of the Controlling
Shareholders an annual written declaration as to the compliance
with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition during the
Year. The INEDs had reviewed the compliance by each of the
Controlling Shareholders with the Deed of Non-Competition
and were not aware of the occurrence of any adverse event,
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

Directors’ Report

EEERE

AR FREE

BREZET BREE@RMITESTRITHRE
#,)+ £ %+ - Everbest Environmental (—
REATXZE:T BELETRBEEED R E
B50% - 30% &k20% &) A Al B %k A (R
TEERITRIABS—REBEALER
HEF DRI BIO% K10%H A 7)) (F T8
ERBRR)SEEAEEN T —NF
NAREBARARAMFET LR F X
BIFRRBEE]D) - RETHRFRE - T
BERESEBEKHERTAREHEE -
MARB(BEAGERAEBEMBEER
ANAR)AERRE  HITeRSRE
HBBA(REERKERABINTEE
BB AECH AR B RKR X
AL BHRKAR(HPBIE) #ET -
28 - {F UWEBEFEENEEXE
FEEBARERMAASEBEERELEN
SRKERRMEEL ARANEETAK
BRATHRA&S #ETRRETHASE
EETAKEARKRESIRESAEERT
AKX ERRIEAHEMESRY  KE
FRE(THmEBUNTIEATZKEASTH
PTHetEESBRBEMEABEE -
A AERAIREMAEHKE ML
ETWEMNEMEEBFXAERFED
EMEBDXEBIREFHEEER(ES
EBERT et URE B ABA -
REBA - BEEXEMEHBRTHAEF
HEIKEMARN) -

RAFEAR ARAERESEERRR
REBTIABEFREERFANFEESEE R
Mo BYFHNEFTCEHNSEBRBRRE
TTBEFRBEZENRLREEELMAD
MEANELE HEEIERBRRRE
FEYTEERTHFZIE -

BRERERERAF —E-EEER

111



\\\‘ W :
»&K\\w« 4; »’//

A;lr

%

e

— —

e

Directors’ Report

EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors is considered to have interests in a business (apart
from the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group and has any other conflicts of interest, as required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above and in note 36 to the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report,
no controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance (whether for the provision of services to the Group
or not) to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil
or criminal, in which judgement is given in his/her favour, or
in which he/she is acquitted. In addition, proper insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against the Directors’
liability has been arranged. The relevant provisions in the
Articles of Association and the Directors’ liability insurance were
in force during the Year and as at the date of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of
any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult
their professional advisers.
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 114 (31 December
2019: 116) employees (including the Directors). Employee costs,
including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately
HK$13.2 million for the Year (2019: approximately HK$18.6
million). The remuneration policy for the Directors, senior
management members and general staff is based on their
experience, level of responsibility, length of service and general
market conditions. Any discretionary bonus and other merit
payments are linked to the financial results of the Group and
the individual performance of the Directors, senior management
members and general staff.

The Group provides on-the-job training where appropriate.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 5
September 2014 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants including the directors and
employees of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company did not redeem its Shares listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company
or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such Shares.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance policies and
practices adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 61 to 91 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph
C.3 of the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing and
providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal controls. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda (who is also the chairlady of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Ng Man Kung and Ms. Leung Bo Yee
Nancy, all being the INEDs. The Audit Committee has reviewed
with the Company’s management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the annual audited
consolidated results of the Group for the Year.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in
Directors’ information since the date of the 2020 interim report
of the Company are set out below:

Mr. Ng Man Kung resigned as an independent non-executive
director of each of Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (stock
code: 755) and Guoan International Limited (stock code: 143)
with effect from 11 January 2021 and 26 February 2021,
respectively.

The annual emolument of Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian has been
reduced to HK$100,000 since July 2020.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report

tERER

ARBFEM 2z TEEREABEKRED

ZHBENAFRENAZINEZNEE
BWE o

HEREETTFMN

AARIEER EMBNEI2ME R ET
HMAIMEE T UE 2 > EEATRIECS

BRIBEZZEE EREBHREER
SEMNMHBRRERF  BEREERAR

EH e RABREAY  ERZESER
ZZRE HBIUFATEFOHERL
TETETERZESIR) RXH

%I&%?ﬂ%ﬁi ﬁff??,\aﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁi

RAEEEENASBRMRAN TR
AIREHARAEERAFENFEL
BERERARE -

R LR AE13.51B1)IEEME
=EH

R15 E IR AIB1.51BME - EEEAA
A-T-TEREHREAHURNER
BHBFMT

SRXHELEBITLEBIARHERBRA
ﬂ(ﬂ&f’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ-755)&!?!5%%@“—
(R 143 BILIERITES
AME-_ZE-_—F—A+—BR=-ZT_— ¢
ZAZFRBEER -

RENRCTENFEFMHEBE-_T_FF
+ A # B £100,000 7T ©



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the
independent auditor of the Group with effect from 26 November
2019. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”) was
appointed as the independent auditor of the Company with
effect from 12 December 2019 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of Deloitte.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year have been audited by Baker Tilly, which will retire and,
being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming
2021 AGM. Having been approved by the Board upon the
Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint
Baker Tilly as the independent auditor of the Company and to
authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed
at the forthcoming 2021 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chau On Ta Yuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R EENRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 125 to 259, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,
judgement,

in our professional
were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
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opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter

ARETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMNBANAHBERETETRETER

Imputed interest income on receivables under service concession arrangements

BRT6 15 F #E & HF T JE W 50 TR #E B BR A

Refer to notes 4, 5 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

FEHEENBHEN T4 5K 16

We identified recognition of imputed interest
income on receivables under service concession
arrangements as a key audit matter due to the
significant estimation made by the Group’s
management.

Y BEXREEEEMEEAMG  BAKREE
MAEZHTREFENHEENSMARE SRR

u‘l’%lg\ °

Imputed interest income from wastewater treatment
facilities under the terms of build-operate-transfer
(the “BOT”) arrangement is recognised from time
to time on receivables under service concession
arrangements on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by discounting the
estimated future cash receipts over the service
concession period at the estimated effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition.
BRESARLHETHRERBRBEIREERERN
EERBFGEEBMABER — £% — BR(BOT)
ZHRRT ﬁmﬁﬁ ME RN B A - I
B ERFTENGTERNEA RSB
AT ARRE S W AR -

Our procedures in relation to recognition of imputed
interest income on receivables under service
concession arrangements included:
BPRERBRB SR TRERKE
QWA%HWEF e

X IR B B R

o Examining the related BOT agreements entered
into between the governments and the Group
to assess the appropriateness of the related
accounting treatment adopted by the Group;

and
ETRNE S£EFTLMEBEBOTHE @ MU
T BEERERMEMNEBESTRENEE T
54

° Evaluating the reasonableness of estimated
effective interest rate for the imputed
interest income on receivables under service
concession arrangements by benchmarking
against market data.
UMSEEREETMEREHFIFELTEETRE
WHENHENBWANEFERNENE
B
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BB AR E
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HRRRFRERERATRRE
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (RASHETMRINERRAT)
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d) RBE=ERE)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRESSHE BN ETNAHRARETSHETERE

Imputed interest income on receivables under service concession arrangements

BR 75 15 5F #E & B T JE W 55 TR 18 B BK A

Refer to notes 4, 56 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

FEHGEEHBHENT4 5K 16

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised imputed interest
income on receivables under services concession
agreements of HK$14,550,000, during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
MEENBRENTMBEE -  HE_T_FF
+TZA=T—BLEE X ESEBERREET
W BE T R W SR IE B B N B A R14,550,000
BIT o
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter
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HRRBRERERLARR
(RHASHBEMAINERDA)
REFEEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANBFEANAHARESSTRETER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

WHE - BE KRB E TS

Refer to notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements

FEHGEE N BHREMT 4R 15

We identified impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter
due to the significant judgements made by the
management in assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”), which are
derived from value in use calculations using
discounted cash flow model.

MY BEEEEEREEAENGREELBEM(REE

FEMDWAROeR(HMRERERREAERE
REEEE)REFELERAE  HASYE B

EhkEHELEEBRETLHEESBEEAEE -
Management’s impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment is highly judgemental and is
dependent on certain key assumptions including
the discount rate, growth rates, budgeted sales and
gross margin, which are affected by expected future
market or economic conditions, particularly those in
the Republic of Indonesia (“Indonesia”).

EEEBEHME BMEEREBENREFEBREIR

EARHE  MZABIORRE ?Eyﬁ“’&%
MRER-ERRLAFHEREMNX it & ]G
XEHRARAKTHEREEBRAMZE tﬁ%ﬂf

JEPa s KANE (TENJE ) B9 R SR 7 35 2 EL AR iR

Qur procedures in relation to impairment

assessment of property, plant and equipment

included:

B E - BEMR
BIE

Rt B RUE R A R AV R P

° Understanding the Group’s impairment
assessment process, including the impairment
model, preparation of the cash flow projections
and involvement of an independent valuer
appointed by the Group;

TH ESEERENGHNRA &(%Hﬁﬁﬂ
RenEldilnGaEREEk EEEZENE T
H{ERTHY 2 ) ;

° Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capability and objectivity and
assessing its valuation methodology;
BB EEMONERE e W REH U
KA EMGETE:
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R EENRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

MREITER

HRRBRERERLARR
(RHASHBEMAINERDA)
REFEEHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANBFEANAHARESSTRETER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

WH - BE R R HE B E TS

Refer to notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements

FEHEEHBHREMT 4R 15

An independent qualified professional valuer is
engaged to assess the recoverable amount of the
CGU.

ERERF BBV EREEGEMIMReE
HABRRAIIE S -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no
impairment loss was recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment after assessing the
recoverable amount of CGU which is principally
engaged in the biomass power generation business
in Indonesia.
BHE_ZT_TF+_A=+—RHLFE RFIHR
TEABUAWESRBECHYE  BFELREE
RIEBEFREEE MEcELAEUFZHEHNER
EEMEREERK -
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Evaluating the appropriateness of impairment
model applied by the management;
AEEEEERREELNBEL:

Evaluating the accuracy of the management’s
cash flow forecasts by comparing the actual
results of the CGU to the previously forecasted
results;
FRBReELEUNE R R E L ATEA
HERETHEE UFHEEEMNRSRETR
BB LEREE

Assessing the reasonableness of growth
rates and discount rate applied in the forecast
based on historical experiences and trends;
BEBEALRBRELBEFHEANZEANTH
BRERRENABY:

Comparing the budgeted sales and gross
margin against historical performance and the
management’s business plan in respect of the
CGU; and
REEHERENETERBEAERENEEER
ReELEEMIERNEBTEETHE K

Evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by
management on the key assumptions as stated
above and assessed the potential impacts of a
range of possible outcomes.
AHEEER P RBARRRETHRRED
MR A EREENBEETE -



TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R EENRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY R EENRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wan Wing Ping.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021

Wan Wing Ping
Practicing certificate number P07471
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

REBRHER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 il 2 —E = FF+ - A=+ —HIFE

NOTES 2020 2019
e =F=%F _—FT-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Revenue EEIWA 5 59,017 77,473
Cost of sales RN (29,399) (43,552)
Gross profit EH 29,618 33,921
Other income and net gains E U A KU ES 7 5,329 13,403
Administrative expenses THRAX (27,867) (28,213)
Finance costs ELE= DN 8 (1,984) (2,073)
Profit before tax B A% B4 A 9 5,096 17,038
Income tax expense FreRiAx 12 (6,581) (7,438)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(E18) & F (1,485) 9,600
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: WA N & ERER
(B8, & :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NSIE =N (4,956) 970
Non-controlling interests JEVERE R 3,471 8,630
(1,485) 9,600
HK cent HK cent
B AL Bl
(Loss)/earnings per share k(&8 & 14
— Basic — B (0.45) 0.09
— Diluted — g (0.45) 0.09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBakHEMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

2020 2019
—B-BHF _—ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Loss)/profit for the year FA(EER),&F (1,485) 9,600
Other comprehensive income/ Htrz2mWB A (BA%)
(expense)
Iltems that may be reclassified BEEABEER DB E B o )R
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBEECELEZR
translation of foreign operations 17,245 (6,046)
Investment revaluation reserve HEZBEMEZERSEAA
released upon disposal of debt B EnNEBEIAERRERD
instruments at fair value through REEHFE
other comprehensive income 84 78
Item that will not be reclassified to profit # 1~ &SEX 7 ZEamayEH :
or loss:
Actuarial loss of defined benefit AERNERARTE ZBEEEBE
retirement plan (4) (194)
Total comprehensive income FRAEZEBALE
for the year 15,840 3,438
Total comprehensive income/ LNTE&FEEERZEBA
(expense) for the year attributable to: (F>) 4%
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIE =N 10,385 (4,581)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR A 2 5,455 8,019
15,840 3,438

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated BEM M s B ARG A M HREN — 3D -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2020 R—F - FF+_-H=+—H

NOTES 2020 2019
Bt = —E-EF TR F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BENEE 15 73,470 71,423
Deposits paid for purchase of property, BEEW¥ - MENMKRE
plant and equipment pARENE: & 897 1,280
Receivables under service concession RIEEHFELZHTH
arrangements JE U 3k I8 16 292,899 282,308
Goodwill B 17 - —
Debt instruments at fair value through & BEME2EKRFIZ A
other comprehensive income REFENEBKIA 18 3,380 3,390
Other financial assets at amortised cost % ## §4 5 N 51 & &Y
Hh&mEE 19 2,038 =
Restricted bank deposits SR ERITER 21 6,015 6,070
378,699 364,471
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 964 613
Receivables under service concession  RI4FFE LT HE THE
arrangements W sk I8 16 21,883 18,182
Prepayments and other receivables AR RIE R EM
JE U 3k I8 20 10,175 10,612
Income tax recoverable A Y Bl B 15 B 771 776
Debt instruments at fair value through  #@HEME2EWFIZ QD
other comprehensive income AEFENEHEIA 18 1,592 15,128
Other financial assets at amortised cost % # #45 NzT 8 &)
Hh&mEE 19 6,215 —
Restricted bank deposits X PR #I 3R 1715 3 21 6,015 6,070
Bank balances and cash BrrEsa kB € 21 51,067 64,074
98,682 115,455
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEER
Trade payables 2 S RIE 22 2,764 3,003
Other payables and accruals H b B B &
EEtE A 23 6,491 11,067
Amounts due to related parties JE 1< BB BSk 5 BK IR 24 13,406 8,986
Bank borrowings RITE K 25 20,240 20,240
Lease liabilities ME&aE 26 547 525
Income tax payable FERT TSR 2,213 5,408
45,661 49,229
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 53,021 66,226
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBARE
LIABILITIES 431,720 430,697
BRBRIZERERAA —ECEEER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MBERRER
As at 31 December 2020 R —F - FF+—-H=+—H
NOTES 2020 2019
Pt 5 —B-%f ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FAET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARARGHE
Share capital fig A 29 111 111
Reserves 1 30 345,025 345,713
Equity attributable to owners of the AAREBANEGER
Company 345,136 345,824
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR HE 2 30,028 31,892
TOTAL EQUITY ERBRE 375,164 377,716
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEME
Bank borrowings RITIER 25 2,240 4,480
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 472 1,019
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIABE 27 35,774 33,331
Provision for major overhauls BERBREEE 28 16,656 13,147
Retirement benefit obligations RIREAEE 35 1,414 1,004
56,556 52,981
431,720 430,697
The consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 259 were #1258 £250B MG A B R E K E S
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on @R -_ZE-—F=A=+—B#t L FE#E
31 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: FZ WHETIATRBEESE:
Chau On Ta Yuen Chan Kwan
BAZER BR &
Chairman Executive director
ey HITEFE
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated BEM M i B ARG A MIBEHREN —3 D -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERSEX

As at 31 December 2020 R—F - FF+_-H=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAEEARE
Share Investment Non—
Share Share option Other Exchange General  revaluation  Accumulated controling
capital premium Teserve Teserve Tesere Tesere Teserve losses ~ Sub—total Interests Total

Re o RhEE  BRERE  E4BRE  EXEE  -REE RESGBR  EHER b FERER at
HK$ 000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HKS1000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
Thn TEn T#n T Thn T T#n T TAn T S

[note 30(A)) (note 308)
(30 GEX)
Asat 1 January 2019 HoF-nE
-f-H " 408,558 121 (31,476) 6,209) 2,10 (16) (42,29) 350,503 23813 374,376
Profi for the year Enigfl - = S = = - - 910 90 8630 8600
Bxchange differences arising £ £HEE
on translafion of foreign LELER
operations - - - - (5,435) - - - (5,435) [611) (6,046)
Investment revaluation reserve  HEF B (62 Ek
released upon disposal sEDLEHEN
of debt nstruments at BRTAGRRY
far valug through other REEHRR
comprehensive income - - - - S = 8 - 8 - 8
Actuarialloss of defned~~~ REBIEAGHE 2
benefi etirement plan BEEE = = - - - 5 5 (19 (194 - (194
Totel comprehensive En2ERR)/
(expense)/income for YaaE
the year - - - - (5,439) - 1] 176 4.581) 8,019 3438

Repurchase of ordinary LEhnE
shares = (%) - - - - = = (%8) = (%)

Tensferto general resere. ERE-HER - - - - 48 - (£19) = S
- %) - - - 48 - "y %) - (%)

Asat3iDecember 2019 WZE-AE
t2h=1-H " 408,460 121 (31,476) (11,644) 2,18 62 (41,938 345,824 31,892 371,116

BREREREBRLQF —ERCRERR 129



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERSEX

As at 31 December 2020 R —F - FF+—-H=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

KEEEARE
Share Investment Non-
Share Share option Other  Exchange General  revaluation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total

Bx RBEE  BREEE  RHRE  EXER  -RBRE REEGRR  ZHER Mt fERER it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Thn TEL TEn Tén TEL TEL TEn Thn TEL TEn TEn

(note 30(A) (note 30(B))
(E30(A) R
Asat 1 January 2020 H-5-%%
-A-H il 408,460 12 (31,476) (11,644) 2128 62 (41,938) 345,824 31,892 311,116
(Loss)proftfortheyear ~ ER(ER) /& - - - - - - o (4,956) (4,956) 34 (1,485)
Exchange differences arisng #8850 2R EE
on translaton of foreign LELER
operations - - - - 15,261 - - - 15,261 1,084 11,245
Investment revaluation reserve  HEFBE {2 TN
released upon disposal BELA BN
of debt nstruments at ERTAKERY
fair value through other REERER
comprehensive income - - - - - - 84 s 8 = 8
Actuarialloss of defned ~~~ REBIEAGHE 2
bene retrement plan BEEB - - - - - - S {4 4 o (4
Total comprehensive EnzE(RR)/
(expense)/income for Dt
the year - - - - 15,261 - 84 (4,960) 10,385 5,455 15,840
Tensferto general reseree. ERZ-RER - - - - - 2,480 - (2,480) - - -
Dividends recognised s~~~ BB AL
dstrbuton frote 13) s () - - - - - - - (11,073 (11,073 - (11,073)
Divdends paid to non— BREERRR
controling interests Eake - - - - - - - - - (7319 (7,319
- - - - - 2480 Y I I . ]
AsatdiDecember 2020 W-E-%E
tA=1-A 1 408,460 121 (31,476) 3,617 24,608 146 (60,451) 345,136 30,028 375,164

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated BEM M i B A 4G A M HREN — 3D o
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éfﬁ. %ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 il 2 —E = FF+ - A=+ —HIFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Operating activities KRETE
Profit before tax Br #5 AT v A 5,096 17,038
Adjustments for: HUATEBEELRE:
Bank interest income |ATH B A (947) (1,074)
Interest income from debt instruments at ~ #F@EM 2 ER R
fair value through other comprehensive BEARETERN
income BT AR B A (817) (1,341)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- BERXENE
equipment 4,468 3,940
Provision for major overhauls BEARIEBE 1,771 1,692
Finance costs ELE= N 1,984 2,073
Loss on disposal of debt instruments at HEFBEMEEKZE
fair value through other comprehensive BEARBETERN
income BETANEBE 84 78
Gain on disposal on property, plant and HEME  BEKEZBERE
equipment (44) —
Contribution to defined benefit retirement 57 & Fll 38 7Kk 51 2 &%
plans 399 430
Waiver of other payables e B Ah FE S FRIA (641) =
Loss on modification of other financial EMIREEN AT ENHE
assets measured at amortised cost HmeEmEEEA 2 EE 471 =
Operating cash flows before movements in Kzt & EE S E BTN K&
working capital fﬁ/i\ mE 11,824 22 836
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOgm )/))369\ (351) 115
Decrease in receivables under service HE?“H .ﬁ ELZHETH
concession arrangements & W KA Jﬁk’/ 8,845 8,169
Decrease in trade receivables féf%lﬂ%l T - 8,018
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and izl ﬁ T)\ IE&ET‘@J,EW FRIE
other receivables /(4 hn) 437 (3,227)
Decrease in trade payables f’f%J’EH R IR R, (239) (1,968)
Decrease in retirement benefit obligations R K& F & 5 TP (1) (457)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and EI@VH KIE K EEHE A
accruals /i" hn (4,732) 3,385
Cash generated from operations REEEXENRE 15,783 36,871
Income tax paid BT ER (9,556) (2,166)
Net cash from operating activities RETHELENEESTE 6,227 34,705
BRBRIZERERAA —ECEEER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEBEERER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 i 2 —E L F+=-H =+ —HI FE
2020 2019
—EZEF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Investing activities REEE
Purchases of debt instruments at fair value B E & B HM 2 EK 2
through other comprehensive income BARBFENEKEIA (1,592) (10,152)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BE W% - ME & K& (6,724) (16,042)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEW¥ MERRED
and equipment Fr 8 sk 8 57 =
Proceeds from disposal of debt instruments & & 8 & @ Uk 25
at fair value through other comprehensive & A BT & &)
income & TRMERIE 15,955 24,228
Purchase of other financial assets at BEREHKATED
amortised cost HthemEE (8,724) —
Bank interest received 2R 1T H B 947 1,074
Net cash used in investing activities RETEBHRANREFE (81) (892)
Financing activities Al & 5E B
Repayment to a related party [ —HRER T ER (845) (6,580)
New loan from a related party KE— BB FTER 4,680 12,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEK (20,240) (44,776)
Repayment of lease liabilities BRESEAEE (575) (96)
Interest paid EXNEUESS (569) (1,267)
Payment on repurchase of shares 6] % % 17 89 1< 5K — (98)
New bank borrowings raised iERITER 18,000 30,268
Dividend paid ERRE (10,276) —
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests & < 3 28 i% % 38 %5 A% B (7,319) =
Net cash used in financing activities RMETEBRANREFE (17,144) (10,549)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRREEEY
cash equivalents CRL &), /18 0% % (10,998) 23,264
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERESEEY
beginning of the year 64,074 44,317
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, INEEEZBHTE  FH
net (2,009) (3,507)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESRHESEEY
the year 51,067 64,074
Represented by: 1
Bank balances and cash RITHB IR S 51,067 64,074
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated BEM M i B A 4G A M HREN — 3D o
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &t 2 — L~ ZE4F+ - A=+ —HI F&F

GENERAL INFORMATION

ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands and the principal place of business
of the Company is Unit 5, 7th Floor, Westlands Centre, 20
Westlands Road, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 38.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT
YEAR

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020, for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
EBGFENEIHEE B G ERFE85 (5] &)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 ‘
BB HREEREIFUEETA)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
& 01 15 39 5 R 0% - BB & +HERI£30%
RE AW BB EERBETHR (BT A)

—RE#H

BRERRIERBERAR(ARRF)
R-EERSESTMAZNE
REERETRAA  ERMHRE B
BMEXSMBRARTER A L
Me RARAIWEMBPERM U R
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands ' A ARIHE B &
HEAL N BB ER B0 ERP L
TSE o

ARABRBREZEBRAR - EE EMH
BARNERABE MM GESS °

FaPBHRRABTTET)INE
BILMREARARNEEE -

RRAEEIEEMBEREEN(E
AMEHmELER])

REFERAERZCTEMGHRE
ERBETE

RAFEE AR5 R EHB QA (G
MRIAEEDEREAZTEYE R
FREAFHIERN S| AOERT A
ETimEEesdmrg(&EEE
AR R E ) B2 BIEFT BB R
BRELN(ER-ZZE-_TF—-H—H
k2 1% 5 46 B 4F 2 H3 TR 98 I A 30
NREBAEBOEEMBRE:

Definition of Material

BEANER

Definition of a Business

EBMER

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

I EEE e

BRERERERAF —E-EEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. FHEETEEMERSEN(E
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BMEREERN]E)
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE REFEERPERCERMBERE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT HEBMERTH (#4F)

YEAR (Cont’d)

The application of the Amendments to References to RAFERERRBEAV B RELERF

the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the BMSERDNS ARSI R EEET

amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has no material EAUBREENHAEEBXRFE

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for W BHREMEBNBERLEE R

the years presented. 2o

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE EEGEARENCHITIETEMRE

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE REENREETE

The Group has not early applied the following new and AEESERAER T EEME

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not MR A2 ¥R B S B I iR £ R

yet effective: REBFTA:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related

Amendments!

BB R EERE17IR ReEEHREBIER

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*

BB R EER F165 (BET &) Covid-19/H 8 2 H & = %4

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

BB %S ER B35 (BF ) BL S HE SR HY 5] A2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 25
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

EENBRELEAFEIN  BEALFTERAFEI0MR - FEREENEFE — FoRERS

EEMBHRELNETR BEMBREER
FAR R BB | E LR E165% (BT A

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?
BB BRELEAF109 R E B G ER FE285% REERHEHBEQNANGELECANEED
(3T =) RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. BRAEEITEEMERSEN(E
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BMEREERN]E)
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE CHEGERRENZHITETENE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Cont’d) REENREERTE(F)

Amendments to HKAS 1

ARG ENFIRUEETX)

Amendments to HKAS 16
BB g ERFE165 (B FTX)
Amendments to HKAS 37
FE SR ERIEI7H (BRI A)

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB HREER(EBETA)

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)"

HEESERARBLIERBUARE EREESR
ZEBAET(ZE_Z4)

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

WE - BENMRE — BREREAZAERIER

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

BEAH — BT AHZRA?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20202
BEAVBHREEN T -—NFE_T-TFIF
[E o2

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 1 RZBEZ=F—A—HB2%HAKBZ
2023. FEBMMEER -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZTEZZF—-—HA—Hkz®&RABZ
2022. FREBMMAER -
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 8 REEETHRBX 2 ERBENFE
determined. HARAER -
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. 4 RZEZTFANA—BszERABZ
FEHMAER -
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 5 RZEZ—F—A—Hzkz®&FABZ
2021. FEBMMEER -
The directors of the Group anticipate that the application of AREBEEHEAERRBABHITIRE
all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material B BARAEV B HRELERARRK
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the BT EHREVBERRELEERY

foreseeable future.

Z2 o
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Al BEERXZEHNEEREX

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Al BEERXZEHNEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT EETBR(#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.2 EXEEK
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION e
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the REMBRRBEARARIZAR
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled AIRENBRARZESNE RN B
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved WK -WBUATER  AIARGEE
when the Company: 15 1= I
e has power over the investee; e FHBKRBEFITEEN:
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its . EGFHREFTEBEMES
involvement with the investee; and _JZ ﬁ M HKE A&
Wk
e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. s AHRNTEHENUFZEHE
#H oo
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee MEERBERLER LM =IEFHEHE
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes EFM—HIZEHRE L K&
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. BEeEFilmERTERHIEER -
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains AEBERESHE QR AIE IR
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses BzBARGAAR  TRAE
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses B AR IES R FELELGEA
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are BERmNE FRARKEBEILHEWRBEA
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from ANBARAIERAEEESFEMN
the date the Group gains control until the date when the BRralziZEdfl#EEBRFAALZEE
Group ceases to control the subsidiary. RREASEETHIEHMNBARE
HALE -
Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income EahkHEtzERaNSEEE R
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the BRARRINEAARIEZRER -
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of MBARZEKZAEREBERNAR
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and ﬁ E’] %‘ BARIEEREL - BIE I
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non- BHEERERBBALAERR -

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Cont’d)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s CGUs (or groups of CGUs) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not larger
than an operating segment.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
GOODWILL (Cont’d)

A CGU (or groups of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
whenever there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the CGU (or groups of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or groups of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the
portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”). In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Cont’d)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

CONTRACTS WITH MULTIPLE PERFORMANCE
OBLIGATIONS (INCLUDING ALLOCATION OF
TRANSACTION PRICE)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services
to the customer.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

OVER TIME REVENUE RECOGNITION: MEASUREMENT
OF PROGRESS TOWARDS COMPLETE SATISFACTION
OF A PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION

INPUT METHOD

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts
or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation
relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

EXISTENCE OF SIGNIFICANT FINANCING COMPONENT

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component.
A significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.
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ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

OVER TIME REVENUE RECOGNITION: MEASUREMENT
OF PROGRESS TOWARDS COMPLETE SATISFACTION
OF A PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION (Cont’d)

REVENUE FROM CONSTRUCTION SERVICE OF
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES AND POWER
PLANT FACILITIES

Revenue from provision of construction services of
wastewater treatment facilities and power plant facilities
are derived from long-term contracts with customers. Such
contracts are entered into before the services begin. Under
the term of contracts, the Group is contractually required to
perform the services at the customers’ specified sites that
the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on input method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

LEASING
DEFINITION OF A LEASE

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed. As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ materially
from individual leases within the portfolio.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASING (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

U an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

BT BR(AF)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) EXErtE (M)
LEASING (Cont'd) HE(E)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d) KEBERBAHN(E)
Right-of-use assets (Cont'd) EREEE(Z)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any FREEBERKATE  BEEM

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of

R FERBEBR IREESR
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lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating THEHEaE WHERSHOF
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the EAGEE AAEBEeFERRME
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement ERFHBMNERERNEGFEMR
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily EfTHRIRE -

determinable.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASING (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Contd)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

U the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

3. FAMBBRZERNEEREX
BB %)

3.2 EXEstBE(HE)
HE(#E)
REEERAHNA(E)
HEBEHE)

HEMNREE:

& E N R (B EE E TN ®)
AR W E R R

BORRIEBA MR ZHE
MFRRHABBEHERERE
R A R E

AEEBHEMNOR R EEE
RERE

MAREAEEEHTERBE
BEENTEE R

RIEHEMNERSBNEE
HRBREAEEIEITERIEHE
EHEERE) -

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASING (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Cont’d)

Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
LEASING (Cont’d)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Contd)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Al BEERZENEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BRI RR(#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2 EXErIBIR(#)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES S

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group REEEZENEEEBNM B RE
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional B UiZ BRI EBAINEE (S
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised ﬁ%)tﬁfﬂﬁx%ﬁz?&% HE R IRFTE
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the EER - REREHK - LAINE T
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary BENEKIBEBEUE E AREEBR®
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated MITEXEHRE - UINKEHER
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was FEEKAGFENFERKBEBETTE
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms g o

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary HERBEFHMESKEBEREELSNE
items, and on the re-translation of monetary items, are HEBRELEHERBRAER -

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial REJNGEEMBEHRE ZIS % &8
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s MEERBEBEHUASHREHARNIA
operations are translated into the presentation currency of TEEXHEASAEE E’J;JﬂJ B (A
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates Bor) MUt A KB I8 B Bl DA HA S
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and FHEXRETHRE - FIEEME X
expenses items are translated at the average exchange ZR(WHAAREMEEKAER
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are jif%?r FFAEHBEE THER (T
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated ERTRBRIFERESR) -

in equity under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal REEENERBIREREENE
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a INEH 2 AE#EZ KBS iﬁ&?&
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that ZH—FHBEBIINEBZHER
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an *%ll - RBLLEREERE *&
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes BERNREMEEZBINEB 2 EE
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a THHBE AR ER K REART
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated BEABGZEBRNER R ZM
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the FEREZRET»BEEEZR -

owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Cont’d)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income and net gains”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Al BEERZENEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BETBR(#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2 EXErIBIR(#)
RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS AND TERMINATION R KR F B A K B BB 4R R
BENEFITS
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan are M) 7 B8 i SR K 18 A 5 8 80 1~ 3k
recognised as expenses when employees have rendered & ,E\Tmf R < 15 5 & #E W ER EZ$
service entitling them to the contributions. HREERARX
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of HRATRMNERKENGE - EH#
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit BRFHKASRBERESEANE
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at NETFUEE TESREFERS
the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, HARPTHRERE EFFE(BE
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the %ﬁ Sm EELR(MER Z3%
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on FENFEEEDR(TEIEFNR))
plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in ERGEEBRARRE IR
the consolidated statement of financial position with a charge HEAHHBEREMEZEHKREER R
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the XHFER - REMEEKEER
period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised CEFHENERREEN R -
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in BresimoEsiEa BERE
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. BOATIRGTEMET IR B R o
Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period MEFEDNEARBVERTREF
of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying BEXNEEFEMREAE

the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: AERBAMKADEOT

e service cost (including current service cost, past service e RBAA(BIERARBKAR -
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and ARG AR KA R EE
settlements); 2wk EE)

e netinterest expense or income; and e FERMITHWAFE: K

*  remeasurement. e FEHEE -

The Group presents the first two components of defined AEBE K EMIERERMKAR 2]

benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item. Curtailment RIEZHCER - FHEERKE RE

gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. BUABERBKARAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS AND TERMINATION
BENEFITS (Cont’d)

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group’s defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions
to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.

SHORT-TERM AND OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Al BEERZENEEREX

154

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
of all non-market vesting condition is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
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estimate of the number of equity instruments expected O GETESEREENES
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market TEHBzZH - BT RARHTZ
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original FEWMARBRARR UEFER

estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit/loss before tax”
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are non-recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Al BEERZENEEREX

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
TAXATION (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date
of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
TAXATION (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of under construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Al BEERZENEEREX

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BETBR(#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2 EXErIBE(HE)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) M- - BERREGE)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3. WAEMBBRZREHEEREX

Eat R ()
EXEat R ME)
ME BERRBURERAEEE

A 3% 1B

RERERR  AEERMNEER
FHERNYE BELRREBAR
EREEENKRAE BEREA
PRENEEESHBEMERBE
MHBRERNZEFTR BEHETE
EMRAIKOeE AETEREESRE
(mABE)ZEE -

ME BMEMIHBUARGEHEEE
EE R A ET AT W B € 58 fiw T RE A
AIEETAT kD & 56 - AEEAE
HREEMMBZREELEMNZA
e s % -

REREeELEEMETRE ﬁ'JW% :
MR EE - R 2o EEEE
XEE E’“@Biﬁfﬁfﬁiﬁiﬁu
TE‘JAﬁﬁﬁﬁiz/\ﬁ BB &

EokEm/I 2R EEEMHER -
ARESHERCEEEMEZR 2

EABNNREEFEMARET
VWEHEBRSELAEMNIRESESE
BAAR 2 REEETLER -

AT Bl & 5B AN R E R D SR AN KR 58 A
BEZREE RAHEREER &
STEERESRETVIRARATANIR XA
ZHRE ZURERUEEREEE
BTG R R AR RERERE
ZIEFHELRABRCEE (HReELE
i) 2 FEERkg -

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER

159

;fé

—



NIV
WAT
V¥ 7

/W',’/;/,

L
&

-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. Al BEERXZEHNEEREX

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group
of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUSs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUSs) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
CONSIDERATION GIVEN BY THE GRANTOR

A financial asset (receivable under service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that (a) the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the
construction services rendered and/ or the consideration
paid and payable by the Group for the right to charge users
of the public service; and (b) the grantor has little, if any,
discretion to avoid payment, usually because the agreement
is enforceable by law. The Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to
pay the Group (a) specified or determinable amounts or (b)
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users
of the public service and specified or determinable amounts,
even if the payment is contingent on the Group ensuring
that the infrastructure meets specified quality of efficiency
requirements. The financial asset (receivable under service
concession arrangement) is accounted for in accordance
with the policy set out for “Financial instruments” below.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)
OPERATING SERVICES

Revenue and costs relating to operating services are
accounted for in accordance with the policy for “Revenue
from contracts with customers”.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TO RESTORE THE
INFRASTRUCTURE TO A SPECIFIED LEVEL OF
SERVICEABILITY

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil
as a condition of its licence, that is (a) to maintain the
wastewater treatment facilities it operates to a specified
level of serviceability and/or (b) to restore the plants to
a specified condition before they are handed over to the
grantor at the end of the service concession arrangement.
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the
wastewater treatment facilities are recognised and measured
in accordance with the policy set out for “Provisions” below.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all costs of completion and
cost necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liabilities
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liabilities,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont’d)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL’), except that at initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

(1)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont’d)

(if)

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method,
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying
amount of these debt instruments are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in profit or loss
with corresponding adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying amounts of
these debt instruments. When these debt instruments
are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other income and net gains” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including
other receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements, debt instruments at FVTOCI, other financial
assets at amortised cost, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period. Assessments are done based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the end of the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #AMEREZECZHENEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BRI R(#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2 EXErBE(HE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) ©RTA(#E)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d) T EE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd) CREEZREGE)

()  Significant increase in credit risk 15 B B b 78 1L i1

—
=

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased Rt B 7R AREER

significantly since initial recognition, the Group REDBEIEME - AEBK

compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial ARERHem I AZEAZE

instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a Z’Jﬂ BEINERAES/ T

default occurring on the financial instrument as at the BBAEZENRBETLER -

date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, EETHZAEE A& @%

the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative REBAEAXHNEEREMN

information that is reasonable and supportable, Er o BEEFMAHT M\ ZRK

including historical experience and forward-looking XA 48 A i AT HRAS 2 i A

information that is available without undue cost or B RATEEER -

effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into *HE'J% ETHEERRER

account when assessing whether credit risk has BEENE §ZRUATE

increased significantly: ﬂ 1

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in e ST EAMINI(INA)K
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or NBEEFROERKTE
internal credit rating; HEER:

e  significant deterioration in external market s FERERINPBTISIE ’fEEI'J
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase BERL MEEMNE
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices BEBANEEELNED f‘f
for the debtor; &R IBIG N

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, s W EBHEBAEEE
financial or economic conditions that are expected THRE N RIE T REAER
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s MBS ERANIREB K
ability to meet its debt obligations; 8B ) S FI| 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. HFAeMBRHREZEHEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BETRE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2 EXEBE(HE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) SRMIA(E)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d) T EE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd) CREEZREGE)
()  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd) () EERBBEELMGE)

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. #AMEREZECZHENEEREX
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT BRI R(#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2 EXErIBR(#H)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) SRMIAHE)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d) M EE(F)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd) TREECREE)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd) EERRABAELINE)

/\
=

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of AEETHERANEERR

the criteria used to identify whether there has been a ELRHRELAFAEZEZAN
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as Ii{ W IBEBETARRZIZEE
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of M RIEB A B REER
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the EMZ%E ELHo

amount becomes past due.
(i)  Definition of default iy BHZEH

Eytﬁﬂ*lﬂéf REBEMmME @ &
WL\HW*BEEi%HXQ?\\

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources -ﬁll RIRZEBBTREBEATK
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, AgEREREAEELAER) 2
including the Group, in full (without taking into account ﬁ HATEZERAEERE®FELZ
any collaterals held by the Group). E MERDEEEXNENS

o
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that Nom Lt &R anfa] - fis Eilﬂ
default has occurred when the instrument is more than BHAEE AKX - A ANKEERA

ERLEEN BRIFAXKEERS
BAERSKEZENBIRER
BZEMNERE RESRIER

A
A ©

90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

3. WAEMBBRZBEHEEREX

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT et (A
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3.2 EXErBE(HE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) SRIE(&)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d) T EE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd) TREECREE)
(il  Credit-impaired financial assets iy EERESBREE
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more ERLHEMEECMHITRR
events of default that have a detrimental impact on BensEETNEgEZ—E
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset KELEENENR SREE
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit- PR EERBE SRHEER
impaired includes observable data about the following ERECEERENTAIER
events: =14
(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the @ BITAXBRABAEKX
borrower; BN
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due by BREL  wWEL A
event; =14
(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or () EBRAZEZAREEEK
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s ALBR M RAERE 2 8B
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower BHRA mMEEBERAR
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not FERAE—REALTDH
otherwise consider; SEBZ2EBERKMSE:
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will d) fBERAFIRER EHETT
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; ft Eﬁf“i%ﬂ Tk
or
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that e HEUREHEMEEZE

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve without
reducing the carrying amount of these debt instruments.
Such amount represents the changes in the FVTOCI
reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.

174 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont’d)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

3.

3.2

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Contd)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (Cont’d)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in
a substantial modification from original terms taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if
the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
asset, after reducing gross carrying amount that has been
written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at
the financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount
of the modified financial assets and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date
of modification.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CLASSIFICATION AS DEBT OR EQUITY

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance

of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Cont’d)
EQUITY INSTRUMENT

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instrument issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings and lease
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group'‘s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

3. MEMBBRZBEHEEREX

BB (AF)

EXEat R ME)
SR I A(#E)
EHEERE (E)
BamITE

BETEAZFHERNEENTR
HmMEAGERNFIGESNTNA
£ o KRR BEITHERTANIE
BUWFTS R IB B B B BT AR

71
s ©

BEARRIBEFNESETAEER
BERALNE EBE L&
BT FHARABEGNESTA
B WENBESEERARELER -

KA ENLTHEE

TRBEEREBESEMNIEA  Hit
FEAT SRIE - FEATRRAE DT ARIR - ERTT
EREEERBE)REREAERRT
RRBBHENAGE -

HIFERE R E

REERKESREAEEETER
B-aHERRRTERYEA
{E o B4 ﬂiﬁﬁuumﬁﬁj\(&ﬁfﬁ E’EETE
HEMRENRENEZRERNIERE

7J
s °

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER

177



178

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME
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4

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

DEPRECIATION OF LAND RIGHTS

The Group classified the land rights held by a subsidiary, PT
Rimba Palma Sejahtera Lestri (“RPSL”), in Indonesia as right-
of-use assets because the management considered that
substantially all risks and rewards are transferred to RPSL,
even if at the end of the lease term, titles do not pass to
RPSL. Indonesian land rights are granted for a stated period
of time, with an extension option at an immaterial cost. Land
rights are also renewable after the extended period term
expires. Given the fact that land rights can be extended at
RPSL’s option, the management considered that the term
of land rights is sufficiently long to indicate the transfer of
risks and rewards from the government to RPSL and the
government’s interest in the residual value of the underlying
land is considered as insignificant. Also, the management
considered that RPSL has the ability and intent to renew the
land leases in perpetuity, the useful life of the land rights is
in perpetuity and hence are not depreciated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT RELATING TO BUSINESS OPERATION IN
INDONESIA

Determining whether property, plant and equipment is
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the property, plant and equipment
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or change
in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows, further impairment loss may
arise. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$nil (2019: HKS$nil) in
respect of property, plant and equipment after assessing
the recoverable amount of CGU which is principally engaged
in the biomass power generation business in Indonesia
(“Biomass Plant”). The allocated goodwill was fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The management’s assessment of property, plant
and equipment impairment is highly judgemental and
is dependent on certain key assumptions including the
discount rate, growth rates and budgeted sales, and gross
margin, which are affected by expected future market or
economic conditions, particularly those in Indonesia. An
independent qualified professional valuer is engaged to
assess the recoverable amount of the CGU.

4.

PR E AT FIER R AR AR R
HEERIR(F)

HEAHBERMERRR

ATTHERBRERNIEZRRENE
SR AEF AR EN A E
ERF > MZxFERK LG THBA
AR EeEHAH T EVREFE
BEMBENKREEELERNHE
ME AR -

HENENXBELHBNMEETYE

M ERRERE
REVME BEMREESHEZR
BEME BMERREBAOEEN

ReEFBEMNATREEEMEAE
BILAABEBREEXNEAZBE®E) °
AEERBEARNEBR MG EHAK
EEE$F$ LLE"]*;KEE,%/ME
BEMNBEREXUAERE - WER
mfﬁxiﬁé/mifﬁiﬁ/\fﬁ/ﬁﬂ ! EX%E‘T
MRBE#EH M TEITRRRS
mE - IR EA B ARHRIEREE -
RBE_Z_TF+_A=+—H
LEFEE RAGRTERDEREAE
MEBRSEBNReEEEU(T4E
MEEER)BOATKE S ER K

SEORMME - BENMK ﬁﬁw
HMEBEZEET(ZT— ﬂ$ e
O BOEBEDREE-FT )N

Ft+t-RA=1+— Hiigiﬁﬂﬁ

EEEBHME  BMENIRKBRMEN
AR R B AHE - MR

MANEFEEBR - AEMHRE -
HEFEREHHEREFNE - AL

FEEAXFAMRETHHZEEBR
g LERHEMNARKTISNK
HEBERR - AEERBF -2/
FEREXMGLEMFIGRSELSE
7 B AT IR Bl & &R o

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER

179

—



\\\‘ ‘;,} L
»W@;%

A;lr

%

e N
— -
= e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT 4. HEBEHIERGESTFAHBPER
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION B EERIF(HF)
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY st FBERMEERIR(EF)
(Cont’d)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS RIS AF R HE

The Group entered into the build-operate-transfer (the “BOT”) AEBEEF L) /’5 KR IR N B E R
arrangements in wastewater treatment and power plant. The ux — & — BR(BOT) & H - &
Group concluded that the BOT arrangements are service ERAEBEBEBOTLZHHIBE B (H
concession arrangements under HK (IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Ff’T\ PR EREEES) — RESE
Concession Arrangements, because the local government 1255 AR %5 % 57 #E 22 HF T B9 AR 7% 45 5T
controls and regulates the services that the Group must B AAEEMBNESTES
provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined service AEBERBERBGEANERRER
charge. In addition, upon expiry of concession right HERFS o L oh - Eﬁ =T HE 1 5% B
agreement, the infrastructure has to be transferred to the Hig FHEENIEEEEESRE
local government at nil consideration. IR AT ©

Revenue from the construction of wastewater treatment BIFEBOTE XA R KB RIEITKE
facilities under the terms of a BOT contract is estimated 2 3% HE A & U BA B 7S AN BK 5£
on a cost-plus basis in which the construction margin is fhet MEREMEXDZ2ERE
determined with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross BRAUELEBRMENRITMEE ﬂ
margins of market comparables at the time of construction, RXEF UVYHATIBHHERE
and is recognised using the percentage-of-completion RBAR RB2EZHEZEHEEED
method, measured by reference to the proportion of costs KA B A D E’J fE E D N
incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the relevant Lz E BETE_FTF+H
contract. The revenue from the construction of wastewater =+—BLtFE" Tﬁ KRB REES
treatment facilities and power plant facilities has recognised K BE TR ER M N B TR ER BE Y & FE UK
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately A#) 54,646,000 T (ZFE — N F -
HK$4,646,000 (2019: HK$6,170,000). 6,170,000 7T) °

Imputed interest income is recognised from time to time PR 765 % 5 HE 2 HE T 89 B WK IE B
on receivables under service concession arrangements SHEREBEBRMNEERRGFESE ﬁ@ G
on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by HEMNBWA - WIZRBY B HERE
discounting the at the effective interest rate computed at AEMERF XA o

initial recognition.

The relevant effective interest rate is determined with HEAERMNEXREL2ERNELRHF
reference to the yield of corporate bonds of comparable ZEARAME(HEDREDEERE
infrastructure companies in The People’s Republic of China NEIMRRIEF KRGS EEE -

(the “PRC”) and Indonesia.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT 4. FBEIFERGAHBER

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS OF
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES TO A SPECIFIED
LEVEL OF SERVICEABILITY

HEERIR(F)

{HEt AR R EE KR ()

555 /K R 3R e 1 BUS E W iR R AR
BKFHNERRERE

The Group has contractual obligations (a) to maintain the AEBHMEHNEAR@QREHKLSE
wastewater treatment facilities it operates to a specified RE5KEBRIERE  BRFTEEEN

level of serviceability and (b) to restore the facilities to a
specified condition before they are handed over to the

A] 32 BR 75 7K 7 Ko (b) 1R AR 75 5 AF 4
THERE  EBRXZERETE

grantor at the end of the service concession arrangement. TAZH BEBEEZERE Hﬁ RE o
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore ZERBIBEERRENE

infrastructure, except for any upgrade element, are FE(FHFZEDBRIN TR ?J%%f/% & d‘
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 37 ERNEI7HBEE IABBERKA

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required to settle the present obligation at the end of each
reporting period. The estimation of the expenditure requires
the Group to estimate the expected future cash outlays
on major overhauls of the wastewater treatment facilities
over the service concession periods and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of the provision
for major overhauls carried as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$16,656,000 (2019: HK$13,147,000), further
details of which are set out in note 28.

BETFURRENE2  RIHRE
HABTENEAAERIHRE
B EETHERENE - fstHAX
H—irz}&%@/,\mﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁmmk
BEXEENREHBETAKRRES
A TREBEMBERUGTEZ
EHREMENHRBE R_FT_F
+— A=+ HBHHBRAMBERRE
RIEBBENERAREBENET
E#9/516,656,0008 L (ZZ— N4 :
13,147,000 70) B E — P15
B FT 28 -

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT 4. MBEHFIEAREHAHBEAR

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

PROVISION OF ECL AND IMPAIRMENT OF
RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICES CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group individually calculates ECL for the receivables
under services concession arrangements. The provision
rates are based on internal credit ratings. The rates are
based on the Group’s historical default rates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward- looking information
are considered. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes
in estimates. The information about the ECL is disclosed in
note 33.

CURRENT TAX AND DEFERRED TAX

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Indonesia. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of its transactions in accordance with prevailing
tax regulations and makes tax provision accordingly.
However, a judgement is required in determining the Group’s
provision for income taxes as there are many transactions
and calculations of which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
periods in which the determination is made. The carrying
amount of deferred tax liabilities is set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position and note 27.

Deferred tax liabilities have been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on certain portion of the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC since
it is probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. Where the final distribution
portion of earnings is larger than the amount that initially
recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax in
the periods in which the distribution is made. Further details
of the temporary difference associated with investment in
subsidiaries are set out in note 27.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

REVENUE 5. BREA
2020 2019
ZBZEHF TN F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Types of goods and services EmkREER
Construction services R R 4,646 6,170
Wastewater treatment facility operation 57K 52 32 % Jifs & 18 AR 7%
services 39,821 55,428
Sales of electricity generated from HEEMELSTHMEEDN
biomass power plants EWa) - 1,130
Revenue from goods and services o M RS A 44,467 62,728
Imputed interest income on receivables AR T 45 #F 4 2 B T E X
under service concession HEENEWA
arrangements 14,550 14,745
59,017 77,473
2020 2019
—EB-EHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Timing of revenue recognition PN 4
A point in time RNE— BB 39,821 56,558
Over time e By 4,646 6,170
Revenue from goods and services MR E =R A 44,467 62,728

The contracts for wastewater treatment facility operation
services and sales of electricity generated from biomass
power plants are for periods of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these

unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

EXRETTE

BREREREBRLQF

ERKEERREEERY  HELED
HBREREENENA
—F AT o InFH B ®EER
FISSEFTLE  WERESEE X
KX FE -

WHERA S

—ERCRERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

5. REVENUE (Cont’d) 5. BRIWKA(HE)

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated amount of the N_E_TF+_A=+—08 5k
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance ZEAREERBEHNBETHRTREAOR
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts is FHR 5B B4 /R153,535,000%
approximately HK$153,535,000 (2019: HK$ nil). This amount T(ZE—NEF:THT) - %2 ?E

represents revenue expected to be recognised in the future
from partially-completed long term construction contracts.
The Group will recognise the expected revenue in future
when or as the work is completed, which is expected to
occur in the next 12 to 21 months.

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the

BEHAKESS TR ERPRE
mﬁwmwﬂoﬁgth$X§
TERBIRERBH KR BHE
RARFEI2E2MEA AR T -

UTREEXEPANNEER AR
DEER TN E S A YR

segment information.

2020
—EC-EHF

PRC Indonesia Total

H Z1)= HEt

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FEL FTERT

Construction services R 1,481 3,165 4,646
Wastewater treatment facilities 5K B AR e & R

operation services % 39,821 - 39,821
Revenue from contracts with REEFANNEE

customers WA 41,302 3,165 44,467
Imputed interest income on R ETHETRE
receivables under service WSk IE HE E R B

concession arrangements A 14,550 - 14,550

Total revenue EEWAEE 55,852 3,165 59,017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —FE —FF+ -~ H=+—HIL FE

REVENUE (Cont’d) 5. BRIWKA(HE)
2019
—E-NF
PRC Indonesia Total
H e st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEL FETT FET
Construction services BER% 6,170 = 6,170
Wastewater treatment facilities EIKERIE AR = B AR
operation services % 55,428 - 55,428
Sales of electricity generated from  $§E 4 Y E L E M E
biomass power plants EHE S — 1,130 1,130
Revenue from contracts with RERFEHMEE
customers WA 61,598 1,130 62,728
Imputed interest income on R AT T R
receivables under service W EHEEF B
concession arrangements A 14,745 = 14,745
Total revenue EEWABE 76,343 1,130 77,473
BRRRIEREBRAA —E_EFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 6. HBEH
The Group is engaged in the construction and operation AEBREEZREESTKEER
of wastewater treatment facilities, construction of power i L REBEEMIAN EEEE
plant and biomass power generation business. Information BeERTAEBIEZLEARARA
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker (BP £ ﬁ%%) CUERERSE R
(i.e. the executive directors) for the purposes of resource FEFHZANERSEFEEAN
allocation and assessment of performance is focused on BREBFHOHENE H BRFEEB
geographical locations of its manpower and customers, HFEREIE -
including Hong Kong, PRC and Indonesia.
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS 7 EB YR A B K 4R
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEETEHMRLE D I AR
results by reportable and operating segments: EEHTWOT:
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z_ZEF+=-A=+-—AHL
FE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
B8 HE e #ast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAERT TAER THER THER
Results 4
Segment revenue oI A - 55,852 3,165 59,017
Segment (loss)/profit SE(&EER), 5 F (9,928) 26,641 (11,575) 5,138
Unallocated expenses KOBEX
Administrative expenses THHAX (42)
Profit before tax Bx % A1 & A 5,096

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. PETEEE)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Cont’d) SEUA R KR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_ZEZ-hWF+=ZA=+—-81L
FE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
E Y e st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET THET
Results 4
Segment revenue o EBRA - 76,343 1,130 77,473
Segment (loss)/profit HE(ER), B (16,343) 41,331 (7,913) 17,075
Unallocated expenses KOBEX
Administrative expenses THHAX (37)
Profit before tax B % A1 A 17,038

There are no inter-segment sales for both years.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external

customers.

B FE S ED BEEE o

bt 2HROFA D B AL KB I

BES -

BREREREBRLQF

—ECREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MR RME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

As at 31 December 2020

SHWEHEHE)
SHMRERAR

AEBZAZHLEE DB
BEMBEDTAOT:

R-B-ZEF+-A=+—H

Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
5B H e st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THET THER THER FTHERx
Assets BE
Segment and total consolidated D SEEAEEE K
assets HEEAEMRE 21,487 355,153 100,741 477,381
Liabilities =R
Segment and total consolidated D 4R A BE R
liabilities meRBERE 40,874 58,061 3,282 102,217
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZEZ-_ZEf+=-A=+—8H1L
FE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
o) H e @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THET THERT FTHER FTHER
Amounts included in the measure 5T A 2 & % | % &5 18
of segment profit or loss or KN HEEZ
segment assets: B
Loss on modification of other EMIRE KA E
financial assets measured at MEMEREEE
amortised cost EZEE - - 47 471
Additions to non-current assets R EBEIFREEE
(note) i) - 58 7,049 7,107
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ - BE R & &
and equipment e 544 446 3,478 4,468
Bank interest income RITH B A 2 370 575 947

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DEEHE(HE)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d) STHRERARGE)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hhF+=ZHA=1+-—8
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
BB H e BEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAET FET FAET
Assets BE
Segment and total consolidated 9 HEEEER
assets REEERE 28,694 359,123 92,109 479,926
Liabilities =
Segment and total consolidated 9 4 S B E &
liabilities mEBBERE 40,171 57,597 4,442 102,210
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-NAF+=-A=+—HLt
FE
Hong Kong PRC Indonesia Total
BB H e mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measure .:Jr)\/\* il 2k & 18
of segment profit or loss or FNMEEZ
segment assets: ﬁﬁ,ﬁ :
Additions to non-current assets REBEIFREEE
(note) (B =) 1,629 274 17,149 19,052
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ - BE R & &
and equipment e 91 459 3,390 3,940
Bank interest income WITHEHA 116 231 727 1,074
BRBHRIERERAT “ECTEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical locations
of the assets are detailed below:

SHWEHEHE)

SHRERAMRE)

FEBREEZWEREADZIERD

FERIIMT :

2020 2019

—EZEHE —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Hong Kong B 995 1,538
PRC A Y 1,823 2,113
Indonesia e 71,549 69,052
74,367 72,703

Note: Non-current assets excluded debt instruments at FVTOCI,
other financial assets at amortised cost, receivables under
service concession arrangements and restricted bank
deposits.

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

MaE: FRDEETEREBEBEMZE
WHRAAREFENEHT LR
REHEKAGENHEBEREE
RIS EF R YR T 2 UK IA
R ZREIBITER -

HEF RS AR E R A10% K EH

contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue are as follows: 2RI AT :
2020 2019
ZBZ2F —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAET
Customer A from the PRC segment FESBEFA 25,580 44,018
Customer B from the PRC segment FESHBEFEB 30,272 32,325
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS

7. HEftlf ARBl R

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAET
Bank interest income BT H B A 947 1,074
Interest income from debt instruments FEREMEAERKE
at FVTOCI RARBETTAH
F%“IEE’J%IJ%LIW\ 817 1,341
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain, net SNEE (B518) /W %5 ) F 58 (484) 1,721
Government grants (note) BB (B 3E) 266 2,782
Refund of value-added tax AR 2,711 5,926
Gain on disposal of property, plantand HEWE¥  HER
equipment B 44 —
Waiver of other payables AR Eo4th FE 1 3RIB 641 —
Others Hfth 387 559
5,329 13,403
Note:  For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group WeE: REBEE_ZTE-_ZF+_A=+—
recognised government grants of HK$266,000 in respect HiEFE - A& E 5 COVID-1948
of Covid-19-related subsidies, which relates to Employment B8 7 B) & ¥ 2 XY 4 B)266,000
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government. BT AR BEREBRMREME 2R
BEE -
For the year ended 31 December 2019, government RBEZZT-—NF+ZA=+—
grants have been received from local governments in HEFE #HEMBRBRIESE
Jiangsu Province, the PRC for the purpose of carrying out FEDT &S 5 R mE) -
environmental protection works.
There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating RZEZZFRZT—NF+=
to these grants as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. A=+—8#Es Fﬁ ZEHYPH
RTEFAG I AEH -
FINANCE COSTS 8. WMBERE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FETT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIER AT B 569 1,267
Interest on loan from related parties REB@E T NERHE 585 142
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 50 11
Increase in discounted amounts of FR A BE 7T 4 1 22 A Y
provision for major overhauls arising BRREEEN
from the passage of time (note 28) A8h IR & %8 3% Hn (P 3£ 28) 780 653
1,984 2,073
BRERIERERAA “ECEFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRIRMAF
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before tax has been arrived at after [ & Al % 7
charging/(crediting): Bk, (GTA)
Employee benefit expense (including EERMNAX(BIEEZES
directors’ remuneration): &)
Salaries and other benefits e Mk EMEF 11,745 16,309
Discretionary bonus )15 TE 4T 308 342
Pension scheme contributions (note) B K4 &t 24tk (B %) 1,159 1,937
13,212 18,588
Cost of construction services R AR S AKX A 4,305 4,870
Cost of wastewater treatment facilities RIS KEIE R e &R
operation services rendered % B9 B AR 25,094 32,297
Cost of power plant operation BEW A EK A
(including cost of inventories (BREBERAAINTFTE
recognised as expenses of HK$nil RAZET(ZE—NEF:
(2019: HK$577,000)) 577,000/ 7T)) - 6,385
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMERKHETE
equipment 4,468 3,940
Auditors’ remuneration % B & B 1,024 1,048
Loss on modification of other financial ERIREEK AT ENHE
assets measured at amortised cost thEMEEELE CEE 471 =
Research and development cost T R e R XA I 3K AR
recognised as an expense (included in (BstATTERAX)
administrative expenses) - 38
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net SNE B R (W ak) JF 58 484 (1,721)
Provision for major overhauls BERRIEEE 1,771 1,692
Note: As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no forfeited B 5E <:;§Z§¢+ZHE+*E N

5 B 0 4 45 08 WA SR RTR D R R
FEMRAKT B H# ?k(_g N
FE) o

contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years (2019: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,

10.

EERERTHRARTHM

RIBEER LR RAB G EH

disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and BIFANEER &S THA B M
Companies Ordinance, is as follows: AT
2020 2019
—E-ZE —ThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Directors’ fees = -%akc 960 2,035
Other emoluments: Ha i -
Salaries and other benefits FaekEMmER 715 2,996
Discretionary bonus ) 15 7€ 41 - =
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIH R 4 32
719 3,028
1,679 5,063
(A) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (A) BAERITEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Ms. Ng Chung Yan Linda BBt 120 120
Mr. Ng Man Kung R4 120 120
Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict (note) Mo Be o A (B ) - 54
Ms. Leung Bo Yee Nancy REBRLL 100 21
340 Siile

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2019: nil).

Note: Mr. Sze Yeuk Lung Benedict resigned as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 17 July 2019.

FRBIERITEEZME D
AMEESARAEFAIEHR

AR5 2 FrEM o

FRALEXNBILFATES

Hibe (ZF—

B 5E -

MEREER_-FT—

N ) e

NEFEL

A+tRABEARRZBEL
EMITESE -

BREREREBRLQF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # E —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F&

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

10. EERESTHRARTHHM(#)

(B) MITEERFHITES

Salaries Pension
and other  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees benefits bonus contributions  emoluments
HeR Bfé
ne AR MERL HEER Heasm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén ThR TAn TAn
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-E-EE+C25
St-ALEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr, Chau On Ta Yuen BZEREE 220 67 - = 27
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) REAEFRER) 100 317 - 2 479
Mr. Suhendra Radius EZAGE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny ARALE 100 50 - 152
520 494 - 4 1,018
Non-executive directors FYTES
Mr. Chan Pak Lam Brian BEmEE 100 221 - - 321
620 715 - 4 1,339

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —FE —FF+ -~ H=+—HIL FE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

10. EERESTHRARTHHM(#)

(B) MITEERFMITER(MH)

Salaries Pension
and other  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees benefits bonus  contributions  emoluments
g2k R’ife
we =8| MELL HE LS @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TEn TEn TEL i
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-NE+2R
St-ALEE
Executive directors HrEES
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen AZERLE 1,320 68 - - 1,388
Mr. Chan Kwan (Chief Executive) REAEFTRER) 100 2,002 - 18 2,120
Mr, Suhendra Radius EEALE 100 = = = 100
Mr. Chau Chi Yan Benny ARALE 100 450 - 14 564
1,620 2500 - 2 4172
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr, Chan Pak Lam Brian BB E 100 476 = = 576
1,720 2,996 - 32 4,748

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company or

its subsidiaries.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

B2HB -

AR5 2 Fr B -

BREREREBRLQF

tRARTEEME DK SRR
ERARARAEEEZHE/H 2R

LFRFATESTHME IR ESFER
ARRHEMBARZEEMAEH

FALBEEIRHTRAERE
% [ B A B B 2 Bk e

—ECREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11. IEEEFNER
The five highest paid employees during the year included FANhEmEeaTMEERE —&(Z
one (2019: three) director, details of whose remuneration are E-NF ZR)ESF EHFM
set out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the BE T XK FE10 - FART I
year of the remaining four (2019: two) non-director, highest HZE-NEF - MB)FESZ2ES
paid employees are as follows: FTHEE 2HMFBHINWOT :
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Employees’ salaries and other benefits & 8 ¥ & K& H 18 F 3,313 2,444
Discretionary bonus (SRR 156 85
Pension scheme contributions RIS ETEIMH 90 58
3,559 2,587
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose FENATHEIFEEN RS F
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BESMWEBHMT:

Number of employees
EE®A
2020 2019
—¥-%F “T-hF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T 2 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000

7T 2 2

4 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —FE —FF+ -~ H=+—HIL FE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FRRRAX

2020 2019
—E-BE ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current tax: BIVEA 7% 18 -

Hong Kong BB 6 25
PRC M 6,215 7,482
6,221 7,507

Under/(over) provision in prior years: BEFEREBETR

(BBEEEME) -

Hong Kong BB - 3)
PRC h - 162
- 159
Deferred tax (note 27): B E B 18 (M 5E27) - 360 (228)
Total tax charge for the year FARBEZ HERE 6,581 7,438

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

RERASHERRBREAEE (X
BERZBEBDHRARER KAEHE
BEARNFERENRBRELEEH
MEMMMAER -

BE_ 2 ZF+_-_A=+—HIF
B BEEMNNESHBERGET IR
A B16.5% (ZF — N £ - 16.5%)

| A
= = o
Rl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI F&F

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

The provision for the PRC income tax is based on the
respective corporate income tax rates applicable to
the subsidiaries of the Company located in the PRC as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules
and regulations of the PRC.

No provision for Indonesian income tax had been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Indonesia during the year (2019: nil).

Haian Hengfa Wastewater Treatment Company Limited
(“Haian Hengfa”) and Rugao Hengfa Water Treatment
Company Limited (“Rugao Hengfa”) obtained preferential
income tax treatment whereby their income taxes are
charged at the taxable profit with an exemption of 10% of
the revenue generated for the year ended 31 December
2016. However, the in-charge PRC tax bureau of Rugao
Hengfa issued a notice in March 2018 that Rugao Hengfa did
not fulfil the conditions for preferential income tax treatment
after conducting reassessment for the years ended 31
December 2014, 2015 and 2016. Accordingly, additional PRC
tax provision for the possible denial of preferential income
tax treatment to both Haian Hengfa and Rugao Hengfa at
HK$2,584,000 in total for the year ended 31 December 2017
was recognised. Taxable profit for Haian Hengfa and Rugao
Hengfa have been prepared without the exemption of 10%
for 2019 and 2020.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for jurisdictions in which the
Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

;\\\' )’é/q /,,

e
=

e M RRME

12. FRISMBAZ ()

e NYNCTEC = N R VAl i ]

5 HE 8 B R E TR R

At H B R B AR

FERMHRERYBEREAEEER
BMETENRERIMEROT:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Profit before tax B B4 A & A 5,096 17,038
Tax at the statutory tax rates at 25% BETEME2B%ETE
18 1,274 4,260
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR - 159
Effect of withholding tax on the TE 0B ¥ A8 & B A B ff B
distributable profits of the Group’s NGRSl
subsidiaries in the PRC & 1,753 624
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax HEBRBHKAZHBEFE
purpose (1,631) (3,125)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AT B X 2 T B &
tax purpose 1,780 4,076
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBEBE 2 IE
A 4,448 3,790
The effect of deductible temporary AERAUNGBERMEEE
difference not recognised ZRE (1,040) (1,345)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ) A ST AT R 1 SRR TR B 1B
recognised - (955)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 72 2 \1@ AARE R E 2 Y
operating in other jurisdictions BRAAIBERIR &8 (3) (46)
Tax charge for the year FARIEBZH 6,581 7,438
BRBRIZERERAA —ECEEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

13. DIVIDEND 13. K2
No interim dividend was proposed during the years ended REBEE-_Z-_ZFR-_ZE—NEF+=
31 December 2020 and 2019. A=+—RLt&E- ﬂiﬁL & A
FHERRR B o
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company HE_ZTZ-_FTF+-_A=+—81t

FE - ¢/A75ﬁéﬂz§ T-NF+=
A=+ —HLFEERABERES
&% B 15 0. 5;‘%% ,ﬁ@ %8 #/5,536,500
BT ER_E-_ZTFELA=+—
H2EURMN -

declared a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2019 of HKO0.5 cent per share, in aggregate
amount of approximately HK$5,536,500, which was fully
paid on 31 July 2020.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
declared a special dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 of HKO.5 cent per share, in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$5,536,500, which was partly
paid of approximately HK$4,739,000 on 31 December 2020.

No final dividend was proposed in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BB (KR) B
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per AKRARBEANEESREALE S
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based (E18),/ BFHETEERT IS :

on the following data:

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
(Loss)/profit for the purposes of basic and FLEA AN #58 (E518),
diluted (loss)/earnings per share, being BiMmsEz (&8,
(loss)/profit for the year attributable to wA - BIARRBHAB A
owners of the Company FEIEF A (E]), &7 (4,956) 970

Number of shares

%17 & B
2020 2019
—E_EH —ET-NF
’000 ’000
Fr T %
Weighted average number of ordinary HERER(EE)
shares for the purpose of basic AANME 2 EBR
(loss)/earnings per share N 5 8 1,107,300 1,107,327
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the BHE_ZE-ZFR-_FT—NEFE+=A
computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share does not =t+—BHIFE AXQFRERE
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share ZOFeERER(BEER)RL A
options since their exercise would result in a decrease in Mg WEAEEREF(BE)
(loss)/increase in earnings per share. BREYRBEITERARBKRITE

B 8 A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # E —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F&

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. MR - MER® W

Construction Leased Landand  Equipment Office Motor
inprogress  properties  Land rights buildings and machines  equipment vehicles Total
ERIR  HENE thE tHRET REREE  BOERE RE i
HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T Thn T T Thn T T TEL
COST s
As at 1 January 2019 HE-NF-A-A 9,563 - 5,545 6,433 129,827 1411 1320 154,099
Additions RE 16,928 1,629 - 29 184 22 - 19,092
Transfer EF 857 = = 3,666 4,906 = = =
Exchange reaignment L o1 - i % 4072 01 4911
Asat 31 December 2019end  WZF-NETR
1 January 2020 c+-AR-%
“3E-5-A 18,340 1,629 5122 10,383 138,989 1672 1327 176,062
Addltons HE 7,082 - - - 17 58 - 7,407
Disposa ik - - - - - = [248) (048)
Transfer g3 %) - - - 2% - - -
Exchange realignment EHE] 150 = 51) (04 (1279) i % (1,151)
As at 31 December 2020 k3 g
=t-H 25,284 1,629 5,671 10,289 137,966 1,827 1,104 183,770
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE
IMPAIRMENT
As at 1 January 2019 ME-NE-F-H 5,58 - 2,901 4,349 85,098 807 866 99,606
Provided for the year EhEk - 9 - 37 3205 196 101 3,940
Exchange realignment EHE] 180 - 103 134 2,69 2 @ 3,003
Asat 31 December 2019end  RZE-NETZR
1 January 2020 ct-BR-%
“25-R-A 5,765 91 3,004 4850 91,015 91 93 106,639
Provided for the yeer ERBE - 544 - I 3216 162 % 4468
Eiminated by disposal HERHR - - - - - S (239) (239)
Exchange realignment ERE] (5 - (25) (4 (557) 60 % (57
As at 31 December 2020 k3 g
=t-H 5113 635 2979 5,207 93,674 1173 829 110,300
CARRYING VALUES Rl
As at 31 December 2020 k33 g
=t-H 19,51 994 2,692 4,992 44,20 654 275 13470
As at 31 December 2019 R=F-nE+ZR
=t-H 12,575 1,538 2,118 5533 47974 YAl 364 71,423

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 15. ¥ - BER® i (#)

The above property, plant and equipment, except for LitmE BMERREBIEREIER
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line INETIFERLE G EFTIRITE -
basis at the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings 5%-10% T i RIEF 5%-10%
Land rights 0% + Hb 4 0%
Leased properties Over the term of lease HEWE NHEBFHE
Equipment and machines  10%—20% RIS 10%-20%
Office equipment 18%-20% WRERME 18%-20%
Motor vehicles 12.5%-20% TE 12.5%-20%
Analysis of right-of-use assets included in the property, plant FEREAENIMEFADE - K
and equipment: BR&EE)
Leased
Land rights properties Total
T it #E HEWE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 December 2020 R-BZEF
+=—A=+—H
Carrying amount BR E{ 2,692 994 3,686
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZB-HE&E
+=—HA=+—A~
Carrying amount ERE B 2,718 1,538 4,256
For the year ended 31 BE-Z_-Z2F
December 2020 +=-BA=+—H1L
FE
Depreciation charge HEEZER - 544 544
For the year ended 31 BE-Z—-h#&F
December 2019 +=-BA=+—HLt
FE
Depreciation charge HEEHR — 91 91

BREREREBRLQF —ERCRERR 203
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 15. ¥ - BER® i (#)

Analysis of right-of-use assets included in the property, FREEENST(EFTALE K
plant and equipment: (Cont'd) BXEE) - (&)

Year ended Year ended

2020 2019
BZE HE
—E-EF —ET-NF
LFE EFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Expense relating to short-term leases EHEHPHEEZRAX 353 1,455
Total cash outflow for leases (Remark 1) T &3 &7 H 4% (FiE1) 928 1,551
Additions to right-of-use assets TRAREEERE (FEI2)
(Remark 2) - 1,629
Remark 1: Amount includes payments of principal #HiFl: eBREeRINEAeNULA
and interest portion of lease liabilities and EaRELEHEENNE
short-term leases. These amounts could be o ZEREARKE -
presented in operating, investing or financing KREIBMERERENE
cash flows. B e
Remark 2: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting #Hi2: SHEREREFHERZ
from the capitalised lease payments payable EARLEMNEERIBFT ?5(
under new tenancy agreement. WEREEE -
For both years, the Group leases various offices for its EMEA AEBERELEHRES
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term EHA=E - HES O IREE A
of 12 months to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an 121E A i3¢ R o HHEA DA B &
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms MEmE YEESEBETRNEKERK
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing KAG M - IR E M B & A7 6 T T
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies DHENERER  AEEEHAEGH
the definition of a contract and determines the period for B TE & I & F A 47 58 &l B 1T Y B
which the contract is enforceable. Ml o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E = FF+ =A==+ —HIFE

16. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS

The Group entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities in the
PRC on a BOT basis in respect of its wastewater treatment
services. Pursuant to the service concession arrangements,
the Group has to design, construct, operate and manage
wastewater treatment facilities in the PRC over the service
concession periods. The governmental authorities guarantee
that the Group will receive minimum annual payments in
connection with the arrangements or receive a top up fee
depending on the volume of water that the wastewater
treatment facilities treated. The Group is generally
entitled to use the wastewater treatment facilities and the
related facilities (the “Wastewater Treatment Facilities”).
However, the Group has the obligation to maintain the
Wastewater Treatment Facilities in good condition and the
Wastewater Treatment Facilities will be transferred to the
relevant governmental authorities at a specified level of
serviceability upon expiry of the concession periods. The
service concession arrangements do not contain renewal
options. The BOT agreements do not grant any termination
rights to any of the contracting parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into a service concession arrangement with PT PLN
(Persero), an Indonesia government-owned corporation on a
BOT basis in respect of its power plant services. Pursuant
to the service concession arrangement, the Group has to
design, construct, operate and manage power plant facilities
in Indonesia over the service concession periods. The PT PLN
(Persero) guarantees that the Group will receive minimum
annual payments in connection with the arrangement or
receive a top up fee depending on the capacity of power
that the power plant facilities generated. The Group is
generally entitled to use the power plant facilities and the
related facilities (the “Power Plant Facilities”). However,
the Group has the obligation to maintain the Power Plant
Facilities in good condition and the Power Plant Facilities will
be transferred to the PT PLN (Persero) at a specified level
of serviceability upon expiry of the concession periods. The
service concession arrangement does not contain renewal
options. The BOT agreement does not grant any termination
rights to any of the contracting parties.

16. RFFIFERFTHOREBRET

AEBCEHEETHEBTEEBERTS
KR 3B R % 12 BOT & % 5] 7 %18 R
BT RELH RERBES Eé?z
o ANEEERRBETFBAR
g Z@A&aﬁﬂhlﬁ*f&ﬁ“
Mo MINKBREASBE KA H
Z BE B & K F - 3k 4k 505 K
EERGEEEMNSKEKRDRBEEE
B-ASERTERTERSKER
e R AR (5 KERE ]
R AEBEETHET SKEIRE
REERREFR BT KERRNE
BREFTHEREE —ETRER
BXKEBRXEBEEBRITHE - RE5
FRETHETESEHRRIERE - BOT
THMERTFTEMANTHNAREMEKL
¥ o

REBEZE-_ZTZ-_FEF+=-_A=+—H
HEFEE AEBHEROERZ QFPT
PLN (Persero) 5t & 3 & & Ak 7% 1%

BOTEEZT I — D RIGFFTELHE -
BERBEFEZEE AEBER
RIBEFFEARERKT 2R &8
NEBURHEZEERM&KIE - PT
PLN (Persero)iR & ' AEE 55t &
R KREFERE HETFEHE

MELEBENZTE  WHHENE

AeAREBR aﬁﬁéﬁﬂ%%’* ﬁ&
HEZB(EERRME] -

$§lﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁ%§§$m mﬂk/ﬁ
E&Eﬁ M 3% F M AR e G A AF RT B T
e LNEARBKEZAAMHEET
PT PLN (Persero) ° BR 7% 5 aT #E & HE
TEEEEIRE BOTHE L ER
FAEMTOFEMELLEREF -

BRERERERAT —T-BFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

16. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 16. RS T2 THRIRIE
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) (#)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 4 (2019: 4) service ANZEZFFF+HA=FT—H £%

| £ M8 AP B B A RE AT 24 1E (Z
T-NF4B)5KEENRSEEF
TR BEEEE % AFPT PLN
(Persero) 7] Y1IE(ZF — L F : |&)
LERMERENREEITESZE

ERGFTEZHENIEZERNE

concession arrangements on wastewater treatment with two
governmental authorities in the PRC and had 1 (2019: nil)
service concession arrangement on power plant treatment
with PT PLN (Persero), an Indonesia government-owned
corporation and a summary of the major terms of the
principal service concession arrangements are set out as

follows: IR U
Type of service Designed
Name of company as concession processing  Service concession
operator Name of facility Location Nature of grantor equipment capacity  period
EREEHN BB%sTE Rt
AIER SREERKZE  QE RIALH RERY REEN RESTH
Haian Hengfa” Haian Hengfa Municipal Haian Country, Haian Country BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes 28 years from 2002 to
Wastewater Treatment ~ Nantong City Construction Bureau ~~ treatment 2030 and extended to
Facility (Phase ) 2036 in 2013
BREY BREYTHIKRE HETELE  SREERR BB kREMHBOT 2000020 28% #-FT_ER
#if(—5) HEZRZ=REL
TR-F-=£ER
EECAF
Haian Hengfa” Haian Hengfa Municipal Haian Country, Haian Country BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes  22.5 years from 2013 to
Wastewater Treatment ~ Nantong City Construction Bureau ~~ treatment 2036
Facility (Phase Il
BREE BREETHAKEE HRTSZE  BREERR BBkREHBOT 000028 225% #-F-=F
i) BHEZE=RELL
Rugao Hengfa" Rugao Hengfa Municipal  Rugao Country,  Rugao Economic BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes 25 years from 2007 to
and Industrial Nantong City and Technological treatment 2032 and extended to
Wastewater Treatment Development Zone 2035 in 2009
Facility (Phase ) Administrative
Committee
mRE% MREETRRILXA MRTMRE  WREERNREE  AESKRAMHBOT 000028 255 #-FRLER
KEgkie-H) BZ @ HEZB=_#
TR-ZBINFRR
ECECRE
Rugao Hengfa* Rugao Hengfa Municipal Rugao Country, ~ Rugao Economic BOT on wastewater 20,000 tonnes 20 years from 2015 to
and Industrial Nantong City and Technological treatment 2035
Wastewater Treatment Development Zone
Facllity (Phase ) Administrative
Committee
meE% MREFTHRIES mETNRE RD%% BHREE  BEKREHBOT 2000028 205 f=%-1%
KEBRE(—H) B%e B E-E=REL
PT. Sentosa Jaya Sadai 10MW Biomass Bangka PT PLN (Persero) BOT on power plant 12.5 Megawatts 25 years from 2023 to
Purnama Power 2048
Sadai 1MW £ME% #NE EBYERNBOT 126kR 265 #-F-=F
EH BHEZEMN\EL
* The official name of the grantor is in Chinese. The English * EBTAR ET FEMWRANEAE - &XH

translation is for identification purposes only. EHEEHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

16. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group is
granted the rights to use the property, plant and equipment
of the wastewater treatment facilities and certain related
land during the service concession periods. The Group is
required to surrender these items of property, plant and
equipment to the grantors at a specified level of serviceability
at the end of the respective service concession periods. As
at 31 December 2019 and 2020, the title certificates with
respect to certain land use rights of certain wastewater
treatment facilities to which the Group’s service concession
arrangements relate have not been registered under the
names of the relevant Group companies. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to
the lawful and valid occupation or use of the buildings and
land to which the above-mentioned land use rights during
the respective concession periods for nil consideration for
providing wastewater treatment services under the relevant
BOT agreements.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue and profit
were recognised for exchanging construction services
for a financial asset amounting to HK$4,646,000 (2019:
HK$6,170,000) and HK$341,000 (2019: HK$1,300,000).
Considerations for revenue related to the construction and
operation services under BOT arrangements were recognised
as “receivables under service concession arrangements” in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

16. RFEFIFERFTHOEBRET
(%)

RIERGRHFEDE AREER
R AR AS  FF AR A5 K BRI R
EYE - BEREENARETHE
Eﬁiiﬁz AEBERE RS R FH
A& R B 42 — 5E AT 4R AR 75 UK SF o %
—J@% BEMZXEREBRIRT
A RZB-NER-_F_FF+=
A=+—8 BRAAXNSERBE R
BN ETHEKEERENET
THERENEEEEL RERLR
BEEAKEBRRIMNAT - KRB

EERA - REMEMBBOTLH - &
SEAERNBBEFHARREMRS
KEEBRBEUAZREEEZBERER

I LS ot + (s A R
MEFR L -

HE_Z_ZEF+_A=+—HI=F
B UARERG KRS R E E

REF WA K& M £ ¥ 54,646,000
B (ZZT—NF : 6,170,000 7t) &
341,000 7t (ZZ— L4 : 1,300,000
BIT) o EHBOTLZ BB TRERKEE
REEENEXERARBEREE Y
KRR ERBER BRI TETE

THEWRIE] -

2020 2019

—E-EHF —NE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHE T FAT

Receivables under service concession RS FFRFE L BE T A B UL

arrangements oIAE 314,782 300,490
Portion classified as current assets DEAREENDLY (21,883) (18,182)
Portion classified as non-current assets DB AETREEEN LD 292,899 282,308
BRRRIEREBRAA —E_EFFR

\ \\5
R
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/
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i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

16. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 16. BRI F R THEIRIEA

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) (#)
The following is an aged analysis of receivables under service RBEHAR BREZZEAHYERS
concession arrangements, based on the invoice date, at the FHRETHE TERFIENERR ST
end of the reporting period: m
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET
Billed: ERARE:
Within 3 months 3E AR 9,558 8,931
4 to 6 months 4Z 618 A - 1,521
9,558 10,452
Not yet billed MRBIARE 305,224 290,038
314,782 300,490
Receivables under service concession arrangements are PR 75 5 & #E 22 B T B0 B IR BRI AR #R
assessed individually for expected credit losses based on the BEAEEEBESRIBHEEESE
historical credit losses experience, adjusted for factors that EERIGE - WIRHEBEBHA - B
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and KERKAARKBER RS HREEHKR
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast MAKTBRAFRAMEFHEES
direction of conditions at the end of each reporting period, ENEEEE)(WER BENETE
including time value of money where appropriate. RELPE -
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mEMBHmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE
17. GOODWILL 17. @&
HK$’000
FAET
COST JoiN
As at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R—ZE—hE—H—H-
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —F— h¢+ H +—8-
—EZ T¢+ A=+—H 81,407
IMPAIRMENT BB
As at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R—E—hE—HA—H-
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —FT-NF+=ZA=+—8"
—E-FTF-—H—HK
—E_EF+-_A=+—H 81,407
CARRYING VALUES B8R TH (B
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-FF+=-H=+—8 —

As at 31 December 2019

ne J—
A=

—hE+=-RA=+—H —

The amount represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of
Weal Union Limited and its subsidiary on 21 October 2016,
and is allocated to the Group’s CGU in the biomass power
generation business. In prior years, as the carrying amount
of the CGU was determined to be higher than its recoverable

amount, impairment losses were recognised.

The goodwill was fully impaired during the year ended 31

December 2018.

@%ﬁﬁﬁ’\ =z /\E‘f’ﬂ +_
EW%MQE@ CISESE= N
ELXNEE- EE“M1$EIZ
i%%% EBREELEEM R
BEFE ARZBETELEMLZ
FEEHRRBESNEAKE S E -
WMERRBEREE -

RBE-_T—-\F+-_A=t—B1t
FE -BEECTZERE-

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

18. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

18. BBHEMEEMRBAREMNE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME MREIR
2020 2019
—E-EH T —N&F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Listed debt securities classified as debt D $E&FE B H i 2 mKk
instruments at FVTOCI BARBETENEKET
BEr FHERE 4,972 18,518
Interest rate Maturity date 2020 2019
F = 2 A —E-EHF —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FER FAET
Listed bond 6.00% 4 November 2020 - 8,051
EHESH —E-TF+—HIEA
Listed bond 7.90% 9 February 2020 - 3,954
rmESH ZEZEFZANH
Listed bond 3.75% 4 December 2020 - 3,123
EWESH —E-TF+HMA
Listed bond 5.60% 28 February 2021 1,692 —
rmE# 2 —FZA=+)\H
Listed bond 6.13% 21 February 2022 3,380 3,390
EHESH A=+ —H
4,972 18,518
Analysed as: SaR) il
Non-current JER B 3,380 3,390
Current B 1,592 15,128
4,972 18,518
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33. BB ATl 5F 15 # P R EE33 o

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 19.
COST

BREBESTENEMEREE

Other financial assets: EhemEE:
2020 2019
—B-FF ZTNHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FHBT
Money market fund (Note (a)) BEEmiEE S (WiE@) 5,934 .
Bank deposits (Note (b)) #1717 7 (Pt 3E (o) 2,319 =
8,253 —
Analysed as: 5 AT A
Non-current IERE 2,038 =
Current Vi) 6,215 =
8,253 —
Note: (a) The fund bears fixed interest rate of 3.65% per annum MzE: @ ESKRE TN EETFI.65%

and has a maturity period of 87 days and is non-
cancellable before maturity. Interest and the principal
amount are repayable at the maturity date.

(o) During the year ended of 31 December 2020, RPSL and
PT. Sentosa Jaya Purnama (“SJP”), the subsidiaries of the
Company, had placed 2 bank deposits of approximately
HK$1,845,000 and HK$474,000 respectively in Koperasi
Simpan Pinjam Indosurya Cipta (the “Indonesia bank”),
pursuant to which the Indonesia bank had debt
restructuring during the year. Based on Jakarta District
court order, the Indonesia bank had new repayment
plans to settle the outstanding balances to RPSL and
SJP by 60-month instalments and 48-month instalments
starting from June 2021 and January 2021 respectively.
The other financial assets are interest-free.

g [REAES7TH - &

EIEEIRN

AT - FMERASHAIR

FHAEE -

b)) BEZ

T_FTHET-A= +*

BIEFE  AQA KB

RPSL X PT. Sentosa Jaya
Purnama ([SJPJ]) 7 Koperasi
Simpan Pinjam Indosurya Cipta

(TENFESR7T1) 3

MNEAMEL

1,845,00078 7T }2474,0007% 7T #)

RITHER

B BIRROTR

FRETEBEE - RIBHEMN
EERAS - HERITTA

A& KA 3

BRI —F

NAR-ZZE=-—E—RE»H
LAGOfE A F481E A & 5 8 - 3
7 R 5 ERPSLAMSIPH) K B

BEREE -

B o
o

BREREREBRLQF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. AFIRAREMEIRIEA
2020 2019
ZBZEHF _—_TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Other receivables H b ' W I8 5,249 6,586
Deposits and prepayments R4 RFEMNZE 2,322 2,267
VAT recoverable A] 4 E 3 1B B 2,604 1,759
10,175 10,612
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33. L E R RIS E R M EER3 -
21. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 21. BEEHETEXBRRATRERE
BALANCES AND CASH &
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Restricted bank deposits TR HIERITFE R 12,030 12,140
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB AR S 51,067 58,457
Time deposits 7 H 7 K - 5,617
63,097 76,214
Less: Restricted bank deposits B ZBRERITER
— non-current portion — JEmEE (6,015) (6,070)
Restricted bank deposits R # R 1717 K
— current portion — REEH (6,015) (6,070)
51,067 64,074
Restricted bank deposits and bank AT 5 & ER R
balances and cash denominated in: BRITHERRRITEHRK
Re:
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARBETARKD 35,091 49,759
HK$ BT 5,966 6,936
United States dollars (“US$”) Ex([Ex)) 9,220 1,155
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”) ENEE(ENEE]) 12,820 18,364
63,097 76,214
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

21. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK

BALANCES AND CASH (Cont’d)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates ranging from 0.001% to 1% (2019: 0.001%
to 0.3%) per annum. As at 31 December 2019, short-term
time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short-term time deposit rates at 1.1% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, SJP, a subsidiary
of the Group, entered into a service agreement with an
independent third party in order to build and operate a 10
mega watt plant for the independent third party in Indonesia.
Under the service agreement, SJP is required to place a
restricted deposit denominated in IDR for 33 months up to
45 months. Restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate
at 6% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, SJP, a subsidiary
of the Group, entered into a service agreement with an
independent third party in order to build and operate a 10
mega watt plant for the independent third party in Indonesia.
Under the service agreement, SJP is required to place a
restricted deposit denominated in IDR for 11 months up to
36 months. Restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate
ranging from 4% to 4.5% per annum.

The bank balances and restricted bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.

21.

ZRFABTEFRRBITHBERE
& (#%)

RITHEHEBESRARRITERAE
BEEAERDANE - FREN T
0.001% &1% (= Z — A, F : 0.001%
203%) c - ARZZT —NF+=A
_"f’ H - %43@)?_3%?@\#7@#\

ZEE2 NTF—XRK=2=ZFEATE &
?$¢EW%E%%$@E if F
BRI AR T T A R BRER

FHEE11% °

BE-ZE—+t&+=ZH=+—81
FE AEEKBARSIPE—FE
NE=ZAFIY-EREHE LA
ZBUFZATRHNEEZRREE—
E1OK FLF R B BB - RIBEZ RS
& SIPEAGBTE —ZUHEBES
BERZBREIFR - BHHS3E45EA -
PR #9817 17 3K 1% 6% /Y & & F F &
ETE o

HE-_T-_ZTF+-_A=+—81
FE AEEKBRARSIPE—ZE
YEZAFIN—EBRBEWZE LA
BN E=ZFREEREB RS E—
E1OK LR B ER - RIEZ R
e SIPEAGBGE —ZEMNHEE:
BENZRHTFHR - AH11ZE36EA -
ZRERITFERIEN 4% E4.5%H
EEFFEFR -

RITEBREZRFRITERITFA
ATEA B MRS SRS B R 4FERTT -

BB BY {5 &Y FF 1B S MY 5ES3 e

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # E —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F&
22. TRADE PAYABLES 22, BHEMARIE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables, EZREMNARELRZZAHI R ZE
presented based on the invoice date: BROMMWT
2020 2019
—EZEF —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
0-60 days 0Z60H 649 776
61-90 days 61£290H 3 566
Over 90 days 90B A £ 2,112 1,661
2,764 3,003
Included in the Group’s trade payables are construction AEEEZENREBEBELIREN
retention payables of approximately HK$78,000 (2019: RE ® #978,0008 T(ZE — L5 -
HK$74,000). 74,0007 7T) °
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HtEMAREREHER
2020 2019
—EC-EHE —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Other payables H ftb & 5RIB 3,219 7,402
Accruals FEsr &R 3,272 3,665
6,491 11,067

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

As at 31 December 2020, the balance represents amount
due to a close family member of a director, a related
company and a beneficial owner, amounting to HK$nil (2019:
HK$844,000), HK$8,628,000 (2019: HK$8,142,000) and
HK$4,778,000 (2019: HK$nil) respectively.

The amount due to a close family member of a director is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amount due to a related company, which was wholly
owned by a substantial shareholder of the company, is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per annum and repayable
on 18 October 2021.

The amount due to a beneficial owner is unsecured, interest-
bearing at 6% annum and repayable on 26 August 2021.

24. EfIRABARIA

N_—_E_TF+_A=+—H"
BRIEEN—REEHN— %u@ﬁ
FW@H&*“T& HE @ Ti&ﬁ/\ﬁﬂ
PAAEBEBTL(ZE—NF:
844,000;‘% JT) * 8,628,000/8 L (=&
— L5 : 8,142,000/% JT) %4,778,000
BLT(ZE—NEFE TET) -
BN —R2EEN—ROHRNE
IR - TEFEMIEEREE -

X I8 A

EN—HEBE AR (AR —&E
ERRE2ERBZRR)NFIARE
R REMNE6RFTEMER-E
——%t+A+/\BEE-

BN —REZBEEAZREBERER
o IRENERFTE  RBERZE
——FNAZ+BEE-

BANK BORROWINGS 25. SRITH/M
2020 2019
—EZEHF — N
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FET
On demand or within one year BERK—FR 20,240 20,240
In the second year F4F 2,240 2,240
In the third to fifth years inclusive F-FEFRHF
(BREEEMF) - 2,240
22,480 24,720
Less: Amount due within one year B —F AR EI S E
shown under current liabilities MB)BE 2R (20,240) (20,240)
Amount due after one year —F 1 B HA A 2,240 4,480
Current — unsecured BDH — 4K 20,240 20,240
Non-current — unsecured JEBNHR — fm KR 2,240 4,480
22,480 24,720
BRBRIZERERAA —ECEEER
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e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

25. BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

26.

216 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

The bank borrowings comprise of:

25, BITHEH(HE)

Carrying amount

Effective R E
interest rate 2020 2019
BEBRANE Z—ZT-ZTHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FETT
Floating-rate borrowings: FEFIEERK
Unsecured HK$ bank £ 15 8 T
borrowing RITIE R 1.68% 18,000 18,000
Unsecured US$ bank IR ET
borrowing RITIER 2.07% 4,480 6,720
Total bank borrowings IRITE A 22,480 24,720
Note: The bank borrowings denominated in HK$ and US$ are MaE: BRELTROTERBE—RBRESK
guaranteed by a director and the Company. ARRER -
LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEA®R
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
Lease liabilities payable: EREEEE:
Within one year —F R 547 525
Within a period of more than one year BB —FETBAMFZ
but not more than two years HE A 472 547
Within a period of more than two years HBBMFEETBBRAFZ
but not more than five years HE A - 472
1,019 1,544
Less: Amount due for settlement with B2 AR A E
12 months shown under YHEREBEBEZ
current liabilities K18 (547) (525)
Amount due for settlement after 12 R12E R BB BEE
months shown under non-current WHEFERBEEZ
liabilities FIE 472 1,019

2020 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF
27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. BERFAR
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets UTARAEFERBEFEBRABHN
recognised and movements thereon during the current and FEREVIEAGREERAES:
prior years:
Temporary
difference
related to
Provision service
for major concession  Withholding
overhauls arrangements taxes Total
B ETE
ZHEH
EARERE WNERLZEE BB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET FTAET
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF
-fA—8 2,379 (33,532) (3,033) (34,186)
Credited/(charged) to profitor & A/ (418)
loss during the year FRER 966 (379) (359) 228
Exchange realignment B X &5 (58) 624 61 627
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE-AE+Z H
1 January 2020 =t+t-HRk=%Z
ZHE—F—H 3,287 (33,287) (3,331) (33,331)
Credited/(charged) to profitor 3t A/ (18)
loss during the year FRER 638 (2,345) 1,347 (360)
Exchange realignment R 239 (2,192) (130) (2,083)
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZBZEE
+-A=+-R 4,164 (37,824) (2,114) (35,774)
At 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax losses RZEZEF+-_A=+—H &&
of approximately HK$64,107,000 (2019: HK$45,133,000) B A & &) A £ 18 &5 18 £964,107,000
available for offset against future taxable profits. No deferred B (ZZE — N F : 45,133,000/ JT)
tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses, as in the AAEERERKRERT G - AR
opinion of the directors of the Company, the future profit ARBIEERR ZEMB AR
streams of these subsidiaries are uncertain. The tax losses K2R M RR T E - MR IR
could be carried forward for a maximum of five years. EEERECEHEEE  -HIEEE
XZAEERFE -
BRBRIZERERAA “ECEFFR 217
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AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 27. RERIFAAGE(HE)

At 31 December 2020, the Group has deductible temporary NZZE_TF+A=+—8 K&
differences of approximately HK$11,112,000 (2019: = A& AT 055 RS M 2 58 4911,112,000

HK$12,729,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it
is not probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position and reported as follows:

BT (ZZE—HF 12,729,000/ 7T) °
B B A FE AR ) BT B LA 3K 88
AR EREERZAIEERR
MUY ERZSE MR E G ZERE
RELEFHBEE -

AEE2MNEN BETELHBEBEEN
BEENEA MR R RIE IR
%ZzuT-

2020 2019

—E-EF —T-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET F&E T

Net deferred tax liabilities RIEHIBEEE FHE 35,774 33,331

BEFRCEMSHE  EREK
YR ECERMIINEREEST IR
f% BZEBR10% MBI - ZHE T

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 BTN NF—A—HREM  #HA
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower RZEZLtF+_A=+—RB2z#%&
withholding tax rate of 5% may be applied if there is a tax BEEHAAMN o WP EHEZEZEINER
treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁj/ﬂgliﬁ HEI IS IEA

investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes BIA] IR R T 5% B M TEHH - A
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in b ANEBARZER B KL
the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January MBARBE-_ZTFTN\F—H B
2008. SEMmDIERAREHEMENT -
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

28. PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered
into by the Group, the Group has contractual obligations
to maintain the Wastewater Treatment Facilities it operates
to a specified level of serviceability and/or to restore the
Wastewater Treatment Facilities to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the grantors at the end
of the service concession periods. These contractual
obligations to maintain or restore the Wastewater Treatment
Facilities, except for any upgrade element, are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, i.e., at the best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
future expenditure on these maintenance and restoration
costs are collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and
revised where appropriate.

The movements in the provision for major overhauls of
the Wastewater Treatment Facilities during the year are as
follows:

28.

EXRE R

R IR 7N & B P 5T 3L 80 BR 75 %5 7T 15
& COAKRBEBAREASNELE  UR

BHERLEMSKREERE  BRE
Fa—FEARMRBEAKFER R

RGFFHAERE - E8)5KER
RIEEETRTAR HHERERS
BEMRMR > REXEETKEER
BEOBHNEEEEFARIBOINRE
BB EREITREME  HARAE
RIXREETUHERLTE #BF
2 EREMRETREEEMT
RxHREGFEEIIE - BREZ
FRENEEERORERASHE
BIEXRE] G EESEER
AT IR R R AEET o

P9 ¢ 5K B I R M M) B AR U T
ERBWT

2020 2019

—EB-EHF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

As at 1 January n—HA—H 13,147 11,040
Addition NE 1,771 1,692

Increase in discounted amounts arising B 7 B [ 57 47 1M 25 A &9 Bh

from the passage of time (note 8) IR & FB L o0 (Bt 7E8) 780 653
Exchange realignment I H &5 958 (238)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 16,656 13,147
BRERIERERAA “ECEFFR
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e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. &
2020 2019
—E-EF  —TNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Authorised: JETE
3,800,000,000 ordinary shares of 3,800,000,000/%
HK$0.0001 each F R E{E0.00017% 7T
B A 380 380
Issued and fully paid: BEITRET:
1,107,300,000 (2019: 1,107,300,000) 1,107,300,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each (Z2E—h%F:
1,107,300,000/% )
5 R EE0.00017% 7T
RN 111 111
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued capital ARARIMBETRAS ST
is as follows:
Number of
shares Amount
B & B &5
HK$’000
FETT
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NhFE—H—H 1,108,000,000 111
Shares repurchased and cancelled o] B2 X% # 88 B% 17 (700,000) N/A TR~
As at 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 R=_Z— L&
and 31 December 2020 +—-A=+—8"
—ETEF-HA—-BK
—TTF
+=-—HA=+—H 1,107,300,000 111
*  Amount less than HK$1,000. * & AM1,0008 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 29. X (4)
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company HE-_Z—NF+-A=+—HIF
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange B ARAEBIMEEERSD
as follows: T@AR - FBEWT:
Price per share Aggregate
No. of FRE®E consideration
Month of repurchase ordinary shares Highest Lowest paid
Ak
[l 88 A fxfn 8 8 &= &K ERNBERE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FAT
January 2019 700,000 0.140 0.140 98
—h&E—A
The above ordinary shares were cancelled on 10 May 2019. FlERARER=ZTE—NFRAT
Hefdd o
None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased or sold any ARARIMB AR R FERME ﬁ% B
of the Company’s listed securities during the year. HEEMAAFN LTES
RESERVES 30. f#fi§
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements REAFERBAFE AEEHFE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the HERHEYZIREGERREH
consolidated statement of changes in equity. = o
(A) OTHER RESERVE (A) HfthGfm

Other reserve comprises HK$113,780,000 debit reserve EMRFEeEREEBEEAN
resulting from the share swap pursuant to the Group B 1% B 3 & 4 #9113,780,0007%8
reorganisation and HK$82,304,000 credit reserve THRH#EEREE-_ZT—NOF
resulting from capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in +-—A=+—RHALFERRE
the year ended 31 December 2014. K& AAb E & #82,304,0007%

7E1=. B -
(B) GENERAL RESERVE (B) — % f& il
The transfers from retained earnings to the general BIEE PR R KA &

reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC RARARRFPBEXZIOMER
rules and regulations and the articles of association of B #H 4% = 72 40 RIS IR B8 e I 8
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. fbR—RRE®E -

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 31.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

MRITBEEZARHIE

TERHFIBMEBEETHELEZAKHEE
BEES BERASLIAEY -
MELTHELCREDEEAESR
EXARKRERERNETERBGER
TREXTOIERBELTDHELN

Eﬁ 7 //Ibi

o

Amount
due to
Bank related Lease
borrowings parties liabilities Total
P
RITER BHEAIRE HEEE st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF
—H—H 39,237 3,424 — 42,661
Financing cash flows BEHRESME (15,775) 5,420 (96) (10,451)
Interest expense FERX 1,267 142 11 1,420
New lease liabilities HHEEAE - - 1,629 1,629
Exchange differences M ZER ©9) - - 9)
As at 31 December 2019 and RZE—NE
1 January 2020 +-A=+—-BkK
—TTF
—H—H 24,720 8,986 1,544 35,250
Financing cash flows BERERE (2,809) 3,835 (575) 451
Interest expense M ERY 569 585 50 1,204
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF
+-A=+-—8 22,480 13,406 1,019 36,905
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debts and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in note 25 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32.

33.

BEERER

A 5 B B B AN DA AR A o B O
TERSEHEERFAEEEE
@ RSB BB ER R
TEHRRRNHEEREA{L - A%EE
MERFEREXFRETE -

AEENEARBEREAES  HF
BRERMEBEBENRITERRAR
REAAREER(BREETRA
N EM )

ARREFETFRATBERNRE - F
RBREIN -8By EFEZRELAK
AREEREAEROAER - RIE
EEmMERES A5EKEAK
TR~ BITH B K EERD
ARBETHEBXBEBLBRAES F
EHEBRERERE -

of
(A) &RTIAEHN

FINANCIAL ASSETS TREE

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FE T

Debt instruments at FVTOCI BBEMEERFZEAD
AEFENEBIA 4,972 18,518

Financial assets at amortised cost BREBEK AT EN R
BE 391,381 383,290
396,353 401,808

BRRRIEREBRAA —E_EFFR

Ve
»,/;v‘./q 577
Vi A/

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. @M I R(#H)

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) &BTRBERE)

224

(B)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Cont’d)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES E@masd
2020 2019
—EC-EF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiE T F&T
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  REE K AT EH
ctaiE 42,888 45,655

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
receivables under service concession arrangements,
debt instruments at FVTOCI, other financial assets
at amortised cost, other receivables, restricted bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
other payables, amounts due to related parties, bank
borrowings and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk and other price risk),
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

2020 Annual Report
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e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK

()

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to the floating-rate bank
borrowings (see note 25 for details of these
borrowings). The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on HIBOR arising
from the Group’s HK$ denominated borrowings.
It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the
fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rate arising from the
pbank borrowings.

33. &M T A (#E)

(B) &mtmpEEEERRBR M)

™ 5 & B
() FEREE

BREREREBRLQF

REBBEF BN ERIT
{ﬁihﬁﬁﬁﬁnuiﬁﬁ//lbi%uzg
}—L|§ (nxﬁ{ﬁfiy\uiﬁ|

ff 5£25) - N & E Iﬁéiﬁi
ENZERBREIEZEFNA
SEABTTEHEME R
EENFTBRITRAERE -
REBOHBRKRBRFER
BFBHERAR - UK A
REMNXRBRRERE -

AEBFEENSHAE
B 2 R B 5l AN B 5RO
HELREBERE —F o K
EERSREFNRERE

TEFRRIBITERATEIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # E —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F&

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

()

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets
that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI
is as follows:

33. &M T A (#E)

™ 5 & B ()

()

(B) &Rt EEERRBR (M)

FF % ()

HEHEXASBEREMLE
HKRSEAREFENS
MEENMBWA M E

MEEMT
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FE T
Interest revenue B A
Financial assets at amortised REBHEKATER
cost TREE 15,497 15,819
Other income and net gains H At U A JF s
Debt instruments at FVTOCI FEREMEEKE
BEARBETEN
EEITHR 817 1,341
16,314 17,160
2020 2019
—E-ZHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Interest expense on financial WHBEBBREBZZAN
liabilities not measured at FVTPL: E:TENESR AR
B B R
Financial liabilities at amortised RBIHKAGTEN
cost EREE 1,984 2,073
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

()

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period.

For floating-rate borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2020 would have decrease or
increase by approximately HK$112,000 (2019:
HK$124,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate bank borrowings.

33. &M T A (#E)

(B) &mtmpEEEERRBR M)

™ 5 & B ()

()

BREREREBRLQF

T E 7 B2 ()

BURE DT

AT #EE D ITE R &R
EHRBTERAERN
MERMREE °

ﬁ&@ﬂ ERME - &

DIMTIBRBRREH KK
BENBEREF—EXR
BEMERHE - AANBEER
B A BIE R XE R
BRI R 3 i sk R 4250
EER KREEBHF
KBRS IEL AT
fi

i F & EF T BES

25 ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw@w&ﬁ
g BAEEHE-ZT
—EF+-A=Z+—HIE
FE R BB A S F &R
3 18 A0 49112,0005% 7T (=
T— N 124,000 7T) °
HEEFERRAEE
HZBRITEREEF X
}_L|§uu °

—ECREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
MARKET RISK (Cont’d)

(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to debt securities price
risk through its investments in debt instruments at
FVTOCI. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. The Group’s other price
risk is mainly concentrated on debt instruments
operating in infrastructure industry sector quoted

in the Stock Exchange.

Other price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to debt price

risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective debt instruments
had been 5% higher/lower, investment revaluation
reserve would have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$249,000 (2019: HK$926,000)
for the Group as a result of the change in fair value

of debt instruments at FVTOCI.

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &R T A (#)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &AM EBEARRBKE(#F)

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK SN 5 T ey

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a HNEE B B A3 I BE BE R 4 B 8 B
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes R TEEEKESNER - A
in foreign exchange rates. Individual companies in RASBETURPEMEE

the PRC and Indonesia within the Group have limited
foreign currency risk as most of the transactions are
denominated in the same currency as the functional
currency of the operations in which they relate.
However, as the principal subsidiaries mainly carried
out transactions in RMB and IDR, therefore any
appreciation or depreciation of HK$ against RMB
and IDR will affect the Group’s consolidated financial
position and be reflected in the exchange reserve.

As at 31 December 2020, individual companies in Hong
Kong within the Group have foreign currency exposure
because debt instruments at FVTOCI of approximately
HK$4,972,000 (2019: HK$18,518,000) and a bank
borrowing of HK$4,480,000 (2019: HK$6,720,000)
were denominated in US$. The Group considers that
the currency exposures in related to the US$ are
insignificant as HK$ is pegged to the US$. Therefore,
this balance is excluded from the sensitivity analysis.

BREREREBRLQF

MERBARBORHERANE
KEEXBABEDEERER
B 1t 7K &= B BE N 2 70 AR B RN END
EM& RREAXA R INE
B R AREEHEBER
AXTENARBRNEERRE
Xy Bt BTRAARER
AEENEAAEXRESY
AEBNGEEMBRRELEF
E IREXLFEEPRE -

NRZE-FTF+-_A=+—8 -
HREBEMEERFIRAR
Bt 8 E T A 44,972,000
T (Z & — 1L & 18,518,000
Bor) k—%E R 7715 34,480,000
BEIL(ZZT—NF : 6,720,000
TL) A E T EHE - WA & B 5E
THEE S AR BEEIINER
“°$F%Eﬁimmﬂ ViN
ERAEXTHEMNEER
Eﬂ it ZEEHRTE
T:.‘\E/\\S(Q?TE%\WC’

—ERCRERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI F&F

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
CREDIT RISK

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties arises from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
receivables under service concession arrangements
and other receivables. The Group is exposed to
concentration of credit risk as the major customers of
the Group are the grantors in the PRC and grantors and
consumers in Indonesia. The directors of the Company
consider that these customers are local governmental
authorities in the PRC and an Indonesia government-
owned corporation which are financially sound and
accordingly no provision is required.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s credit risk is also
attributable to its other receivables. Included in other
receivables are mainly consideration receivable from
an independent third party which is indirectly wholly-
owned by the Rugao Economic and Technological
Development Zone Administrative Committee. The
directors of the Company consider that the credit risk
is minimal.

The credit risk for bank deposits is limited because

the directors of the Company consider that the
counterparties are financially sound.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK (Contd)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

33. &M T A (#E)

(B) &mtmpEEEERRBR M)

EE R (&)

Z’KEIW_LB{;EH /\AI&%‘JF‘:F1$
BREATER

Other financial assets/

Internal credit rating Description Contract assets other items
AEEE TR #t BREE Httem&E HiER
Low risk The counterparty has alow  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
risk of default and does — not credit-impaired
not have any past-due
amounts
e XHHEFHENRR f1 PHREEERE REAEREERR
By mAEMBER - REBEEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
after due dates but usually ~ — not credit-impaired
settle after due date
BER4E BEEALERIBAZER 2HESREEER REAEHEEER
ﬁL%FU%é%% - REEEERE
Doubtful There have been significant  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
increases in credit risk — not credit-impaired — not credit-impaired
since initial recognition
through information
developed internally or
external resources
2= FERBETNRBERARE 2HEREEER rHEREERE
ERMBEBRH RIS - REBEEEERE - RBEEERE
BRAEZER)
Loss There is evidence indicating  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
the asset is credit-impaired  — credit-impaired — credit-impaired
E# ERBRBENAMAREDEE 2HENEEER rHEREERE
EERE - BREEERE - BREGEHNE
Write-off There is evidence indicating  Amount is written off Amount is written off
that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
H 34 EREBBEREBARARE MEEHLE MiEEHEeHE

MEBREEAEETR
RBRTKEBRERE

BREREREBRLQF

—ECTEER 231



232
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e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK (Cont’d)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of

the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL
assessment:

External Internal

33. @M IR(#)
(B) &AM EEEERBK (/)

EE R (&)

AEEERAENEERRY
O (8 3 17 7 0 15 B 5 1 4T )
HEmT

2020 Gross 2019 Gross
12-month or carrying carrying

Notes  credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount

1R2EAR2Y —T-TF —T-NF

MaE  SBEETR ABGETS BHEEER REAH G

HK$’000 HK$000

TERT FTET
Debt instruments at
FVTOCI
ERHMZEURRRAAE
TENERIA
Investments in listed bonds 18 AA N/A 12m ECL 4,972 18,518
EHREHFRE TEm 12EAES
FEBB
Financial assets at
amortised cost
RBHEBAGENESRERE
Receivables under service 16 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 314,782 300,490
concession arrangements (note 1) (individual
‘ assessment)
R T RLTHETHER i EERH 1) 12@ A
HE FEBB
(BLFTH)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK (Contd)

33. &M T A ()

(B) &RmpEEEERRBR ()

EE R (&)

2020 Gross 2019 Gross
External Internal 12-month or carrying carrying
Notes  credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
\ 12fA52 =—B=-8F —T-NF
WE  ABEEFR ABEETR BHFEHE EEAR Emes
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Other financial assets at 19 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 8,253 -
_ amortised cost (note 2)
B A A G E NEH e 1218 A 78
Htb e mEE CGE#) FEBA
Restricted bank deposits 21 AA N/A 12m ECL 12,030 12,140
XBRHRTER @R 1218 A 7
FEBA
Bank balances 21 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 51,067 64,074
RIT A ER TEH 1218 A 78
FEBA
Other receivables 20 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 5,249 6,586
(note 3)
Hib B @A E R 128 A7
(Bt 5E3) FEBAR
Notes: M 5E -
1. For receivables under service concession arrangements, 1. HRBIEFAELHE T ERK

the Group has applied the general approach in HKFRS 9
to measure the loss allowance at 12m ECL. The average
loss rate is 1.15% (2019: 0.08%).

2. The management considers the ECL for other financial
assets at amortised cost is insignificant and therefore no

loss allowance was recognised.

3. For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition.

BREREREBRLQF

BEmMs ANEECDEAETHEH
BMELBFOHM — R FHE
L2 ATEEEBRETER
BEE - FHEIB X A1.15%
—ZE—RF:0.08%) °

EEERRIZBHEK A EN
HemEEMNEREEER
BAEXR HBAERER
I

RARMEERBREREMS A
SEERBHEHFHEER
B B 1] 46 T 3R A 2R 2 7 K 1R 48
e

—ECREER

\qu
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # E —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F&
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &M I A(#E)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &M EEERERBE ()

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

CREDIT RISK (Cont’d)

2020

EEER(E)
S5

Not past due/

No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
K@
B SBETERDR #@E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TER TER
Other receivables H fth U 3R 18 - 5,249 5,249
2019 —E-NF
Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
Kt/
BH EETERHR @
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
Other receivables H & W 5k IE — 6,586 6,586

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group’s liquidity position and its compliance
with lending covenants is monitored closely by the
management of the Company, to ensure that the
Group maintains sufficient reserve of cash and
adequate committed line of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirement in the short
and long term. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of funds generated
from operations and bank and other borrowings.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curves at the end of the reporting period.

33. &M T A (#E)
(B) &Rt EEEERBK ()

RBESRER

ARREREBERVEREASKE
MEERBARNEERTEST
B WERAEEER
RANREHFEARTIESR
BEARRERHNES - U
MEEEHMERBRDHESS
BZ-AKBEBUEEERHHN
EENESANMRITREAME
AmeEEBETHFE -

RBE T R FEE R K

TRANAKERTESREA
BEORBKAHOH - TRIIRE
THMBENRFTRREREM
F% - ZEFEREBELRER
SEAEENRNKXFEESRS
B HMETTEERBELZE
HRADEBTEERBRMETE
ZEHNRBEMNERAERE -
MERERBRVFBME W
AR 2EBIDKERERR
R

BRERERERAF —E-EEER

B\
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # E —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F&

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

33. &M T A (#E)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Cont’d)

Weighted  Repayable on

(B) &mtmpEEEERRBR M)

B E TR (E)

REBE 2 R FE R (E)

average  demand or Total Carrying
effective 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate orless  3-6months  6-12 months 1-3years  cash flows 31.12.2020
RREX igme 33
nEvy 43R AR TZAZ1-A
ERAE  dHARE 26ER  6Z12ER 1238 RERELE WREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% T Thn Thn Thn Tin Tin

2020 it Jut 22
Trade payables BARAE - 2,764 - - - 2,764 2,764
Other payables EfhENE - 3,219 - - - 3,219 3,219
Bank borrowings RiER 1.76% #“ 20,380 18 2,257 2,699 22480
Lease liabiltes HERR 3.93% 144 144 27 418 1,083 1,019
Amounts due to related parties BT 3B - - - 14,007 - 14,007 13,406
6,171 20,524 14312 273 43,742 42,888

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report



BN (27
R\ Q0 \‘\\Qf/l

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 Bt & —FE —F ¢+ - H=+—HIL FF

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. @M I R(H)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

(B) &M EERRRBE (#)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d) REESRE K (E)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Cont’d)

REBE 2 R FE R (E)

Weighted ~ Repayable on
average demand or Total Carrying
effective 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate orless  3-6months  6-12 months 1-3 years cash flows 31122019
BREX RoR-nE
ETs ERIEN R tZAzt-A
ERHE  ANAER 3560 A 6212 R 1535 RERELE EE]
% HKS000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$ 000
% T T T Tin Tin Thn

2019 “E-nE
Trade payables BARAE - 3,003 - - - 3,003 3,003
Other payables EfhENE = 7402 = = = 7402 7402
Bank borrowings O 3.36% 115 20,612 i 4,621 %419 U720
Lease libites BEAf 3.93% 14 144 27 1,053 1628 1,544
Amounts due to related parties BT 3B - 84 - 8,549 - 9,393 8,986
11,508 20,756 8907 5,674 46,845 45,659
BRBRIZERERQE TEROREER 237



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 33. &M I AE)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (B) &M EEERERBE ()
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Cont’d) RBESERE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Cont’d) B E 2 R FEE & (&)
The amounts included above for variable interest rate W)FEFI RSB EN R EH R
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are ErMAMEGsraR - 8 i
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates FIeEETEemaEn?s
differ from those estimates of interest rates determined METESBIEEE -
at the end of the reporting period.
(C) FAIR VALUE (C) 2nr{E
The fair values of debt instruments at FVTOCI are BEMEEMBZIZASLERT
based on quoted market prices. ENEHRIEZAREBETET
SWEFE -
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRITAEEERITAND
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: REFEER:
ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE RAREFTENEE
Fair value
measurement
using quoted
prices in active
markets
(level 1)
BEBRMERE
FTENQAE
(B—#)
HK$’000
FE T
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZEF+=-A=+—H
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BEEMEAKREEAALETN=E
MEFTA 4,972
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-HhhE+=ZA=+—H
Debt instruments at FVTOCI FREMEAKEEAALBET=E
WEBFTA 18,518

238
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E = FF+ =A==+ —HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 5 September 2014 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees for their
contribution or potential contribution to our Group. Under
the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

At 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 500,000 (2019: 500,000), representing
0.045% (2019: 0.045%) of the shares of the Company in issue
at that date. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The limit on the total number of Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of our Company at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time
(the “Maximum Limit”). The maximum number of Shares in
respect of which options under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of our Company may
be granted is 10% of the Shares in issue immediately upon
completion of the share offer, being 80,000,000 Shares (the
“Scheme Limit”), excluding for this purpose the number of
shares which would be issued on the exercise in full of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme or any
other schemes of our Company but not cancelled, lapsed or
exercised; the number of Shares which have been allotted
and issued pursuant to the exercise of any options granted
under the Share Option Scheme or any other schemes of our
Company; and the number of cancelled Shares.

34. fRBx H#EsTE

ARRREBER-_FT-—NFAARH
BRNABRRABRESE(E
RS T EEERBHAE
BELEMKAUEELERMNES
kaEREER - REXTE - AR
AEZEEARAERREEREER
B HPERARRLEKEB AR
MEF  URBARBED -

RZE-ZFEF+-_A=+—H0  BE
ZEEREERAITENE K E
WK BB 17 B A&500,0000% (==
— L& : 500,000/%) * BERAR T
RZBEEETRG 20.045% (=
—JLF : 0.045%) ° £ R A QTR
REXIEZBERLT BIEBEZE
BHzEREMPZRMDBER -
REMBEASBBAAREET
1D 210% » FE RE AR QR R R E
EREZBERT  REMR—FRE
AEAAEE FRAER T2 BERE
Frak BB TRETET RS
FETEBBARRITANERDE
BT 21% ©

RIEBERAET S R ARRHEME
BIRESD RO M ®ARITEZA
BARTEBRBETEE] T ET
ZAREEMABEBEN LR R E
MR SEBTHEETRN
30% (MR = RE]) - 1R & BB A&
&) K AN R ME ] E A B8 B HE AT & AT
EROHNEBEREMSEORND &S
BERERRNBETKREELT
% 13 #910% - B180,000,000/% A& 17
(TET8IRED U™ s FEER
15 8 R M AT 8 3K AR R RIME AR B Al AE
EIRHOBREALETHE KX
SETEERR) EXBITERALE
BTORDEE: ATERERK
AT &l 3 AR R E ] B A 5 B
M EM B R END i ERBETHR
MEA: REFHERD ZEAE -

BRERERERAF —E-EEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8t 2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI F&F

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

No options shall be granted under any schemes of our
Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will
result in the Maximum Limit being exceeded.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of our Company or any of their
respective associates is required to be approved by
our independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the
options). If the Board determines to offer to grant options to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non- executive
director or any of their respective associates which will
result in the number of shares issued and to be issued in
excess of 0.1% of the issued shares or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 within any 12-month period
is subject to approval by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.

The subscription price for the Company’s shares on the
exercise of options under Share Option Scheme shall be at
least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of the
share.

2020 Annual Report

34. MR EEtEI(#F)

fid 1R 3% AN 2 R A9 AE (] 51 &) (B R B X
A BRLNBRESRBEL &
BRE AN EREZEERE -

MARREE HEETHRABSK=E
ZRRABESTENETWEHEA
BEERERE BEARF B
ERITEES(TRELAG ABRE
ABEANTHNBLIERTES) I
o WEEGRZRNETEMRENTE
YHATESHIAMARESENH
BARLERE mMEREMRM+=
BAHMANBETRETEITRD
HEBBEEITHRMMO0I%IE A
5,000,000 8 TEEREBER BN E
HHRERMDKMEFE)  BIALAR
AEIRERBRAS EARLE -

RARTT R T &1 IR 1 M B X
BZBORBEINSERTI =%
RzERSE: @RORELBAH (W
AREXB)EBIMEBRARERM
BRUETERD: ORBEERLAB
AAEEXRAEBMIMBARES
PPl mE: RBhEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E = FF+ =A==+ —HIFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, movements of
the Company’s share options held by senior management

34. MR EEtEI(#F)

REBE-_T-_THF+_-_A=1+—H
LFEE ARREEERELARA

were as follows: BREZ2ZESHWOT :
Exercisable
Outstanding share
at the Granted Outstanding options at
beginning of  during the atthe end of  the end of
the year year the year the year
REL REAFE RER REETTE
e AR AT gERi e K AT ZBRE
For the year ended 31 December HE-Z-ZTF+_A
2020 =t+—-RALLFE
Year of grant of options 2016 RHUBREEE=T
—~E 500,000 - 500,000 -
Weighted average exercise price MEFTEECET)
(HK$) 0.52 - 0.52 -
The estimated fair value of the options granted on 14 April RZZE-—NEFOA+THHERTEAE

2016 is HK$0.25.

The exercise price of the options of HK$0.52 was equal to
the market price of the shares on the date of grant. Options
granted must be taken up within 30 days of the date of
grant — 14 April 2016, upon payment of HK$1.00 per option.
Each of the grantees to whom an option has been granted
under the Scheme shall be entitled to exercise their options
up to 33%, 66% and 100% of the shares that are subject to
the option so granted to them at any time during the period
commencing from the first, second and third anniversaries
of the date. The options will vest over a period of three years
from the date of grant and the chief financial officer will still
be employed on the date of vesting and exercise. The validity
period of the options is ten years from the date of grant and
the options shall lapse at the expiry of the validity period. The
fair value at grant date is estimated using a binomial pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The contractual life of each
option granted is ten years. There is no cash settlement of
the options.

Mg 2 fh st A RER0.25B TT o

BRESTEEARLET  HER
REBHOKROME - EREER
/P % A ER1830 8 &g (BN =
T—AFEOATITAH) ARAAEY

5 R B8 IR #E1.0078 TT o 1R 1K BB AR

Eéﬂriﬂ E’\&ﬁﬁ%l}xf”‘“ﬂﬁ’\]’%*
BF F-BF FZBFEHH
WAL AT B ] Z%&?E%Hﬂiéﬂ’\]%%

BARBRTEEER THOREKE
Bt % K B A 3 Bl A~ 8 3833% - 66%
K100% - BEARER RS E X T A
HEFN=FHRAANEE B¥5
REREBRITEAMSDIER
ARE - BERENEZXHSER L
FHEFtFRARBEREKEERR
HEnRRR RERHNARE
R -ZEAETERAGE  SARE
HE R RIE Z R R - B
BhzBhBREZAOFHST
Fo-BREMBEREMN-

BREREREBRLQF —ECREER

241



NN 7

ML ) e
R \\\‘,;‘p‘/w.‘;/’/i
W R\ N

e .
— -
= e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) 34. R EsTEI(&F)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

The fair value was calculated using the Binomial model. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

AREIR-_BAEEEAGHE -
EEX 2B ARELT:

Weighted average share price NEFHRE 0.52
Exercise price TEE 0.52
Expected dividend yield (%) TEHAIR B X (%) 1.35
Expected volatility (%) T8 85 K 18 (%) 47.69
Risk-free interest rate (%) 17 2 F F K (%) 1.33
Expected life of share options (years) A% HE Y TR H 4 HR () 10

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the comparable companies’ share prices over
the previous 7-10 years. The expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
recognised approximately HK$nil of share-based payment
expense in profit or loss (2019: HK$nil).

. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(A) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN HONG KONG

The Group operates a defined contribution MPF
Scheme in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basis salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

2020 Annual Report

BHIREAN BRI R ARBEE
E+FREZELKNBEE - HE
FABARFEHEORBEEEEZRE
BRI EE  TERHRTR
ERRRZEEFEHRE -

REBEEZT_TEF+_A=+—H1t
FE AEEERBFEAERER
BOHONREXHEBT(ZZE—AN
FE2ETT) o

BUEFRE

(A) REBETTZRERKRBRAFE
1|

AEEBRAERE S
FROISEERSERE S
MEBEBT BRI —ATHANH
KBt E - HRRERE
AHEMOX —BOLFE X
RBEBRESTERNRTES
BEXNKERDEMEE - BES
AEEERASEEEDRMU
BUYEEESRE -A5EEHRK
wELAEFELENREIETE
BENESR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(B)

(C)

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN THE PRC

The employees of the Group’s operations in the PRC
are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the
Group. Contributions are made by the Group based on
a percentage of the participating employees’ salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes. The employer contributions vest
fully once made.

DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN INDONESIA

Under the Indonesia Labor Law, companies are required
to pay separation, appreciation and compensation
benefits to their employees if the conditions specified
in the Indonesia Labor Law are met. The Group’s
subsidiaries in Indonesia, estimates its liability for
employee service entitlement benefits in order to meet
and cover the minimum benefits requirement to be paid
to employees under the Indonesia Labor Law.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as
investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

INVESTMENT RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to Indonesian government bonds; if the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a
plan deficit.

INTEREST RATE RISK

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the
plan liability.

35. RhiEFIRE(H)

(B)

(C)

BREREREBRLQF

RPEETZRE SR R E

1

AEERPEEBENRERERS
MEAEHTRAEROTRR
KEstE - ZFFENEER
AEBEESRFER - HRX
TTAAKEREF REAREE
FMBRAZ2EREHF SR
—BDLEL X RENER
BaEHE - BITHOHRNEE
HERENE2HES -

REDEE 172 & i& #1538 kst

B

RBCHIES TE) - HCEIES
TRI)TEANGEER - Al
RE| MR EE BB ST B
TTRREEERF - REBEREH
E K} 18 B 1t 5118 8 AR 7% FE
B BE - AR & S8 & (E]
&I R)LEREERHE
MEFIEER -

At Bl AR EmEREERR
mEERR  MERR - EF
[\ B B & R o

RERR
REBAMFERENREBRS
ZHEBMNESFEE R X
AE HEAHEEDHREER
BRI R B ARET8IE A -
A = & B

BHEMEREEREMAEAE -

—ECREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d) 35. ;BFiaFI&E £ (#)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN (C) RENREITZHIE & FIR st

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)
LONGEVITY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the
plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

SALARY RISK

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability

Bl(%#)

REREK
RERBMAEEBENRELZ
ZHHEZ2HEARERBHBR
Hﬁfé%ﬁﬁm¢1i'fﬁu+ﬁn+:§—: °©
FE2E AEHASGERKE
MmEtEaE -

FEEE

RE@BAMFEABENRELS

is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan % FFEI2E AR KRR E M E
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the HoRAW  FEZ2EAFS L
plan participants will increase the plan’s liability. FHEMEtE B E -

The post-employment benefits are unfunded. AEEVERBEHEHBERERERN -
AERAMNECREREZE
EHMEDDHROE—BBEILB
& F M 2 ") PT Dayamandiri
Dharmakonsilindo? =& — T 4
+ZA=+—H#&ET - ATEE
MEFRERBBED B ARG
AR BE R AL TEEE
MEREFTE °

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value
of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at 31
December 2020 by PT Dayamandiri Dharmakonsilindo,
an independent actual consulting firm in Indonesia. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the
related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

() Current service cost: (i) BATARFE AL A

BRIREE AR FANF B
MY FEAAR /\i’%ﬁ']
RERBFMHAX - FRHAE
%3899,0008 L (ZE — N
F 1 430,000 7T) B it A
TR -

The current service cost and the net interest
expense for the year are included in the employee
benefits expense in profit or loss. Of the expense
for the year, HK$399,000 (2019: HK$430,000) has
been included in the administrative expenses.

7

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit AERNABEFEZEN
liability is included in other comprehensive income. SAAEFAEMEE K E -
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —FE —FF+ -~ H=+—HIL FE

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

SALARY RISK (Cont’d)

()

Retirement benefit obligations:

The amount included in the consolidated
statement of financial position arising from the

35. RhiEFIRE(H)

Bl (%)

k(A

(C) MEDEEITZREiEFIE that

(i) RIKEFEE:

AR B HE RE R A G A
METEENGAGZR M

Group’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit BHRARNESEOAT :
plan is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Present value of funded defined EEBERAERMNEE
benefit obligation RE 1,414 1,004
Fair value of plan assets FEIEENAAE - —
Net liability arising from defined ARERMEEESED
benefit obligations BEFE 1,414 1,004

BREREREBRLQF

—ECREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

35.

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN

OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

SALARY RISK (Cont’d)

(i)

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Retirement benefit obligations: (Cont’d)

Movements in the present value of the defined

BRUREFRESE)

(C) MEDEEITZREi&EFIE that
B (#)

k(A
(i) BAEKEFEE: (F)

REBMEERERNLKEF

benefit obligations in the current year are as EREEMT:
follows:
2020 2019
—EC-EHE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
Opening defined benefit obligation F ¥ R E & 7 & T 1,004 808
Current service cost B AT AR 75 B AR 326 374
Interest cost BB AR 73 56
Remeasurement losses: BEXFTEEE:
— Actuarial gains and losses —RBREMELEZ
arising from experience BE KR KEIR
adjustments (118) (66)
— Actuarial gains and losses — ANARBEEBE
arising from changing EZBEERER
demographic assumptions B 18 4 260
— Actuarial gains and losses — B BREEEME
arising from changes in EZRERZER
financial assumptions E 18 118 .
Benefits paid [RENE=R (1) (457)
Exchange differences on foreign EHNETEIME N =R
plans 8 29
Closing defined benefit obligation & & 52 F & Fl & (T 1,414 1,004

2020 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

SALARY RISK (Cont’d)

(i) Key assumptions:

35. RhiEFIRE(H)

(C) MEDEEITZREiEFIE that
Bl (%)

k(A

(i) FHHEMR K -

The principal assumptions used for the purposes BEMEMMAEEM/RER W
of the actuarial valuations were as follows: T:
2020 2019
—E-BF —T-N%F
Discount rate BEIR & 7.10% 8.02%
Expected rate of salary increase EHEH e AR 10.00% 9.33%
Significant actuarial assumptions for the ErAT RIS AREY
determination of the defined obligation are B *“EHE%T&?EHH - o
discount rate and expected salary increase. The 10 o LT KWTC Iﬁ *E
sensitivity analysis below has been determined T)%; &iﬁ,ﬁ{z{&ﬁ” ERE
#:

based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

AEAEEEBMEMEKRR
MBETEMERT -

Increase /

(Decrease)/ (decrease)

increase in in net

net defined obligation

Increase in benefit Decrease in benefit

rate  obligations rate  obligations

RE RERF

?E%U;EE%E ERFEE

FELA (HD)/#BM FETR  W/(RD)

% HK$’000 % HK$'000

% TEX % TAEL
As at 31 December 2020 R=-ZT-ZHF

+ZR=+-H

Discount rate(s) Copsed 1 (131) 1 150
Expected rate(s) of salary BHHEL AR

increase 1 147 1 (130)
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZF—-RfF

+ZB=+-H

Discount rate(s) AR % 1 (70) 1 149
Expected rate(s) of salary BEHF AR

increase 1 148 1 (71)

BRBRIZERERQE TEROREER

247




248

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Cont’d)

(C) DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN
OPERATING IN INDONESIA (Cont’d)

SALARY RISK (Cont’d)

(i) Key assumptions: (Cont’d)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may
not be representative of the actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation
of one another as some of the assumptions may

be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis, the present value of the defined benefit
obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E = FF+ =A==+ —HIFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

During the period from 1 January to 19 November
2019, the Group sub-leased the commercial premises
located at Units 1-3, 11th Floor, Westlands Centre, 20
Westlands Road, Hong Kong, for use as offices from
Dragonfield (“Dragonfield”), a company controlled by
certain executive Directors and their family members
at a rent of HK$136,600 per month.

From the period commencing on 20 November 2019,
the Group sub-leased the commercial premises located
at Unit 5, 7th Floor, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands
Road, Hong Kong for use as offices from Dragonfield.
The sub-lease has a term of three years from 20
November 2019 to 19 November 2022 at a rent of
HK$47,800 per month. At the commencement date
of the sub-lease, the Group recognised a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability of HK$1,629,000.

On 2 January 2019, the Group entered into an
administrative services sharing agreement with
Dragonfield, in connection with the sharing of
administrative services, retrospectively, effective from 1
July 2018 to 30 June 2021. The Group was charged for
the shared administrative services, which includes the
rent to Dragonfield for the area of the office preciouses
used by the Group, on a cost basis.

The total amount of shared administrative services
expenses charged to profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2020 was HK$2,667,000 (2019:
HK$3,250,000).

There is no amount due to Dragonfield as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, HK$309,000
(2019: HK$321,000) services fee and rental expenses
were paid to related companies over which a director
of the Company has significant influence to operate,
monitor and maintain the two power plants of the
Group.

36. ABIARSR

(@)

BREREREBRLQF

R-ZZE—-NF—A—BZ=+—A8
+HhBEHE AEEMERE
EBAERAR(EBRD(BAQR
ETHTESERERBESD
~na) o AR E B E K20
EEFHPOITEI-3ENEAEY
¥BEHAE - A AE136,600
/%TEC’

H-ZE—hAET+—H=Z+H#®
HE - AEEREARSAMR
EBEB R0 EBE P OTIE
5imﬁﬁﬁ¢@¥ﬁﬁf’ﬁ¢b¢“*'

NHEBAH=FEBH-_ZE N
$+—H:+E§:§::
F+—A+hnB) A& A
47,8008 7T - RO MERAHBBEE -
AEERERAFTAREEREE
B 151,629,00058 7T °

—“E-NAFE—AZBH K&
BEmEZTHREEERET
VTR EZWHE  B¥P4E
BoEBZZE-N\EFLtHA—HRE
E-FT-_—FXXA=Z+HI-
X Z TR RS IE K AR %
MAEBEKE - E$@%if
EREAEENRAEYERR

BHE-_T-_TEF+-_A=+-—
HEFEFABZNEZITHR
iR 7% B X # %8 A2,667,000/8
T(Z & — jli 3,250,000

RZEBE_ZEFR_ZFT—NF
+Z—A=+—8" IEEH
B2 RIE -
REBEE-_ZE_ZFTF+=A
=+ —HLEFE BEXHF
309,000% (= & — N F:
321,000/% 7T) iR 7% B &fﬁ@
M FTEB AR MARQ
HEER Y ﬁﬁﬂjﬁﬁiﬁ%

) KthEErEEmESR
EHNEE EBEREE -

—ERCRERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 36. ABA XS (#)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel ) TEEEEABNH B
The remuneration of directors and other members of RFEFRNESERTEZEEEHM
key management during the year was as follows: ABREMBT:
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET
Short-term employee benefits HEEERT 2,984 6,266
Post-employment benefits BB 18 13 68 50
3,052 6,316
The remuneration of directors and key executives is BEENRTETHRABZHMNA
determined by the remuneration committee having FHZEeREREARER
regard to the performance of individuals and market MEBEEET -EFMaD
trends. Further details of compensation of directors’ HE— A FBEEHNMEE0 -

emoluments are included in note 10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. EAFMMBRAE

COMPANY
2020 2019
—EEH —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#& T FHEIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARMNKRE 164,259 164,259
Debt instruments at FVTOCI FREMEZEHNZEARL
BifEmWEKIEA 3,380 3,390
167,639 167,649
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b e W18 220 173
Amounts due from subsidiaries g NN E ] 145,588 140,771
Debt instruments at FVTOCI FEEEMEmKRIFZ AR
B E0WEBIA 1,592 15,128
Bank balances and cash RITEBNRS 8,770 1,954
156,170 158,026
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals HEMmENRBERESER 1,791 808
Amount due to a subsidiary JERT— M B QR IR 56,640 44,081
Amounts due to related parties JE 1< 8 BEs 5 3R 1B 13,406 8,142
71,837 53,031
Net current assets RBEEFE 84,333 104,995
Net assets EEFE 251,972 272,644
Equity =
Issued capital BEITRA 111 111
Reserves fFE 1 251,861 272,533
Total equity B R 251,972 272,644

BREREREBRLQF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # E —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F&

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. ZATBMMBER AT (F)
COMPANY (Cont’d)

MOVEMENT IN EQUITY OF THE COMPANY EAFESEH
Investment
Issued Share Share option  revaluation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
BRITRA RHEE BRERE REEERE 2itER s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL TET FHL FHL TET FHL
AsatiJanuary 2019  R-Z-AF
—A—8 111 408,558 121 (16) (129,496) 279,278
Loss for the year ERER - - (6,614) (6,614)
Investment revaluation ~ HEBBEMEE
reserve released KEEDA
upon disposal of TEMEBIA
debt instruments at BRRRESER
FVTOCI 1 = 78 - 78
Total comprehensive  FR2EMNE/
income/lexpense) for  (FX) %
the year - 78 6,614) (6,536)
Repurchase of ordinary &3 Ik &
shares (note 29) (Mi3E29) (98) - > (98)
As at 31 December 2019 R=Z—N%
and 1 January 2020 +-A=+-H
R-Z_%%
—A—8 408,460 62 (136,110) 272,644
Loss for the year ERER - - (9,683) (9,683)
Investment revaluation ~ HEZBEMZE
reserve released WEBARLE
upon disposal of TEMEBIA
debt instruments at BERRRESER
FVTOCI i - 84 - 84
Total comprehensive  FAZEWE/
income/(expense) for (Ax)aH
the year - 84 (9,683) (9,599)
Dividends recognised as  EHA AN R 2
distribution (note 13) & 8.(M313) - - (11,073) (11,073)
As at 31 December R-E-Z%
2020 +=A=1+-H 408,460 146 (156,866) 251,972

ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FNFEEMB AT
OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZEZZEFR-ZZF—NF+A
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: =+—H ARAFTEMNBRFHD
B U
Issued and
fully paid/
Place of registered Proportion of nominal value
incorporation/ Place of ordinary share  of issued ordinary share
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital capital held by the Group  Principal activities
BEIR AEERE
BR/CHf BROLER
MEARER RI/FMbY SEHEY LRERRA it A L 4 B TEED
2020 2019
S H L= K
% %
% %
Haian Hengfa (‘8% E%5k& PRC PRC RMB30,000,000 70 70 Wastewater treatment
EERRA (notes a &)
BRER(BRERSKEER TH " AEE KRR
AR ) (M Fake) 30,000,000
Rugao Hengfa (‘W2 E#KE  PRC PRC US$10,880,000 100 100 Wastewater treatment
EERANE) (notes b & ¢)
mREE(MREZKREER TH G 10,880,000% 7T KRR
AN
Shanghai Taihuan Environmental  PRC PRC HK$400,000 100 100 Dormant
Technology Limited
(notes b & ¢)
IBRBRERBBBERLA  HH hE 400,000/ TEXK
(Wb Ko)
Rugao Taihuan Environmental PRC PRC US$1,000,000 100 100 Wastewater treatment
Technology Limited
(notes b & ¢)
MRRBRREMRERDA e hE 1,000,000% 7T KRR
(Wb Ko)

BREREREBRLQF —ERCRERR 253
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —E —ZE4#+ - A=+ —HI F/&F

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FATEEMBATRIES (4F)
OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Issued and
fully paid/
Place of registered Proportion of nominal value
incorporation/ Place of ordinary share  of issued ordinary share
Name of subsidiary registration ~ operation capital capital held by the Group  Principal activities
BEIR rEERE
‘ B /BER BRAEER
WEARER R/ EMbY EEHY EERRE RAEEL A IEED
2020 2019
ZE-%F _ZNF
% %
% %
ELL Environmental Limited BV BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
EERNEE HBRAES 100X 7T REAR
Everbest Water Treatment Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$62,304,273 100 100 Investment holding
Development Company
Limited
BEEKBERERAA BB B 82,304,273 1T REER
Grand Target Holdings Limited ~ BVI BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
AERNESE HBRUESR 100% 7T REAER
Greatcorp International Limited ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
ERERERAR N Bk 1008 1T RERR
Eternity Time Group Limited BVI BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
AERNESE HBRUES 100% 7T REAER
Weal Union Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$250 100 100 Investment holding
BEBRAT N i 250/ 7T REER
Absolute Praise Limited Cayman Islands  Cayman Islands US$100 100 100 Dormant
FEHES FEHS 100% 7T TELH
Winwood Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100 —  Dormant
XEEEBRAT R B 100/ EEEH

254 ELL ENVIRONMENTAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2020 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 — L -~ FF+ - H=+—HIFFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

38. FLFERMBAFIRIEN (48)

Issued and
fully paid/
Place of registered Proportion of nominal value
incorporation/ Place of ordinary share  of issued ordinary share
Name of subsidiary registration ~ operation capital capital held by the Group  Principal activities
ERTR r5EEE
BR/Cif BRITEER
MEARER R/ Sty €BY LERBRE A< 1 L TEED
2020 2019
ZEZEE ZEN%
% %
% %
RPSL Indonesia Indonesia IDR230,900 95 95  Manufacturing and sale
million of electricity and palm
kemei ol
=) =) 2309008 & EERHETNREE
HEE i
SJP Indonesia Indonesia IDR25,000 95 95  Dormant
million
1l ke 25,0006 & TEXHK
AR
PT. ELL Environmental Limited ~ Indonesia Indonesia IDR2,500 million 99 99  Provision of
administration and
management services
to group companies
i i 25008 & AEEARRETHE
AR fE B R
BRERIERERAA TEROREER 255



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —E -~ L F 1+ - A=+ —HI F&E

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  38. AR EME A FIR0ME (&)
OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Notes: M 3
(@)  This entity is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture (@ ZEBREBEHRBEEEIMAFINE
under the laws of PRC. B
(b) These entities are registered as wholly-owned foreign b) ZEERBBEHRBZEFMRING
enterprises under the laws of PRC. BEDRE-
() The English names of these entities represent management’s ) HRZEFEBYARIMENEHE
best effort at translating their Chinese names as these entities NER ZEEEBNRXEBIH
did not register any official English names. ERERNINESHIXEHBES
oo
Except for ELL Environmental Limited, Absolute Praise R ELL Environmental Limited, Absolute
Limited and Eternity Time Group Limited, all subsidiaries are Praise Limited &2 Eternity Time Group
indirectly held by the Company. Limited I + BT 7 Bt /& A B A A2 B A
BEEA -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ERITEER/EITEREFER
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results of BB AEEEEFEZTIEZN
the year or constitute a substantial portion of the net assets DZARBIMBRAR - EERA
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in REHEMHBRARAZERESRIE
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive BRITEK -

length.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —E —ZF 4+ - F=+—HI F/ZF

39. PARTIAL-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 39. BEEXERKRERMHIEREM
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BT
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned BEEAERERNAEEI S
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling BEWBRARIMGEHINT
interests:
Profit for the year
Place of Percentage of equity allocated to non-
incorporation/ interest held by non-  controlling interests by Accumulated balance of
Name of company Form of entity operation controlling interest the Group non-controlling interests
ERAL/ FERER FEEAIERT FERERN
G R EEHEY FrERERD L FERERNERRR EHEg

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“RIRF CTONF ZR-RE CTNF ZRCRF CTONF

% % HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
% % TEL FET TAR TET
Haian Hengfa Incorporated PRC 30 30 4,043 9,014 34,244 35,505
BRER B3l i
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interest (4,216) (3,613)

REFERESD
EEIE PN YN

30,028 31,892

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AEEBRBERFTEREZDNNB
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set NAMMBERBEH N T X K
out below. The summarised financial information below THHBENBEZINEEAQFMHE
presents amounts before intragroup eliminations. AR EEE -

BREREREBRLQF —ERCRERR 257
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # E —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F&

39. PARTIAL-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 30. EIFEXRHFERESMIEDEMN
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BAT(H#E)
(Cont’d)
HAIAN HENGFA BRIER

2020 2019
—EEE —TE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Current assets mBEE 37,081 52,555
Non-current assets EMBE E 101,348 93,306
Current liabilities nEasd (4,363) (10,803)
Non-current liabilities EmBEaE (19,919) (16,709)

Equity attributable to owners of the

ZAUNCIE REPN KR ¥

Company 79,903 82,844
Non-controlling interests of Haian Hengfa /& % 15 3% &) 3F 4% A% # 25 34,244 35,505
Revenue BEWA 25,580 44,023
Profit attributable to owners of the RARHEAANELRT

Company 9,432 21,034
Profit attributable to non-controlling BREEFERER

interests of Haian Hengfa JE 16 Y 4,043 9,014
Profit for the year F N5 13,475 30,048
Other comprehensive income/(expense) AR T EH A FE(LH A

attributable to owners of the Company 2EKE(FAX) 4,701 (1,473)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) /& %7 15 %% JF 128 I #E %5 FE 1

attributable to non-controlling interests ~ H b 2 E U 25 (B x2)

of Haian Hengfa 2,015 (631)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FREMEEU T

for the year (M%) 6,716 (2,104)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —FE —FF+ -~ H=+—HIL FE

39. PARTIAL-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 30. BBEXIEERESNIERZEM
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BAT ()
(Cont’d)
HAIAN HENGFA (Cont’d) BRER (#8)
2020 2019
—E-FF —ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Total comprehensive income attributable ARNA R A A EEEE

to owners of the Company I == 4B %R 14,133 19,561
Total comprehensive income attributable /& %[5 3% FF 4% B 7 25 JE (L

to non-controlling interests of Haian FHEW =BT

Hengfa 6,058 8,383
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 A & [ 4 25 42 20,191 27,944
Dividends paid to non-controlling N T B%E %

interests of Haian Hangfa FEVER M 2 BR B (7,319) =

Net cash flows (used in)/from operating &2 F&(FH) ELH
activities BeheF5 (10,199) 34,837

Net cash flows used in investing activities & & & &) & A &9
4R BE (5,995) (270)

Net (decrease)/increase in bank balances E 174 % &
and cash B e O ), 1 mFE (16,194) 34,567
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFERBHRE
RESULTS xis
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t-HLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE-RF ZE—+tF& ZE-N\F ZE-NF ZE-BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TEL TET AT AL FEL
Revenue EEWA 100,317 78,964 79,050 77,473 59,017
Profit (loss) before tax BREATR R (EE) 18,522 (50,891) (141,105) 17,038 5,096
Income tax expenses FERAY (7,029) (9,856) (3,562) (7,438) (6,581)
Profit (loss) for the year FR&F(EE) 11,493 (60,747) (144,667) 9,600 (1,485)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING HE AERIEEERES
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-8
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
TR ZE—+F ZZT-N\§ ZT-NF ZBZEf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TAEL AT AT AL TER
Total assets BEE 681,140 628,928 475,888 479,926 477,381
Total liabilities BafE (111,538) (107,106) (101,512) (102,210) (102,217)
Non-controlling interests R (27,650) (29,024) (23,873) (31,892) (30,028)
541,952 492,798 350,503 345,824 345,136
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